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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

LEORBERE (L8) ROBRAHE

Definitions

B=

In this annual report, the following expressions have the RAFERF - BRIEXESHAE - THH
meanings set out below unless the context requires otherwise: F2AB TXAERE

“2023 AGM”

[2023FRHEBAFARE |

“Articles of Association”

[REIERE ]

“Actual Controller”

[EERZEHIA

“ASD”

[ Rk ERE

"Anhui Magete"

[ 2 HIEIR4E ]
“Audit Committee”
(B EZEE

“Board of Supervisors”

[BEEE]

“Board”

[EEg]

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Thursday, May 23, 2024, or any adjournment thereof
RRBHHR2024F5 230 (EHM) RITHEERRBF KRS HEE

mES

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, modified or
otherwise supplemented from time to time
RABZARER (ETREE] - MBI UAREM TR

the individual or entity that can control a company by way of
investment relationship, contracts or other arrangements according
to the Listing Rules of the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange KRYIFEFXZAEIZERRE ETAI)) where Lepu
Medical, our controlling shareholder, is listed

REERRRETREE EMiORINEFLRSFAIERRE LR
) BBREWR BERIEEMTHERNERIEARITANEA

HEE

atrial septal defect, a remnant opening, or a defect, between the left
and right atria resulting from the abnormal development, absorption
and fusion of the atrial septum during embryonic development
ERHRRIE  MRBEEREY  FRARNEES  REKAREHBAER
w0 BN - ALREZENEEARESERE

Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd." (2 & BREEER
AR AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
November 22, 2016 and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Lepu Medical

ZREBEEEERRARAAF » —RKN20165F11 A22 HRFEIK
YWBRRAE  ARETEENBEIEZENBAF

the audit committee of the Board
EEeETEEE

the board of supervisor(s) of our Company
AAFEEE

the board of Directors of the Company
KRBEEE



“CDH Supermatrix”

[ CDH Supermatrix |

“CG Code”
[{EEER<TAN]

“CHD’

[ R MU B s

“Company” or “ScienTech
Medical” or “company”

EANCIREARNE S 5 -3 13
IVNCIN

“controlling shareholder(s)”

[ 2 RS ER

“Director(s)

[E=]
“Dr. Pu”
[SEEL |

“Entrusted Products”

[&rtEmR]

“EU”
X
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CDH Supermatrix D Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong on April 27, 2021 and a Pre-IPO
Investor

CDH Supermatrix D Limited » —FK1X2021F4 527 BREFHEDI
M BRETARIRERAARBENREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules
CETARD K ERC1ATE KR EEG SRR

congenital heart disease, the formation of the heart and blood
vessels during embryonic development or abnormal development
or failure to close the channels that should be automatically closed
after birth, resulting in abnormalities in the solid structure or function
of the blood vessels in the heart or thoracic cavity

EREOHRE  ERREERBAENOHEROENEKERSIEER
BRHEARERDEFNBEBEARERS  SBOMIMEANNES L
BAEBIIRERS

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (%%
ELFEERERE(LE)RMAERRAR), a joint stock limited liability
company established in the PRC on January 29, 2021 and whose
Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
SELRBEMK (L8)ROABRDA - —KNR202141 A29B R
BIK MR ER AR - ARG PRE S AER LT

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BAECEMRUDE T ZANEE

the director(s) of our Company

RAFESR

Dr. Pu Zhongjie (3824£), one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company and the Actual Controller of Lepu Medical

SHAGEL - ARRIERRR 2 - REEBRAERZEH A

the TAVR system, TMVCRS and balloon dilatation catheter for aortic
valve that the Group entrusted the Retained Lepu Medical Group for
its R&D, registration and production pursuant to an asset transfer
agreement (including an intellectual property transfer agreement as
attached thereto) entered into between Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy and Lepu Medical in January 2021

BIE LB REIRE @M EEERBEN2021F1 ARTNEEEZ
W (BREMANBEEEZTR)  FAEERAHR TLEEREEE
T AMREENSEEBAREZSRBEZRLS - TMVCRS K+
PR RIRBIREREE

the European Union
R i B2



Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

LEORBERE (L8) ROBRAHE

Definitions

B=

“EIM”
[FIM ]

“Global Offering”
[BIREE ]

“Group”, “we”, “us”, or “our”

[ZR&E ] 8 [ # A

“HK dollar” or “HK$”
[T

“Hong Kong”
[ &8 ]

“Huaihua Haozhi”
[/ i |
“IFRS”

[CEERR B 75 s 22 Rl ) |

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

(B FE=77]
“KOLs”
[EARAHER]
SLAA”

[ZE0HE ]

First in man

RARBERARER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Prospectus

BARBRERE TR ANRE

the Company and its subsidiary from time to time

A ) Ko EL AN B B B X )

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREEEEET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBRITTRR

Huaihua Haozhi Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)’ (B{L R X B RSB E(BREH)), a limited liability
partnership established under the laws of the PRC on February 19,
2020 and a Pre-IPO Investor

BILEBECEXERAREE (ARERE) - —KN2020F2 19 RE
PEUEER N EREECERERAAREERNRES

refers to International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board

EfF e AR E SR Mma (R BRELR]) - BT R2E

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are not connected
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) with any Directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders (within the meaning of
the Listing Rules) of our Company, its subsidiary or any of their
respective associates

HARE  AMBARIMEMES  FETHRAEXTERR (EER
(ETAAD) KEEZENEMHEARERE(EER(ETHRAD)
HEMEA KA A

key opinion leaders, who are professionals that influence their peers’
medical practice, including but not limited to prescribing behavior
FREZR  RYRTHEBRER (BRETRREFTR) EETEN
BEEAL

left atrial appendage, a long, narrow and curved blind-end structure
extending forward and downward along the anterior wall of the left
atrium, which has active diastolic and secretory functions

EOE - HAEOERAIERA TEHRAORE - B EmnEE - BF
FBEF MR TN Y



[Lepu India]

“Lepu Medical”

“Lepu Medical Group”

"Lepu Shanghai"

“Listing Rules’
[ EmRAD]

“Main Board”

“Model Code”
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LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Private Limited, a company
limited shares incorporated on April 30, 2016 in India and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Private Limited © —ZX 201644
AB0REEFMKZNBRMNERAR - REEBENE2EMB LA

Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (£4%& (it R)E &
MM AR ATF]), a company listed on the ChiNext Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300003, one of our
controlling shareholders

L% () BESWMBROHBRAR - —KNRIEHFZZMEIER L
mHI AR (B8 © 300003) - a#&&%z

Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries
LR NENEAR

Lepu Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (%% (/)8R 8%
WA AT, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
March 1, 2016, and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical
ﬂ“ﬂrﬁ>g ERWMARAF - —KNR2016F3 A1 BRFBIRKH
BRAT  REEBENIE2ENB AT

the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
November 8, 2022
MRDP20224F 11 A8 A RER R FT IR £

November 8, 2022, being the date on which the Shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

2022%F 11 A8H  BIARRE R IREBEZFTER A B HA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B prad s EmARRD

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
Bt P E R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
HNCETABDMERCINC EMBEITAERETEF X HHIREST
1)
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LEORBERE (L8) ROBRAHE

Definitions
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“Ningbo Jiadu”

“‘NMPA”

[BIREEES |

“PBOC”
[ B ARRTT]

“PDA”

[ EHARE & AR
“PFO”

[Pl LA

“PRC” or “China”

[H = ]

“Pre-IPO Investors”
[BXAAAEENRES]
“Prospectus”

[ B ETE

"Relevant Activities"

[BRAES

Ningbo Jiadu Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (ERFETPEERAREE(BRAER)), a limited liability
partnership established on February 22, 2021 in the PRC and the
shareholding platform for our employees
ERRECEEREARCE(AREY)  —KKR2021F2H22 ARNH
B HEREGZEE - AERMEENFRTS

the National Medical Products Administration of the PRC (BX
BEGESEEIRE), formerly known as the China Food and Drug
Administration

FHREREGEEEER BRI REREMNESETERR

the People’s Bank of China
FEIARIRTT

patent ductus arteriosus, a remnant opening of the ductus
arteriosus, which fails to close normally in one year after birth
BRGERE  HE—FRIDAREEFHANBIKEENEE REH

patent foramen ovale, a remnant opening of the fetal foramen ovale,
which fails to close normally in one year after birth
IPEIFLARR - HAE—FRIAREEFRHE R ZINEFLEEE AR

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and
Taiwan

REARAME - ABEMS - TEESDS  RFIFITHRERE

the pre-IPO investors, namely Vivo Capital Fund IX, Sequoia Capital
China Growth, SHC, Huaihua Haozhi and CDH Supermatrix, details
of which are set out in the Prospectus

BXAFMBERKRESE - BVivo Capital Fund IX * Sequoia Capital
China Growth * L/ B % - 1Z(LESE K CDH Supermatrix » 715
HNBRER

the prospectus issued by the Company on October 27, 2022 in
connection with the Hong Kong public offering of the Shares

KRATHEBAFRBEERMDN2022F10 A27 H T BARS 2

research and development, registration and manufacturing activities
relating to the Entrusted Products (to the extent that the then
applicable PRC laws and regulations prohibits us from carrying out
such activities), details of which are set out in the Prospectus
HEERFEEMABONE  TMAEERD (MEERAEANTBIERE
MBI RMETZFADRGRIN) - FHEHENERER



“Reporting Period”
[ ¥R E7]

“Retained Lepu Medical Group”

[BR TR EEREE )

“RMB”
[ARE]

“Sequoia Capital China Growth”

[ Sequoia Capital China
Growth |

“SFO”

[(EHRHEER)]

“Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy”

[ BB REEIE a2 M#H]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3R

“Shares”

[ A&7 ]

“SHC”

[ FiEEY e L]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B2 Fir ]

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
EX:3 e
“Supervisor(s)”

(%]
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for the year ended December 31, 2023
HE2023F12A31ALFE

Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries, excluding our Group
BEBRERAMBAR  TEEAEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
HEAEEEBARE

SCC Growth VI Holdco AF, Ltd., an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on April
12, 2021 and a Pre-IPO Investor

SCC Growth VI Holdco AF, Ltd. * —K/2021F4 A 12 BRIEF S8
EEEFAMKINEREBER AT RERAAHBENREE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BEBEDNESTI E(BFREBEO) - ETREF] - fiFmsk A M
NS

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co., Ltd.* (EBFMEIEE &M E
BT, a limited liability company established under the laws
of the PRC on May 5, 1994 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

EBERERBESMBBERRAF - —RMW1994F5 A5 AREHEIERE
MW ERRAR @ BEAREINEZEWB AT

holder(s) of Share(s)
RAEFEE A

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a par
value of RMB1.00 each
RAFRAFFREBEARE1.007TH E B

Shanghai Healthcare Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (&=
BENBEEZREREESERLEERER)), a limited liability
partnership established under the laws of the PRC on October 28,
2020 and a Pre-IPO Investor

FTHEYBHEEEREREESEREE (AREX) - —KN20204F
10 H28 BIRIBHRENEEX UM AREBEERBRAARABEENRES

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARHMARRAT]

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules

BB (EMARAD T &R %E

the supervisor(s) of our Company
PN
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“Target Medical”

[ Rt AN |

"TAVR"

al
i
il
}_H,
o
=
i
B

[4

“TMVR”

[TMVR]

“TMVr-F”

[TMVr-F

“TMVCRS”

[TMVCRS

“US$” or “USD”

E

Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd.* (It RKMFIHFEl
RABRAF), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
November 18, 1999 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical,
one of the controlling shareholders of the Company
IERRMABEFZBR AR - —KMW1999F 11 A18 BEH B 2 &)
ERAF] BARRERRE s —RETBENZENBAR

transcatheter aortic valve replacement, a catheter-based technique
to implant a new aortic valve in a minimally invasive procedure
that does not involve open-chest surgery to correct severe aortic
stenosis

KEEFHMBERN - —BEEREENRN - BB TP RFABFI
R AI F T AT EEIRIE - A EREMN EBIRITRE

transcatheter mitral valve repair, which provides a newer, minimally
invasive option for treating the most common form of mitral valve
leakage for people who cannot undergo open-heart surgery. It
is implanted via a tri-axial transcatheter technique and involves
suturing together the anterior and posterior mitral valve leaflets
RBE _RMEEN  REEEIOHEERFNOARGERERNC
KEZREET —EEH  MEEE - - BR-WHRGERIMETE
A BIE#E ZRBEAERE

transfemoral mitral valve clip repair, a catheter-based technique
to repair the mitral valve in an interventional therapy that does not
involve open-chest surgery

IR — R RAEEN - —BERGENRM - MENAABRTEES
ES kS

transapical mitral valve repair system (chordal), a catheter-based
system with two configurations, one enabling artificial mitral chordae
implantation and the other enabling edge-to-edge chordae repair
RORZRMEBRR (BRR)  —BEENSEEAGMERENR
g —BERATI-_SRRREA 5 BERGHERREE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America

KXBAEE®RET
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“Vivo Capital Fund IX” Vivo Capital Fund IX, L.P., a limited partnership established under
the laws of Delaware of the United States on March 12, 2018 and a
Pre-IPO Investor

[Vivo Capital Fund IX] ¥  Vivo Capital Fund IX, L.P. » —RK1N20184 3 A 12 BRIEE B R ZE M
ERKINBREBEERERAREERNIRES

“VSD” ventricular septal defect, a defect, or a hole, in the septum
between the left and right ventricles of the heart, which may lead to
abnormal blood circulation and pulmonary hypertension and other
complications in severe cases

[ Z= el Frs R AE | ¥ EERRE - DRLAEOENRENRIESIVUE - BEE TSR
TRABIR R 5 K i Bh AR 1= JBE LA K2 HL Ath fF 35 AE

“%" per cent
[%] i Bkt

# For identification purposes only # EHE 5

The Company is a registered non-Hong Kong company as defined * KRG FMAEEEOEE225 (L a]lE

under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of IV EERIEEH NG LB EE
Hong Kong) and it is registered under its Chinese name and REXEH[LEPU ScienTech Medical
under the English name “LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. | i##F °

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.”.
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

LEORBERE (L8) ROBRAHE

Corporate Information

DNFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Director
Ms. Chen Juan (Chairwoman)

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yuxin (redesignated on March 1, 2024)

Mr. Fu Shan
Mr. Zheng Guorui

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa
Mr. Zheng Yufeng
Mr. Liu Daozhi

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Wang Xinglin
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong
Mr. Qian Weidong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Zheng Guorui
Mr. Zheng Yufeng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairperson)
Ms. Chen Juan

Mr. Fu Shan

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Liu Daozhi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairperson)
Mr. Zheng Guorui

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa
Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi

BRigw+ (BEFR)
FHUITES

RET L+ (R2024E3 51 HHE)

Hlsea
BMEFTE

BYFHITES

REEXLT
BRIELE
El el

EE

FEMEE
FTHRELXL
EATREL

FirEAE

BBt (/E)
BMEFTE
BRIELE

FHERE

BRELE (FE)
RBLZ L
Hlses
REEXL
ElERSiaa

REERE

BRIG2 L (X&)
BMEFTE
REEXL
BRIELE
E el e



JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qin Xue
Ms. Ko Mei Ying (appointed on July 18, 2023)
Ms. Ng Ka Man (resigned on July 18, 2023)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Chen Juan
Ms. Ko Mei Ying (appointed on March 1, 2024)
Ms. Zhang Yuxin (resigned on March 1, 2024)

LEGAL ADDRESS IN THE PRC

Room 201

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

ADDRESS OF HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

1/F, 5/F

Building 41

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road
Songjiang District
Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

5/F, Manulife Place
348 Kwun Tong Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditor

22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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BEARRE

SEHELL (R2023F7 H 18 HEZ L)
REZL+ (R2023%E7 /518 AFF)

SEaE

PRIB 2T+
BEHELL (R2024FE3 51 HEZ(F)
SRET L+ (R2024%E3 5 1 HEFHF)

oR Bl & TE i 4k
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=i
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201 %
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=i
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
EOREBRENE (£8) ROBRAFE

Corporate Information

DNFEH

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati
As to PRC law

Haiwen & Partners
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EEEHFEHE
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EEERBT
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Revenue increased by 31.6% from RMB247.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB325.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Gross profit increased by 31.5% from RMB219.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB288.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Research and development expenses increased by 14.3%
from RMB53.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to RMB61.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2023.

Net other income of RMB18.4 million was recorded for the
year ended December 31, 2023 as compared to net other
losses of RMB69.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2022.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of RMB151.5
million was recorded for the year ended December 31,
2023 as compared to a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB19.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

The non-IFRS adjusted net profit" increased by 55.4%
from RMB111.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to RMB172.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2023.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of RMBO0.57 per Share (tax inclusive) for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

Annual Report 2023
ZE=FRH

Financial Highlights
MBEE

WA BEE2022F12 A31 BILFEE
MARE247 7TE BT IN3T1.6%E
HZE2023F12 A1 HIEFEMAR
325 0H/ETT °

EFBEE2022F12 A31 BILFEE
MARB210.7EB T IMN31.5% =
HE2023F12A31HIEFEEHAR

e —

H288.8HBET °

MBEBERHREE2022F12 831 H
EFEMARBS3.98 & i
14.3% EHE2023F 12 A31 A ILE
ERARBG61.6EET °

HZE2023F 12 A31HILFEHBE
A RFEARKI18.4HETT M
HZE2022F12 A31HILFEHBE
thEEFEARKEISHET

HZE2023F12 A31 HILFEEBAR
NEER AEBEFIBARKE151.58
BT MEE2022F 12 A31 B 14
EHEARAEEARBEBEEAR
108 BB TT °

FE B PR B 755 o 5 2 R A S B A ) O
HZE2022F12A31HIEFEMA
REAIMABETIEINS5.4% 28 E
2023F 12 A31HIEFEHNARE
172.6B&ETT °

EEEBREH E2023F12A°
STHIFENREREERARE
0.57TT(EF) »
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
HELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Financial Highlights
MBERE

Notes:

M

(2)

Adjusted net profit which is unaudited, represents profit/(losses)
for the year after adding back (i) listing expenses, net of tax; (ii)
net foreign exchange losses from the retranslation of the USD-
denominated redemption liabilities; (iii) interest expense on
redemption liabilities; and (iv) share-based payment expenses. We
eliminate the impacts of these items that our management do not
consider to be indicative of our operating performance, as they
are either non-cash items or non-recurring expenses.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this report
have been subject to rounding. Accordingly, figures shown as
totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of
the figures preceding them. Any discrepancies in any table or
chart between the total shown and the sum of the amounts listed
are due to rounding.

Wit

B REEFTERHBATIEME AT
BIHBOFERTE (BB () LWHX
(Big) : (WBEMBREAXTHENELD
BEMSINERERFE  (NEDEEN
BRI  R(iv) AR RERO N KA
X BB ERERRERMMNEE
RETAETHNEENTEE  RER
HRFRE B IR R -

ARERBETBRELRAILEFED
o Fl - HETRBAF WA
BFHEHFHNFEMSREEEA D
A o EfRI R AR 3K B 3R AT 48 BUER AR 31 B
Mz BNERTINEMRE -




Dear Shareholders of ScienTech Medical,

First of all, on behalf of the Board, management and staff of
ScienTech Medical, | would like to extend my sincere greetings
with best wishes to our Shareholders and friends from all walks
of life.

Time flies, 2023 was the first full financial year of the Company
since its successful listing on the Stock Exchange in November
2022. With the philosophy of creating value for Shareholders,
while continuing to maintain the coordinated development of
research and development, production and sales, the Company
has strengthened its internal governance, refined and optimized
its internal operational processes and improved its management
quality, efficiency and effectiveness, which made the Company
achieve a new level in overall operational management.

In 2023, against the backdrop of global economic downturn,
slowdown in China’s domestic economic growth, insufficient
effective demand and downgrading of consumption in the
post-pandemic era, the financial results of the Company
still maintained a rapid and healthy growth. For the year
ended December 31, 2023, the Company achieved revenue
of RMB325.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 31.6% from the year ended December 31, 2022; profit
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB151.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023; non-IFRS adjusted
net profit of RMB172.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2023, representing a year-on-year increase of 55.4% from
the year ended December 31, 2022; net cash flow generated
from operating activities of RMB164.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 20283, representing a year-on-year
increase of 150.7% from the year ended December 31, 2022.
As of December 31, 2023, the total assets of the Group were
RMB1,986.5 million, representing an increase of 9.8% from the
beginning of the year, and the net assets were RMB1,926.7
million, representing an increase of 10.4% from the beginning
of the year. These positive financial results were hard-earned,
which benefited from the Company’s deep reserves of product
lines under research and strong commercialization capability,
and demonstrated the Company’ s good operational capabilities
and ability to combat risks.
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ESREE

With the spirit of “keep feet on the ground, strive for pioneering
and innovation and forge ahead” and with a global vision, the
Company insisted on innovation-driven direction and win-win
cooperation, and continued to develop, produce and sell
structural heart disease interventional medical devices with
independent intellectual property rights. Meanwhile, on the
basis of years of in-depth development in CHD devices, we
timely and prudently researched and developed medical devices
in other sub-divisions of structural heart disease, continuously
strengthened, supplemented and enriched our product lines,
and gradually sought development and breakthroughs in the
horizontal and vertical dimensions of heart disease medical
devices.

Following the MemoSorb® full-degradable occluder systems
independently developed by the Company approved by
the NMPA in February 2022, another innovative product
independently developed by the Company, the Biodegradable
MemoSorb® PFO Occluder was also approved by the NMPA
in September 2023. Both of the innovative products were
the world’s first approved and successfully commercialized
degradable occluder systems in their respective sub-areas.
These products, including the degradable LAA occluder,
which is under research and is expected to be certified, were
the major achievements of the Company in implementing the
philosophy of “No Implantation for Intervention”. We would
like to maximize the application of the technologies related to
biodegradable materials in the field of structural heart disease,
and also achieve the best quality of products in terms of
research and development technology, product design, and
production process, in order to better serve the majority of
patients and surgeons.

After the Company’s third generation CHD occluder, the
MemoCarna® oxide coating single-rivet occluder products
had been gradually approved for the market in the second
half of 2020, with two years of continuous marketing efforts,
the annual sales of the product in 2023 represented a
year-on-year increase of more than 50% from 2022, surpassed
the Company’s first generation CHD MemoPart® single-rivet
occluder for the first time and has become the mainstay of the
CHD occluders business segment, which also demonstrated
the Company’s superb ability to implement product iteration
strategy. Since the Company’s fourth generation CHD occluder,
the MemoSorb® full-degradable occluder system was approved
for the market in early 2022, it has successfully carried out
clinical applications in various domestic hospitals, and achieved
good sales results in 2023. This innovative medical solution for
children with CHD was highly recognized.
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In the cardioembolic stroke prevention field, the Company’s
second generation MemoSorb® biodegradable PFO occluder
product was approved for the market by the NMPA in
September 2023, which enabled the Company to successfully
enter the adult occluder market. The PFO surgeries have a
larger market and better market prospects coupled with the
Company’s innovative biodegradable material technology,
the product has gained widespread attention and popularity
in the market upon their launch, and has achieved excellent
sales results in the early stage of product commercialization,
thus becoming another blockbuster product of the Group in
the implementation of the philosophy of “No Implantation for
Intervention”. The Company’s another important application
of the biodegradation technology, Bio-Lefort® biodegradable
LAA occluder product candidate has successfully completed
its pre-clinical type inspection stage and animal test stage
as planned and officially entered the stage of multi-center
clinical trial enrollment. The Company has gradually developed
a competitive landscape of product gradient research and
development and multi-product portfolio in the cardioembolic
stroke prevention field.

In the heart valve product line field, the Company’s
ScienCrown® TAVR system has been successfully completed
its clinical trial enrolment and follow-up as planned and we
have submitted a registration application to the NMPA at the
end of 2023. The product has a number of clinical technical
advantages, which could address the pain points of clinical
demand in an optimal manner and greatly shorten the surgeon’s
learning curve, thus bringing a new standard of care to patients
and providing a better clinical experience in valve performance
and prognosis. The product is expected to be approved
for marketing in the fourth quarter of 2024. After product is
approved for marketing, through differentiated competition
method, the Company expects that it will bring safer and better
products to clinical-end and also bring better sales results to
the Company. After years of dedicated research and technology
accumulation, the Company has formed a number of technology
platforms in the heart valve product line field and gradually
completed and enriched the layout of the product line, which
greatly changed the competitive layout of the Company in the
field of structural heart disease.
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At present, the medium-to-long-term strategy of “innovation,
consumption, internationalization, integration, efficiency
improvement and steady development” has become a
consensus among all parties of the Company. The Company
has established a layout of gradient product lines of existing
products, products under research and products under
planning which will maintain and further enhance the Company’s
technological leadership and market dominance in the field
of structural heart diseases, thereby ensuring the Company’s
medium and long-term sustainable and rapid development.
Currently, the Company is actively exploring overseas markets
for multiple products and carrying out overseas registration
of innovative products. In particular, we are actively planning
the overseas layout of biodegradable occluder series products
to accelerate the commercialization process of our innovative
products in overseas markets. As a domestic top manufacturer
in the field of structural heart diseases, we will gradually
participate in the competition in overseas markets. In the future,
relying on its strong research and development strength and
excellent capabilities of marketing and rapid commercialization,
the Company will dare to be a pioneer and strive to break
through to consolidate the domestic market and steadily move
toward a broader global market with a view to implementing the
internationalization strategy.

Finally, | would like to thank all Shareholders, investors and
partners for their continued concern and support. For a
grander sight, a higher level. In 2024, we will capitalize on the
era, continue to move forward with determination, broaden
our product line layout and accelerate the commercialization
and globalization of innovative products to serve patients with
better products, serve surgeons with more professional medical
solutions, lead the development of the domestic industry, inject
strong energy into the high-quality development of the industry
and create greater value for Shareholders of the Company!

Chen Juan
Chairwoman and Executive Director

March 28, 2024
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As a pioneer and domestic leading supplier in the structural
heart disease interventional medical devices industry in China,
we have been focusing on the research and development,
manufacture and commercialization of structural heart disease
interventional medical devices. We are successfully practicing
degradability based on the proven operations of traditional
metal medical devices, exploring the frontier fields of the
atrial septal puncture, cardiac mechanical circulatory support
and other medical devices, and committed to providing safe,
effective, innovative and comprehensive medical solutions.

As of the date of this report, we had a total of 22 marketed
occluders and accessory products, 9 products under
registration review and preparation for registration, and
24 product candidates in various stages of research and
development such as occluders, heart valves and procedural
accessories and mechanical circulatory support. The following
chart summarizes the development status of our product
portfolio up to the date of this report:
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Product

Pre-clinical Clinical Trial Registration  Commercialization

Patent ductus

MemoPart®
PDA occluder (Double-rivet)

Commercialized

MemoPart®
PDA occluder (Single-rivet)

Commercialized

arteriosus
“PDA" . .
( ) Commercialized
occluder MemoCarna®
Oxide coating PDA occluder
review in progress
Patent PFO Occluder (Double-rivet/Single-rivet)
foramen MemoSorb® . .
ovale (“PFO") Biodegradable PFO occluder * Commercialized
S e | Massdinial g
Bioabsorbable PFO Occluder
Left a(‘;rlal LAA occluder system S
appendage Bio-Lefort®
cuanocduder | ot e K | D
Biodegradable aortic occluder Design stage
Aortic and
peripheral Embolization occluder Design stage
occluders
Peripheral hydrogel spring coil Design stage
ScienCrown® NMPA registration review in progress
Transcatheter aortic valve
replacement (“TAVR") system CE animal tests
ScienMelon®
Avrtificial heart valve with polymer * m
Aortic valve leaflets for transcatheter implantation
products ScienChute® .
Transcatheter aortic valve stenosis therapy system| [ LWL
ScienChute® .
Pulsed acoustical generator Design stage
Transcatheter aortic valve system
(regurgitation indication TAVR) m
MemoChord® Transapical mitral valve
repair system (chordal) (“TMVCRS")
MemoClip-A® Transapical mitral valve
Mitral valve clip repair (“TMVr-A") system * Mass clinical

MemoClip-F® Transfemoral mitral valve
clip repair (“TMVr-F") system

preparation stage

Transcatheter mitral valve
replacement (“TMVR") system
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Atrial septal
puncture and
procedural
accessories

RF-Lance®
Radiofrequency puncture devices

Pre-clinical Clinical Trial Registration  Commercialization

NMPA registration review in progress

*
RF-Lance®

Disposable radiofrequency atrial *
septal puncture needles

NMPA registration review in progress

Disposable atrial septal
puncture system

NMPA registration review in progress

MemoPart®
Interventional delivery system

Commercialized

GuiBend®
Integrated interventional delivery system

Commercialized

CE registration review in progress

GuiFinder® Occluder delivery system

Commercialized

GuiFlex®
Integrated interventional delivery sheath

Commercialized

Gruiser® Interventional delivery system

Commercialized

G-Cruiser®
Interventional delivery system

Commercialized

MemoPart® Snare

Commercialized

Multiple-loop Snare

Commercialized

SimoMelon® Balloon dilatation
catheter for aortic valve

*

NMPA registration review in progress

Disposable introducing sheath

Commercialized

Thrombus protection device

preparation stage

StarCross® Disposable delivery sheath

Preparation for registration materials

Vascular closure device system

Animal test

Transvalvular guide wires

NMPA registration review in progress

Super stiff guidewire

Preparation for registration materials
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Product Pre-clnical Clinical Trial Registration  Commercialization
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Note:
*: Key projects of the Company

The business segments of the Company maintained a sound
development trend, achieving stable growth in its revenue. For
the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company achieved
revenue of RMB325.9 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 31.6% from the year ended December 31, 2022;
profit attributable to owners of the Company of RMB151.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2023; non-IFRS
adjusted net profit of RMB172.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, representing a year-on-year increase of
55.4% from the year ended December 31, 2022; net cash flow
generated from operating activities of RMB164.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023, representing a year-on-year
increase of 150.7% from the year ended December 31, 2022.
As of December 31, 2023, the total assets of the Group were
RMB1,986.5 million, representing an increase of 9.8% from the
beginning of the year, and the net assets were RMB1,926.7
million, representing an increase of 10.4% from the beginning of
the year.
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CHD Occluder Products

As at the date of this report, the Group owned 10 commercially
available CHD occluder products, among which, MemoCarna®
Ill oxide coating single-rivet occluder series products have fast
become the backbone of the CHD occluder products business
after its approval for marketing in 2020. The MemoSorb® IV
fully-degradable occluder systems have been also rapidly
commercialized and become the Group’s flagship product
in the CHD field upon its approval for marketing in 2022.
Leveraging on the long-term technology accumulation, the rapid
growth trend of the Group’s business has been established
through technology upgrading, products iteration and original
technology. This is the cornerstone for us to maintain our
leading position in the field of CHD interventional therapy and to
continue to drive.

In line with our philosophy of “No Implantation for Intervention”,
the Group continued to promote the research and development
of biodegradable technology. Our fourth generation MemoSorb®
biodegradable ASD occluder product candidate has completed
its clinical trial stage, registration application of which has been
submitted to the NMPA for approval in June 2023 and which
is expected to receive the approval from the NMPA and be
commercialized in the second quarter of 2024.
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PFO and LAA Occluder Products

Our first generation cardioembolic stroke prevention products,
being LAA and PFO occluder products, were successfully
commercialized in 2020 and 2012, respectively.

QOur second generation cardioembolic stroke prevention
product candidates have applied our biodegradable technology
creatively, of which, the second generation MemoSorb®
biodegradable PFO occluder product was approved by
the NMPA in September 2023. The PFO surgeries have a
larger market and better market prospects coupled with the
Company’s innovative biodegradable material technology, these
products have gained widespread attention and popularity in
the market upon their launch, and have achieved excellent
sales results in the early stage of product commercialization,
thus becoming another blockbuster product of the Group in
the implementation of the philosophy of “No Implantation for
Intervention”. The Company’s another important application of
the biodegradation technology, Bio-Lefort® biodegradable LAA
occluder product candidate has successfully completed its pre-
clinical type inspection stage and animal test stage as planned
and officially entered the stage of multi-center clinical trial
enrollment.
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Heart Valve Product Candidates

The Company’s products in heart valve field mainly covered
aortic valve and mitral valve products. Our ScienCrown®
TAVR system has been successfully completed its clinical trial
enrolment and follow-up as planned and we have submitted
a registration application to the NMPA at the end of 2028.
ScienCrown® valve has distinct structural differences from the
previously marketed self-expanding valve and balloon dilation
valve. As a short stent self-expanding valve, it is featured with
smooth pre-bending over the arch, release coaxial, stable
expansion, good support and 100% recovery under working
condition of artificial valve, etc., which could address the pain
points of clinical demand in an optimal manner and greatly
shorten the surgeon’s learning curve, thus bringing a new
standard of care to patients and providing a better clinical
experience in valve performance and prognosis. The product
is expected to be approved for marketing in the fourth quarter
of 2024. After product is approved for marketing, through
differentiated competition method, the Company expects that
it will bring safer and better products to clinical-end and also
generate greater revenue to the Company, which will greatly
change the competitive layout of the Company in the field
of structural heart disease. In addition, we are developing
a transcatheter implantable aortic valve system for patients
with simple aortic regurgitation. The product adds a clamped
positioning design to the valve based on the prototype
of ScienCrown® TAVR system which is suitable for dual
indications of valvular insufficiency and stenosis, and adds
a bending function based on the pre-bending feature of the
original delivery system to improve operational performance
of clamped positioning design. The product has been tested
for physical performance, hydrodynamic performance and
simulation performance, and animal tests of the product are
going on. It planned to carry out clinical trials in 2025. Our
transapical mitral valve clip system is currently in the final stage
of clinical trial enrollment with satisfactory follow-up results.
We will accelerate the progress of subsequent clinical trial
enrolment and we plan to submit a registration application to
the NMPA in the first half of 2024. We conducted independent
innovation and optimization in the product design and also
drew on the extensive experience from clinicians in respect
of transcatheter mitral valve clip system, enabling the design
and performance of the product much more acclimated to
China patients and the usage habits of China physicians. It is
currently in the pre-clinical preparation stage and is about to
initiate the clinical trials. Our self-developed TMVR system has
completed the implantation in the animal and the follow-up of 6
months after surgery, with satisfactory results, and it is about to
progress into the stage of type inspection simultaneously.
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Mechanical Circulatory Support Products

The Company has expanded into the field of mechanical
circulatory support (“MCS”) devices, which are designed to
provide temporary or long-term support to patients requiring
cardiac assisted power. The portfolio of our MCS device
product line covers both short- and long-term products, which
are designed to assist or replace the pumping function of
the ventricles. The portfolio of our MCS device product line
includes transcatheter ventricular support system, high-risk
percutaneous coronary interventions (“PCI”) ventricular support
system, expandable trochanteric ventricular support system and
wholeheart support system. In particular, the transcatheter left
ventricular support system suitable for left ventricular support
is in the pre-clinical type inspection stage, and animal tests are
going on; small diameter transcatheter left ventricular support
system and high-risk PCI coronary protection left ventricular
support system for patients requiring low-flow support or high-
risk PCI patients will progress into the stage of type inspection
in the near future. The Company is an early pioneer in the field
of MCS in the PRC, which is still emerging in the PRC with a
bright market prospect. With the Company’s profound research
and development capability and technology accumulation in
active medical device field, the Company is confident that it will
become one of the most core and valuable participants in the
field, and will continue to provide cardiac patients with the most
optimal medical solutions.
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Pathway Products

Pathway products mainly include CHD occluder products and
procedural accessories for heart valve, and also include atrial
septal radiofrequency puncture product candidates and others.

The atrial septal radiofrequency puncture product has been
filed for registration in the PRC in 2023 and is expected to be
approved for marketing in the first half of 2024. The approval
of the product will further enrich the Company’s product lines,
making the Company one of the major suppliers with the most
comprehensive product lines in the field of structural heart
disease.

Occluders and accessory products are an important component
parts of occlusion surgery. As at the date of this report, the
Group has owned 9 commercially available occluder related
procedural accessories, and in line with the increasing
commercialization level of occluder products, the accessory
products have also achieved considerable revenue. Our Snare |
product has obtained a registration certificate and list for sale in
the second half of 2023.

The Company owned 6 types of valve related procedural
accessories, including, among others, balloon dilatation catheter
for aortic valve, super stiff guidewire, thrombus protection
device and vascular closure device system. In particular, the
balloon dilatation catheter for aortic valve has been filed for
registration to the NMPA at the end of 2023, and is expected
to be approved for marketing in the second half of 2024; the
super stiff guidewire has obtained the type inspection and
biological reports, is in the process of preparation of registration
information, will be submitted for registration in the second
quarter of 2024 and is expected to be approved for marketing
at the end of 2024; we have completed the product’'s R&D
design and inspection for vascular closure device system
with innovative design structure, which can reduce vascular
complications and provide physicians with excellent ease-to-use
experience. It is currently in the stage of animal tests, and plans
to be filed for registration in the second half of 2024.
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Hypertensive Device Treatment Products

So far, pulmonary hypertension (“PH”) is a progressive and
incurable disease caused by pulmonary vascular structural or
functional changes as a result of a variety of heterogeneous
diseases (etiology) and different pathogenesis which will cause
the clinical and pathophysiological syndromes of pulmonary
vascular resistance and higher pulmonary arterial pressure
and patients who have severe consequences will develop into
right heart failure and even death. PH is a common disease
that seriously jeopardizes the lives and health of patients, the
survival time of patients with PH can be significantly improved
through standardized etiological treatments and aggressive
targeted drug therapy. The Company has completed the
development and design of pulmonary artery radiofrequency
ablation catheter, and it is expected to carry out animal tests
and type inspection in the second half of 2024. In addition, in
terms of device for the treatment of refractory hypertension,
we also have developed an ultrasonic greater splanchnic
nerve ablation catheter product. Currently, the Company has
completed R&D and design of the product and animal tests are
going on. It is expected to carry out type inspection in the third
quarter of 2024.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, we will continue to be committed to provide
safe, effective, innovative and comprehensive medical solutions
for patients with structural heart disease and cardiac circulatory
disorder by adhering to the corporate mission of “shape better
lives with heartfelt care” (/0 B3I, BBLHTAE).

We will continue to develop new technologies and focus on
the core technologies and product development targeting
structural heart diseases to enrich our product portfolio to
cover a full range of treatment options for various field of
structural heart disease. Furthermore, we will continue to
promote technology in a number of aspects, including design
and concept innovation, material innovation, structural design
innovation, production process optimization, to further enhance
the innovation, functionality and reliability of our products.
Meanwhile, we firmly believe that biodegradable technology is
one of the important technology applications for medical device
products in the future, and will greatly drive the overall upgrade
and transformation of the medical device industry as widely
applied to our occluder product and other product candidates,
which positions us well to capitalize on the significant market
opportunities, to further explore existing market and expand into
incremental market.

In the CHD interventional devices field, we will leverage our
established market advantages to continue to increase the
speed of iteration of our innovative products and drive rapid
business growth. Meanwhile, we will also continue to promote
the research and development process of our biodegradable
occluder product candidates.
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In the cardioembolic stroke prevention field, we will explore the
research and development of new PFO occlude products and
LAA occlude products, while we will continue to promote the
commercialization of our marketed products. In particular, the
biodegradable PFO product has achieved satisfactory sales
results in a relatively short period after approved for marketing
in 2023. The Company will further enhance interaction and
communication with surgeons, strengthen marketing promotion,
and endeavor to broaden its sales channels in terms of depth
and breadth, with a view to further opening up the market for
the product in 2024, so as to enable more patients to enjoy
the quality experience and convenience brought by innovative
medical device products through surgical treatments.We
believe, upon application of the biodegradable technology to
such field, we are well positioned to capitalize on and share
the significant potential in the fast-growing and low-penetration
domestic market and enable more doctors and patients to
enjoy our innovative products and quality services by leveraging
our early-mover advantages, excellent product features, and
well-established sales channels, which will put us in a superior
market competitive position in such field.
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In the valve stenosis and reflux therapy field, we will rely on
our existing technology platform for valve products, further
consolidate and strengthen our technological advantages,
continue to promote concept of “Tool Box”, and focus on the
development of valve products with great medical demand
and promising market while covering the full product line of
valves. Among them, we will accelerate the progress of R&D
of the TMVr-F system and the TMVR system for the treatment
of mitral valve regurgitation disease, in order to achieve full
coverage of mitral valve disease treatment and address the
increasing clinical demand from patients and physicians. We will
accelerate the advancement of iterative new products based on
ScienCrown® transcatheter aortic valve system for Conformité
Européenne (“CE”) Certificate registration clinical trials, the
special dry valve of such iterative products, upon processing
by adopting the self-developed technology, has the advantages
of stronger anti-calcification ability, better hemodynamic
effect and longer service life. In addition, we will accelerate
the research and development of the surgically implantable
sutureless heart valve, which is already in type inspections and
animal tests stage. We are also developing a transcatheter
implantable aortic valve system for patients with simple aortic
regurgitation. These two aortic valve products complement the
ScienCrown® transcatheter aortic valve replacement system
to provide optimal treatment for patients with different types
of TAVR disease. Our artificial heart valve with polymer leaflets
for transcatheter implantation uses durable and stable polymer
materials instead of pericardium material to make leaflets to
further improve the durability and biocompatibility of the artificial
heart valve. Currently, we have completed the follow-ups and
information collection within six months after implantation and
surgery in animals, which presented promising results. In-vitro
durability tests have been completed for more than 200 million
times. If the testing targets of valve are in good condition, such
products will progress into the stage of type inspection soon.
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Cardiac mechanical circulatory support is a life support
technology, and has become an important “bridge” treatment
for patients with acute cardiac event and end-stage heart failure
after decades of development, which also has more extensive
clinical application. It is estimated that 13.7 million patients in
China and more than 64 million patients globally suffered from
cardiac underpower, and about 50% of them will die within
five years after diagnosis. The global market scale of MCS
devices is expected to grow at a compound annual growth
rate of 10% or above from 2021 to 2028, with a market value
expected to reach USD3.4 billion in 2025. The Company, as
a cardiovascular intervention medical devices company with
strong spirit of technological innovation, has been dedicated to
expanding into the blue ocean market of MCS and protective
PCI. The Company is developing a series of product candidates,
which may help patients, after marketing, improve their quality
of life and survival rate. Meanwhile, as a multidisciplinary
composite technology, such products will fully demonstrate our
technological accumulation, ensure that the Company continues
to seize the technological highland in medical devices field,
and ensure the progressive development of the Company’s
future product lines and the sustainable development of the
Company’s business.

In the structural cardiology pathway products field, we are
developing and producing a number of products, and two
pathway products have obtained certificates during the
Reporting Period. In particular, the Company is one of the
early developers of our vascular closure device candidates,
and there is no vascular closure device approved for marketing
in the PRC. It is estimated that the market size of vascular
closure devices in the PRC will have a greater growth, with
aortic valve intervention technology being the most mature
market development and the largest number of patients being
those with mitral regurgitation. The market for mitral valve
and tricuspid valve interventions will gradually expand, and
the demand for large-caliber vascular closure devices will also
increase in line with the technology development. The Company
will accelerate the research and development of vascular
occluder device products to meet and lead the market demand.
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The transseptal procedures is one of the key techniques in
cardiac intervention therapy. Compared with traditional puncture
techniques, radiofrequency puncture has higher success rate
and safety, and the learning curve of surgeons is short, so such
products are expected to quickly complete the replacement
of mechanical needles. Currently, the transseptal procedures
has been used for mitral valve repair, LAA occluder, and other
procedures to obtain left heart access by transfemoral access.
According to the statistics, there are more than 300,000
surgeries using puncture techniques in the United States every
year, and the potential treatment population in China is more
than 10 million with an extra low penetration rate. The domestic
market for such surgery has yet to be further developed with
a considerable market prospect in the future. At present, no
radiofrequency puncture products are approved for marketing
in China, and the application for registration as well as research
and development of our radiofrequency atrial septal puncture
system of the Company are in the advanced position. It is
expected to be approved for marketing in the first half of 2024,
which will enable the Company to enter into the new market
in the field of structural heart disease at a rapid pace. Such
product is expected to win a new blue ocean market for the
Company and become a pillar product in the product lines of
the pathway products.

We will strengthen our marketing team building, explore
potential marketing channels, continue to expand our sales
network in China and continue to build our good reputation and
word-of-mouth among doctors and patients. We will continue
to strive to promote product brand awareness and influence
in the industry and academia, to solidify and strengthen our
communication, exchange and interaction with research
institutions, hospitals, doctors and KOLs and obtain valuable
feedback from them, and will collect and dive deep into more
market data and information, continuously improve and optimize
the product design and production process and enhance the
service capability of the sales terminal, so as to better serve the
doctors and patients with better products and more considerate
sales service capability, and strive to become one of the
important leaders in marketing and sales service in the PRC.
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In terms of the overseas business, we will actively expand our
overseas sales channels with global insight. With a rigorous,
pragmatic and sincere attitude and way of working, we will
endeavor to explore the market potential of the existing
products and increase the market penetration of the existing
products, and build up a good international reputation of our
products, to enhance recognition of Chinese brands and made
in China in the global market. We will keep abreast with the
development trend, clinical demand and market competition
layout in overseas markets in a timely manner, and formulate a
plan for overseas clinical trial and registration in a reasonable
manner, to advance the commercialization process of innovative
products such as biodegradable occluder series and valve
series in overseas markets in due course, which is conducive
to a better and sustainable development of the Company’s
overseas business so as to better implement the Company’s
internationalization strategy.
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Our revenue is mainly derived from the sales of medical devices
through distributors and direct sales.

Our revenue increased by 31.6% from RMB247.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB325.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023. The following table sets forth
a breakdown of our revenues by major products for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2023.

CHD occluder products

- ASD occluder products
- VSD occluder products
- PDA occluder products

Pathway products

- Interventional delivery systems
- Snares

PFO and LAA occlude products

- PFO occlude products
- LAA occlude products

Other products

Total

FEREOEBEHERER
- ERRRBHERER
- ERRRBHERER
- PREEREIERED

BRBER
- HESN ABRKE
-BES
MEAARBRE D EHESER
— PR AREHERER
- ELEHBRER
A Em

ait

M OB

L' ON

BFIMBEA T EHRBERNBBEHEHE S
BRM R ERIHEERESEW

B ABREE2022912A31H 1t
FEMAREE247 7TEBTEMN31.6%E
HE2023F12A831BIEFENARKE
325.9B 8T ° TRHFIHEE2022F
2023F 12 AGIALFERMEETEER
Sl U A BRAE -

Year ended 31 December

BFE12RA31ALEE
2023 2022 Change
20234 20224 21

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTTRT % ARETR % %
230,199 70.6 182,661 73.7 26.0
174,303 53.5 136,169 55.0 28.0
34,459 10.6 28,540 1.5 20.7
21,437 6.5 17,952 7.2 19.4
66,550 20.4 53,709 21.7 239
45,449 13.9 35,808 145 26.9
21,101 6.5 17,901 7.2 17.9
28,980 8.9 11,059 4.5 162.0
22,728 7.0 5,605 2.3 305.5
6,252 1.9 5,454 2.2 14.6
167 0.1 241 0.1 -30.7
325,896 100.0 247 670 100.0 31.6
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CHD occluder products

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2023, a
majority of our revenue was generated from sales of CHD
occluder products. Revenue generated from sales of CHD
occluder products increased by 26.0% from RMB182.7 million
(representing 73.8% of sales revenue in the corresponding
period) for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB230.2
million (representing 70.6% of sales revenue in the
corresponding period) for the year ended December 31, 2023,
as we continued to grow our business. Revenue generated from
sales of CHD occluder products increased significantly, which
was primarily attributable to the increased sales volume of our
oxide-coated occluder products as they received broad market
recognition, such products primarily include MemoCarna® ASD
Occluder lll, MemoCarna® PDA Occluder Il and MemoCarna®
VSD Occluder lll. In addition, the sales revenue from fully
biodegradable occluder, i.e. MemoSorb® VSD Occluder IV, also
experienced substantial increase.

Among our CHD occluder products, revenue generated
from sales of ASD occluder products increased by 28.0%
from RMB136.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to RMB174.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2023, representing 55.0% and 53.5% of our revenue in the
corresponding periods, respectively. Revenue generated from
sales of ASD occluder products increased, which was primarily
attributable to an increase in revenue generated from sales of
MemoCarna® ASD Occluder Ill. Revenue generated from sales
of VSD occluder products increased by 20.7% from RMB28.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB34.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, representing
11.5% and 10.6% of our revenue in the corresponding periods,
respectively. Revenue generated from sales of PDA occluder
products increased by 19.4% from RMB18.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB21.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023, representing 7.2% and 6.6% of our
revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively.
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Pathway products

Revenue generated from sales of pathway products increased
by 23.9% from RMB53.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2022 to RMB66.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2023, respectively, representing 21.7% and 20.4% of our
revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively. Our pathway
products primarily include interventional delivery systems and
snares mainly related to CHD occluder products. Interventional
delivery system is the largest source of our revenue generated
from sales of pathway products. We also intend to gradually
introduced other occluder related procedural accessories and
heart valve related procedural accessories. The increase was
primarily attributable to an increase in the sales volume of our
various occluder products, and the sales volume of our related
procedural accessories increased accordingly.

PFO and LAA occluder products

Revenue generated from sales of PFO and LAA occluder
products increased by 162.0% from RMB11.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB29.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023, representing 4.5% and 8.9%
of our revenue in the corresponding periods, respectively. The
significant increase in revenue of these products was primarily
attributable to the successful market entry of our new product
biodegradable PFO occluders, resulting in sales revenue of
RMB14.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Other products

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2023, we
generated a small portion of our revenue from sales of other
products, primarily including vascular plug and products with
relatively low applicability or importance. For the year ended
December 31, 2022 and 2023, revenue generated from sales
of other products both accounted for 0.1% of our revenue,
respectively.
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Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by 32.5% from RMB28.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB37.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 20283. Our cost of sales primarily
consisted of (i) raw materials and consumables; (i) employee
benefit expense; (iii) amortization of intangible assets; (iv)
depreciation of property, plant and equipment; (v) transportation
costs; (vi) utilities and office expenses; and (vii) others.

The following table sets forth our cost of sales by nature in
absolute amounts and as percentages of our total cost of sales
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

HERMAE

HBMMEENAREE2022F12 A31H
HFEMARE28.068 THEM32.5%
EHE2023F12A31BILFEMARKE
3718 & BZMIWNBEEKAEEBIE()
BRI R RFEM  ()MREBMFEX : (i) EF
BESE (WVOE BEMIETE (v
EWHAA : (VAR EERBEAAY K&
(vii) EL A, ©
TEREYEE2023F £ 2022F12 H31H
IFFEREESDREERN (LBHS
BRI HERABENEDLIIR) ©

For the year ended December 31,

HE12B31ALEE
2023 2022 Change
20234 2022 -1id
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT % ARBETT % %

Raw materials and consumables R R R 14,608 39.4 8,086 28.9 80.7

Employee benefit expense EERFAX 10,856 29.3 9,217 32.9 17.8

Amortization of intangible assets EVEEEH 7,448 20.1 6,852 24.5 8.7
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% - BE R R ETE

equipment 1,595 4.3 1,461 5.2 9.2

Transportation costs BRI 1,220 3.3 1,336 48 -8.7

Utilities and office expenses INEESEJ58 UNGET 994 2.7 672 2.4 47.9

Others Hith 364 1.0 360 1.3 1.1

Total &kt 37,085 100.0 27,984 100.0 32.5
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Our raw materials and consumables costs mainly represent
nitinol products and sheathes and other metal and plastic
components used during the manufacturing process, which
increased by 80.7% from RMB8.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to RMB14.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, which was primarily attributable to the
general increase in sales volume of various products in 2023,
especially the significant increase of accessories (pathway
products) and oxide-coated products which have relevant high
material costs and other new series products, resulting the
significant increase of relevant material costs in 2023.

Our employee benefit expense increased by 17.8% from
RMB9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB10.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, which
was primarily attributable to the increase in output and sales
volume of various products in 2023, resulting in an increase in
our production employee benefit expense.

Our amortization of intangible assets increased by 8.7% from
RMB6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, which
was primarily attributable to the commencement of amortization
on the patents and medical device registration certificates
of certain products as they obtained their respective NMPA
approvals, resulting in an increase in our amortization of
intangible assets.

Our depreciation of property, plant and equipment increased
by 9.2% from RMB1.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2022 to RMB1.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2023, which was primarily attributable to the fact that the Group
acquired certain new equipment in line with the expansion
of production and sale scale, resulting in an increase in our
depreciation costs.

Our transportation costs decreased by 8.7% from RMB1.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB1.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023, which was primarily
attributable to a change in the Group’s logistics supplier which
offered lower prices.
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Our utilities and office expenses increased by 47.9% from
RMBO.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to
RMB1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, which
was primarily attributable to the concessions of certain property
rents and property management fees due to the regional
resurgence of COVID-19 in the first half of 2022, and no such
concessions and these charges were back to normal levels in
2023.

Qur other cost of sales primarily includes testing fees for
production environment and fees for sterilization, which
remained stable at RMBO0.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2023.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by 31.5% from RMB219.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB288.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 20283. The increase in our gross profit
was in line with the growth in our overall revenue. Our gross
profit margin remained basically stable at 88.7% and 88.6% for
the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Distribution expenses

Qur distribution expenses primarily consisted of (i) employee
benefits expense for our sales and marketing staff; (ii) marketing
fees; and (iii) travel expenses. Our distribution expenses
increased by 29.6% from RMB38.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022 to RMB50.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023, which was primarily attributable to (i) the
regional resurgence of COVID-19 in 2022, which was largely
under control in 2023, and resulting an increase in marketing
fees of RMB3.6 million and an increase in travel expenses of
RMB2.9 million due to an increase in offline market research,
marketing promotion and travel activities, and (ii) an increase of
RMB2.4 million in employee benefits expense.
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General and administrative expenses

Our general and administrative expenses primarily consisted
of (i) employee benefit expense for our administrative staff; (ii)
depreciation and amortization; (iii) office and miscellaneous
expenses;(iv) the listing expenses; and (v) professional service
fee. Our general and administrative expenses decreased by
20.2% from RMB53.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 to RMB42.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2028, which was primarily attributable to a decrease in listing
expenses of RMB20.4 million, partially offset by an increase in
professional service fee of RMB8.7 million, which was mainly
due to related expenses reflected in listing expenses in the
corresponding period last year.

Research and development expenses

Our research and development expenses consisted of (i)
employee benefit expense for our research and development
staff; (ii) products testing, pre-clinical trial and animals studies
fees; (iii) raw materials and consumables expenses; (iv)
depreciation;(v) utilities and office expenses; and (vi) other
expenses. Our research and development expenses increased
by 14.3% from RMB53.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2022 to RMB61.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2023, which was primarily attributable to an increase in
products testing, pre-clinical trial and animals studies fees of
RMB5.7 million, which was due to the relatively large number
of R&D projects for type inspection or animal studies in 2023
as compared with 2022; and an increase in other expenses of
RMB3.3 million, which was mainly attributable to an increase
in R&D-related travel expenses and training expenses in 2023
due to the regional resurgence of COVID-19 in 2022, which
was largely under effective control in 2023, partially offset by
a decrease in raw materials and consumables expenses of
RMB1.5 million.
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Net reversal/(provision) for impairment losses on financial
assets

Our net provision for impairment losses on financial assets
primarily represented impairment loss provision for the period
on trade receivable and other receivables. We had net reversal
of impairment losses on financial assets of RMB6.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2023, and net provision for
impairment losses on financial assets of RMB5.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to less provision
for credit losses recognised on trade receivables as a result
of the significant improvement in the collection of our trade
receivables in 2023 (while the collection was much impacted by
the COVID-19 situation in 2022).

Net other income and losses

Our other income and losses primarily consisted of: (i)
investment income on wealth management products; (ii)
government grants; (iii) rental income from investment
properties; (iv) exchange gains or losses; and (v) gains or losses
from fair value changes of financial assets. We had net other
income of RMB18.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2023, and a net other losses of RMB69.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022, which was primarily attributable
to a decrease in net foreign exchange losses recognized of
RMB76.4 million (primarily in relation to the retranslation of
redemption liabilities denominated in US$ in 2022), an increase
in government grants of RMB7.6 million and a decrease in fair
value losses on financial assets of RMB4.9 million.
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Net finance income/(costs)

Our net finance income/(costs) primarily consisted of (i) bank
interest income; (i) interest expense on lease liabilities; and (iii)
interest expense on redemption liabilities. We have net finance
costs of RMB13.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2022 and net finance income of RMB14.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023, which was primarily attributable to
the recognition of interest expense on redemption liabilities of
RMB18.7 million in 2022, and no relevant interest expense on
redemption liabilities for the Reporting Period as the Company
was successfully listed on the Stock Exchange where the
preferred rights granted to the Pre-IPO Investors were lapsed
and an increase in bank interest income of RMB9.2 million
primarily due to the increase in the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and fixed deposits.

Income tax expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by 355.2% from RMB4.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2022 to RMB21.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2023, which was
primarily attributable to the increase in taxable profit.

Net profit/(loss) for the year

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a net profit of
RMB151.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, as
compared to a net loss of RMB19.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The primary uses of cash are to fund the daily operations of the
business of the Group. For the year ended December 31, 2023,
the Group principally used cash generated from its operations,
financing activities and net proceeds from the Global Offering
to meet its demand of capital expenditures and working
capital. Going forward, the Company believes that its liquidity
requirements will be satisfied with a combination of cash flows
generated from our operating activities, bank loans and other
borrowings, and other funds raised from the capital markets
from time to time. As of December 31, 2023, the Group had not
used any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Cash flows

As of December 31, 2023, our cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in RMB, HK dollar, USD and Euro dollars.
Our total cash and cash equivalents increased by 28.3% from
RMB944.5 million as of December 31, 2022 to RMB1,212.0
million as of December 31, 2023, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in net cash generated from
operating activities of RMB98.7 million and the increase in net
cash generated from investing activities of RMB517.3 million,
partially offset by the decrease in net cash generated from
financing activities of RMB579.9 million, a combination of which
caused a net increase in cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the Reporting Period.

Borrowings

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, we had no outstanding
balance of borrowings or unutilized banking facilities.
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Net current assets

As of December 31, 2022 and 20283, our net current assets
amounted to RMB1,265.9 million and RMB1,356.4 million,
respectively. Our net current assets position as of December
31, 2022 and 2023 was mainly attributable to our inventories,
prepayments and other receivables, trade receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, short-term bank
deposits, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents,
partially offset by our trade and other payables, contract
liabilities, current income tax liabilities and lease liabilities due
within one year. The increase in our net current assets was
primarily attributable to an increase in bank deposits with initial
term of over three months of RMB54.7 million and an increase
in cash and cash equivalents balance of RMB267.5 million,
partially offset by a decrease in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of RMB258.1 million.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and Significant Investments
held

We did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and significant
investments during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Pledge of Assets

As of December 31, 2023, we did not pledge any of our assets.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Asset

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and “Use of Net Proceeds from
Listing” in this report, we did not have detailed future plans for
material investments or capital assets.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended December 31, 2023, our total capital
expenditure was approximately RMB86.7 million, compared
to approximately RMB83.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022. Our capital expenditure primarily
included our purchase of equipment, purchase of intangible
assets and payment for research and development expenses
of capitalization. We funded these expenditures with cash
generated from our operations and financing activities.
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Capital Commitments

Our capital commitments decreased from RMB1.3 million as
of December 31, 2022 to RMBO0.2 million as of December 31,
2023, primarily in connection with purchase of equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2023, we did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Our functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not our
functional currency. We expose ourselves to foreign exchange
risk because certain of our trade payables, trade receivables,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in foreign currencies. We will mitigate such a risk
by constantly reviewing the economic situation and foreign
exchange risk, and applying hedging measures when necessary.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As of December 31, 2023, we had 219 full-time employees
(December 31, 2022: 236), all of whom were based in China.
The total staff costs for the year ended December 31, 2023
(including staff remuneration, bonuses, welfare cost and social
insurance fees, etc.) amounted to approximately RMB100.7
million.

We primarily recruit our employees through recruitment
agencies, internal referrals and online recruiting channels,
including our corporate website, job search websites and social
networking platforms. We have adopted training protocols,
pursuant to which we provide on-board and regular continuing
trainings for our employees. As part of our human resources
strategy, we offer employees competitive salaries, performance-
based cash bonuses and other incentives.
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of our lease

liabilities as of the dates indicated.

Lease liabilities

Key Financial Ratios

HERE

The following table sets forth our key financial ratios for the

years indicated.

Profitability ratios BFtbE
Gross profit margin FE R &

Net profit margin FapiEe
Liquidity ratio mENE RS
Current ratio MBI &
Gearing ratio HEARE

M

The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross
profit for the year divided by revenue for the respective
year and multiplied by 100.0%.

The calculation of net profit margin is based on profit/loss
for the year divided by revenue for the respective year and
multiplied by 100.0%.

The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets
divided by current liabilities as of year end.

The gearing ratio is calculated based on the Group’s total
liabilities divided by total assets as of the end of the year
and multiplied by 100.0%.
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As at 31 December

»®12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETF T
2,440 3,335

FTEPHL=E
TREIIRNFARFERMNEEMHLL

For the year ended/
as at 31 December

BEF12A31BLLEE

»®12A31H
2023 2022
2023% 20224
88.6% 88.7%
46.5% -8.0%
24.1 times 20.9 times
24.11& 20.91%
3.0% 3.6%
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Gross profit margin and net profit margin

Please refer to the section headed “Gross profit and gross profit
margin” above for a discussion of the factors affecting our gross
profit margin during 2022 and 2023. The significant change in
the net profit margin is mainly due to the fact that the Group
recorded net profit for the year ended December 31, 2023, as
compared to a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Current ratio

Our current ratio was at 20.9 times and 24.1 times as of
December 31, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

The increase in current ratio was primarily due to the increase in
current assets and decrease in current liabilities as discussed in
the section headed “Net current assets”.

Non-IFRS Measure - Adjusted net profit

To supplement our consolidated financial information which
is presented in accordance with IFRS, we set forth below our
adjusted net profit as an additional financial measure which
is not presented in accordance with IFRS. We believe this is
meaningful because potential impacts of certain items which our
management do not consider closely relevant to our operating
performance have been excluded, and this would be useful for
our investors to compare our financial results directly with those
of our peer companies.

Adjusted net profit eliminates the effect of certain non-cash or
non-recurring items, namely (i) listing expenses, net of tax; (ii)
net foreign exchange losses from the retranslation of the USD-
denominated redemption liabilities; (iii) interest expense on
redemption liabilities; and (iv) share-based payment expenses.
The term “adjusted net profit” is not defined under IFRS.
The use of adjusted net profit has material limitations as an
analytical tool, as adjusted net profit does not include all items
that impact our net profit for the year.
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The following table reconciles our adjusted net profit for the
periods indicated to the most directly comparable financial
measure calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS:

Profit/(loss) for the year
Add: Listing expenses, net of tax
Add: Net foreign exchange losses
from the retranslation of the
USD-denominated redemption liabilities
Add: Interest expense on
redemption liabilities
Add: Share-based payment expenses

Non-IFRS Adjusted net profit

FhiE/(BR)

s LR MBBE

e EFMBENET
SHEMBEEAE
ELMINEBRFR

e BRaERNSRX

s BAR D AEREM A RE X

FERMEREENERERT

EEEN WD T

NEREIR PR R IR PR A S B AT A B
RECEBRMBREELFER 27K
REERAALBM B ENERK

Year ended 31 December

#E12A31ALEE
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
151,532 (19,813)
s 15,329
s 76,377
= 18,683
21,050 20,513
172,582 111,089
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DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Ms. CHEN Juan (Ff18), aged 52, has been a Director, the
chairwoman of the Board and the general manager of the
Company since January 29, 2021 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on June 9, 2021. She joined the Group since
December 2011 when she has been serving as the general
manager of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy and its executive
director since March 2021. She is responsible for developing
overall corporate and business strategies of our Group and
making key business and operational decisions of our Group.

Ms. Chen joined the Lepu Medical Group in October 2006 and
served on several management positions therein. By August
2021, she has resigned from all such positions.

Prior to joining the Lepu Medical Group, Ms. Chen served as
the regional manager in the vascular instrument department of
Abbott Laboratories Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (HEZEE&2S
WE 5 (L&) BRAR) from January 2005 to September 2006.
She served as the regional manager at the Beijing office of
Gaiteng International Trade (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (IR E 5
(E8)ABR2AF]) (currently known as Abbott Laboratories Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (HIZEERME Z(LF)BRAF]) from
October 1999 to September 2006, where she was responsible
for the regional sales promotion.

Ms. Chen graduated from Si Tanka University (F=EHTIE £ AZ)
in June 2017 with a doctor’s degree in business administration,
for which she received her courses in Shanghai. She obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from Maastricht
School of Management (/S HTFEMEEEEZRR) in the
Netherlands in September 1997 and a college degree from
Shaanxi Foreign Language College (PR7a&9MNHEATEIEHFIE2
) in September 1992, respectively. She was awarded the first
prize of the Beijing Technology Invention Award (1t 5/ £ i 3%
FR#8—% %) in 2023 and was recognized as the 6th Shanghai
Industrial and Commercial Leader (/&M E/NfE LEEEAY)
in 2022. She was awarded the Shanghai Women’s Achievement
Model (/&M MIEENZZMEIR) in March 2018, and the Silver
Prize of Leading Figure in Shanghai Medical Device Industry
(2013-2015 FE HBBEERF[MITRBAE AMIRE) in April 2016,
respectively.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHANG Yuxin (5&28f), aged 45, has been a Director of
the Company since January 29, 2021 and was appointed as the
deputy general manager and the chief technology officer of our
Company since May 28, 2021. She was re-designated as an
executive Director on June 9, 2021 and was later redesignated
as a non-executive Director on March 1, 2024, and has then
ceased to act as the deputy general manager and the chief
technology officer of the Company. She joined the Group in
May 2011 where she served as a deputy general manager of
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy to August 2013. She is primarily
responsible for formulating the overall development strategies
and business plans and overseeing the management of the
research and development projects and strategic development
of our Group.

She joined the Lepu Medical Group in April 2006 and served
as a project manager of research and development department
of Lepu Medical until February 2008. From January 2009 to
May 2011, she served as a manager of the technical quality
department at Target Medical. She served as a deputy director
of the marketing department of Lepu Medical from August 2013
to March 2015 and the chairman of its machinery research
center from March 2015 to May 2021. She resigned from her
other positions in Lepu Medical in May 2021 yet remained as a
research and development project manager in Lepu Medical to
oversee the research and development projects of the Entrusted
Products by Lepu Medical.

Before joining the Lepu Medical Group and from December
2004 to April 2006, she served as a research and development
engineer at 725th Research Institute (8-t =R ZTFT) of China
State Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. (FEIfMETEEFRAF], “China
Shipbuilding Industry”). From July 2004 to November 2004,
she served as a research and development engineer at CMBI
Construction Co., Ltd. (R ZRER A F).
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Ms. Zhang graduated from Xi’an University of Architecture and
Technology (FaZ 2RI KE) with a bachelor’s degree in
metallurgy in July 2001. She graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong
University (FEZ 323 AE) with a master's degree in materials
science and engineering in June 2004. She obtained the
qualification of Senior Engineer (7=#% T#2E0) from the 725th
Research Institute of China Shipbuilding Industry in December
2010. She was awarded as the 24th Beijing Outstanding
Young Engineer (It RM{EFEF L2AN) by Beijing Science
and Technology Association and Beijing Human Resources and
Social Security Bureau (It RMEIBFITHE RILEHANER
Mt ERERD) in September 2020. In 2017 and 2012, she was
awarded the third prize of Beijing Invention Patent Award (1t
ZEBA A 42 = % 48) and the second prize of Beijing Science and
Technology Award (3L 5 BH 25 9l7 42 — £ 48), respectively.

Mr. Fu Shan (fF1l) (former name as Fu Shan ({&(l)), aged 56,
has been serving as a non-executive Director when he joined
the Group since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for providing
professional opinion and judgment to the Board. Mr. Fu served
as a managing partner, an associate chief executive officer and
a chief executive officer of Greater China region in Vivo Capital
(#FBE ) since October 2013. Prior to that, he served as
senior managing director of the Blackstone Group from June
2008 to October 2013. He undertook various positions in the
State Economic and Trade Commission of the PRC (FBIEIZR
KEZ5Z BT, “SETC”) and the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC (FEIHZRZERMAELZE 2,
“NDRC”), including serving as a director of the General Affairs
Division of the Foreign Capital Utilization Department of the
NDRC (B 82 Z EISNE £ F| A Rl4E & ) from August 2004 to
March 2008, a director of the Policy and Regulation Division of
the Foreign Capital Utilization Department of the NDRC (EIZ
BN ZEINE S FARIBEIEHRE) from June 2003 to August
2004, a director of the Policy and Foreign Capital Division of the
Investment and Planning Department of the SETC (BIR&E Z
& B R B R EINEER) from January 2001 to June 2003, a
deputy director of the Foreign Capital Division of the Investment
and Planning Department of the SETC (RIR&EE LR & H1F 2
AJYNEBR) from July 1998 to January 2001, a deputy Director of
the General Affairs Division of the Technological Transformation
Department of the SETC (BR&EZFIMTAEREREE) from
October 1997 to July 1998, and an officer of the General
Affairs Division of the Foreign Economic and Trade Department
of the SETC (BEIRKEBZINEERI4RE ) from August 1993
to October 1997. From May 1992 to August 1993, he served
as an officer in the Economics and Trade Office of the State
Council in China (Bl B # P48 7% & 5t A =). From September
1991 to May 1992, he served as an officer in the Manufacture
Office of the State Council in China (FF Bl Rz £ EH A E).
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Mr. Fu has also been serving as (1) an non-executive director of
TOT Biopharm International Company Limited (5282 &A% () A
fR /A A]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1875), since January 19, 2016 and the chairman of its board
of directors since September 28, 2018, (2) a non-executive
director of InnoCare Pharma Limited (& 8ifEZE 2 2 5[R A 7)), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9969) from
September 27, 2019 to March 27, 2023, (3) a non-executive
director of Sinovac Biotech Co., Ltd., (RHEERE A YR AR
‘AA]) a company listed on the NASDAQ Global Market (stock
code: SVA), since July 2018, and (4) a director of Genetron
Holdings Limited (;Z 4 FEREFZEAR)BR A A]), a company listed
on the NASDAQ Global Market (stock code: GTH), since June
2021.

Mr. Fu obtained both his bachelor’s degree in world history
and his master’s degree in world ancient history from Peking
University (1t =R AE2), in July 1988 and July 1991, respectively.

Mr. ZHENG Guorui (B8EI#R), aged 41, has been serving as a
non-executive Director when he joined the Group since June
9, 2021. He is responsible for providing professional opinion
and judgment to the Board. He has been serving as a deputy
general manager of Lepu Medical since April 2021. Mr. Zheng
joined Lepu Medical in September 2006 as a sales manager
and has served on various sales related and management
positions at Lepu Medical including serving as a sales manager
of the coronary artery sales team in Beijing, a manager in the
northwestern region, and a manager in the eastern region. From
January 2016 to October 2020, he served as a national sales
director in the clinical first career department of Lepu Medical.
Since October 2020, he served as a general manager assistant
in Lepu Medical.

Prior to joining the Lepu Medical Group, Mr. Zheng served as a
sales manager in Wuhan Grand Pharmaceutical Group Trading
Company* (B2 REEEBEHEFRAF) from December
2004 to September 2006.

Mr. Zheng obtained a graduation certificate for self-taught
higher education examinations (8&#EF B Z2%E ) with a
major in engineering management from Haikou University of
Economics (& A& EERT) in December 2020.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. CHAN Ka Lai Vanessa (&), aged 51, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director when she
joined the Group since September 2, 2021. She is responsible
for supervising and providing independent advice on the
operation and management of the Group to the Board.

Ms. Chan has been serving as an independent non-executive
director at both Tycoon Group Holdings Limited (im & & E %
& EFR A A]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 3390) and Innovax Holdings Limited (BIF#ZEEAR D
Al), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
2680), since January 2020 and August 2018, respectively.
Since December 2015, she has been serving as a director at
WA C&E Limited (2 7% BR#% AR 2 7). From November 2009
to December 2018, she served as the financial controller at
China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited (FP Bl g iz i AR A 7).
From August 2008 to October 2009, she served as a financial
controller at Changsheng Holdings Co. Ltd. (EEEEER R
Al) Ms. Chan also served as an accounting manager at The
Kowloon Motor Bus Co. (1933) Ltd. (LB (—h==2)BR A
7)), a subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited (&
BEBIER AR AR, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 62) from August 2005 to February 2008. From
July 1995 to August 2005, Ms. Chan worked in KPMG Hong
Kong where her last position was a senior manager of the
auditing department.

Ms. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong in October 1995 with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Accounting. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, Ms. Chan is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Mr. ZHENG Yufeng (B8EI&), aged 51, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director when he joined the
Group since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice on the operation and
management of the Group to the Board.

From September 2004, Mr. Zheng has been serving as a
professor and doctoral supervisor in the Faculty of Materials
Science and Engineering of Peking University. From July 1998
to August 2004, he successively served as a lecturer, an
associate professor, a professor and a doctoral supervisor in
Harbin Institute of Technology (WMEE T3 KX2). He served as
an editor-in-chief of the Bioactive Materials Journal in Beijing
Keai Senlan Culture Communication Co., Ltd (1t REIE & (b
EREA R A F]) since May 2015.

Mr. Zheng graduated from Harbin Engineering University (%58
MM T2 2PT) with a bachelor’s degree in metallic material
and heat treatment in July 1993. He obtained his PhD degree in
Materials Science from Harbin Institute of Technology (W EE T
¥ KE) in September 1998,

Mr. LIU Daozhi (ZI5&7), aged 60, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director when he joined the
Group since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent advice on the operation and
management of the Group to the Board.

Mr. Liu founded Sunland Fund (ILEE#&Z) in 2015 and has
been serving as its executive partner since January 2015. From
February 2003 to December 2013, Mr. Liu served as a senior
vice president in emerging business in Shanghai MicroPort
Medical (Group) Co., Ltd. (B8 AIEEEM (K E) B R A F).

Mr. Liu graduated from Nankai University (R AZ) with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Physics in July 1985 and a PhD
degree in Science in April 1991.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. WANG Xinglin (E®#), aged 62, has been serving as a
supervisor since he joined the Group on January 29, 2021. He
is responsible for supervising the performance of duties by our
Directors and members of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Wang served as the chairman of the board of supervisors
at Lepu Medical since January 2020. He served as the general
manager at Zhongxing Huatou (Beijing) Fund Management Co.,
Ltd.* (FEFEHRJE)REESEEBR2AT]) since December
2016. He served as deputy chief accountant from July 2014
to January 2016 and director of the finance department from
July 2015 to January 2016, respectively, in China Shipbuilding
Industry. He served as deputy general manager in China State
Shipbuilding Corporation Finance Co., Ltd. (P ETH B AR
E({T/A 7], “China State Shipbuilding”) from December 2001,
and was promoted to the director of its finance department in
March 2004, a general manager in November 2005, the vice
chairman of its board of directors in November 2011, and vice
chairman of the board of directors and general manager in July
2014 respectively. He left China State Shipbuilding in August
2018. From July 1985 to January 2002, he successively served
as an assistant accountant, accountant, vice director of the
finance department, director of finance department, the vice
chief accountant and the chief accountant at Xi’an Shipbuilding
Industry Co., Ltd.* (FZMMRETLE RG], currently known
as China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation Xi’an Shipbuilding
Industry Co., Ltd.* (PEIMAE TEBEALMM T EGR A ).

Mr. Wang graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and
Economics (PREEEIALE2RT) in July 1985 with a bachelor’s
degree in industrial accounting. He obtained qualification as a
senior accountant from China State Shipbuilding Corporation (-
BIA AR T 2482 7)) in October 1997.

Ms. WANG Xiaoyong (EBE5), aged 47, has been serving as
a supervisor since she joined the Group on January 29, 2021.
She is responsible for supervising the performance of duties by
our Directors and members of the senior management of the
Group.
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Ms. Wang joined Lepu Medical in April 2006 as a regional
manager of the marketing center and was promoted to serve as
a general manager at pharmaceuticals department from June
2013 to December 2016. From January 2015 to December
2016, she also concurrently served as a marketing director at
Beijing Haihetian Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (It F &
KR A% AR A R]). She served as a marketing director of the
marketing department since January 2017 in Lepu Medical.

Ms. Wang graduated from Henan University of Economics and
Law (A @ B A&CBUA K EE) in June 2010 with a master’s degree
in business administration. She graduated from Southwest
University (FAF A& in January 2019 with a bachelor’s degree
in applied psychology through online courses.

Mr. QIAN Weidong (##i3), aged 61, has been serving as a
supervisor since June 9, 2021. He is responsible for supervising
the performance of duties by our Directors and members of the
senior management of the Group.

Mr. Qian joined the Group as a production technician in
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy from January 2004 to 2008, and
was promoted as a production supervisor from 2008 to 2012.
He has been a production manager of Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy since 2012.

Mr. Qian graduated from Jiangsu Shuxun Middle School (T x4
ZhE) in July 1979.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHEN Juan (FR8), aged 52, is the executive Director,
chairman of the Board and general manager of the Company
and was appointed as a senior management of the Group
in December 2011. For further details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “—Executive Director” in this section.
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Mr. Qin Xue (¥E#), aged 48, has been a deputy general
manager and the chief financial officer of the Group since
he joined the Group on May 28, 2021. He is responsible for
overseeing the financial and accounting affairs of the Group.
He is also the joint company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Qin joined the Lepu Medical Group in April 2007 and served
as a manager of the financial department in Lepu Medical until
September 2012. Mr. Qin served as Lepu Medical’s manager of
the financial planning department from October 2012 to June
2015, deputy director of financial management and manager of
the fund management department from July 2015 to February
2018, and internal audit director from March 2018 to April 2021,
respectively.

Mr. Qin graduated from Capital University of Economics and
Business in China (& #48 /% & 5 KX 2) with a bachelor’s degree
in Accounting in July 1999. He obtained qualifications as a
senior accountant in July 2010 and certified management
accountant (CMA) in October 2019.

Mr. HE Yufeng (f1ER), aged 43, has been a deputy general
manager and the chief operating officer of the Group since
May 28, 2021. He joined the Group as the financial director of
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy leading its finance department
from August 2013 to May 2021, and the financial director of the
Company from its inception to May 2021, during which he was
responsible for overseeing the financial and accounting affairs of
the Group.

Before joining Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy, Mr. He served as
a financial manager at Shanghai Phoenix Medical Equipment
Co., Ltd. (EBRBEBEREBMRAR) from March 2011 to
August 2013.

Mr. He received a bachelor's degree in financial management
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (% & B & B A
A £) in June 2003.
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Ms. ZHANG Xiani (5REHE), aged 40, has been a deputy
general manager of the Group since May 28, 2021. She
joined the Group as a marketing manager of Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy from December 2011 to December 2014, and
was promoted to serve as a marketing director since December
2014. She has also been serving as the marketing director of
the Company since its inception.

She joined the Lepu Medical Group in July 2009 and served
as an assistant to chief of the marketing department of Lepu
Medical until December 2011. From June 2016 to May 2017,
Ms. Zhang served as the marketing director and sales director
in Shanghai Yocaly Health Management Co., Ltd.* (/& inF|
EFEEEAMRAT]), currently known as Shanghai Lepu Yunzhi
Technology Co., Ltd* (L/B%EEEMERHER AR, and
served as a sales director from June 2016 to December 2019.
From July 2007 to June 2009, she served in the operations
department in the Special Olympics Department of China
Administration of Sport for Persons with Disabilities (FF E5 & A
BRI EHEIER ).

Ms. Zhang graduated from College of Education Scientific of
Capital Normal University (2 #BEIE5 K22 A BIEZZF7) in China
with a bachelor’s degree in education in July 2006.

Mr. LIAO Zhangya (BEEE), aged 42, has been appointed
deputy general manager of the Group since March 31, 2023. He
is responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing affairs of
our Group. He joined the Lepu Medical Group in June 2010 and
served on several positions in the international business unit
therein. From 2010 to 2023, he served several positions from
regional sales manager, vice manager, manger, vice director, to
vice president of the international business unit.

Before joining the Lepu Medical Group and from August 2006
to August 2008, he served as an import and export officer at
Asia Pacific Mandiri in Singapore.

Mr. Liao graduated from Xi’an International Studies University
(FZHNEEAE) with a bachelor’s degree in Tourism
Management (English) in July 2005. He graduated from Beihang
University (1t RATZ MR AE) with a master’s degree in MBA in
January 2012.
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Ms. LUO Jiadan (®%#), aged 38, has been appointed as
the deputy general manager of the Group since March 28,
2024 and is primarily responsible for the production affairs of
the Group. She joined Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy in March
2014 and successively held various positions such as assistant
to the general manager and executive director of operations,
and is responsible for the internal operation management of the
the Company’s administration, supply chain and other related
departments.

Prior to joining Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy, she served in
the planning department of Shanghai Jingtai International Travel
Co., Ltd." (E/BRFBBRIRITIEBR Q7).

Ms. Luo obtained her bachelor’s degree in tourism management
from Yunnan University (27 AE) in 2008.

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

On March 1, 2024, Ms. Zhang Yuxin has been re-designated
from an executive Director to a non-executive Director,
and ceased to act as the deputy general manager, the
chief technology officer of the Company and the authorized
representative of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, there has
been no change to the information of the Directors subject to

disclosure under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

# For identification purposes only
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report (the “Annual
Report”) together with the audited consolidated financial
statements (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the
“‘Reporting Period”).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. The net
proceeds received from the Global Offering (after deducting
the estimated underwriting commissions and other fees and
expenses payable by the Company in connection with the
Global Offering) was approximately HK$567.3 million.

The following table sets forth the planned use and actual use of
the net proceeds from the Global Offering as of December 31,
2023:
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EFEMAREARAEZ2023F 121
S1ALEFE([REP]) 2 FERE ([#F
B REEZERAVERE ((HEaBH
wE) -

IHmERERE

BB FT ETh - 2IREEMEIIRE
(RN ARRAREREE RN MG
BHReEMBERRAX) #/R567.3
BEAET -

TEREHNEZ2023F 12 A31 B2 EREE
FIERBFEntERaER AR

Net proceeds Utilized Unutilized
from the amount as of amount as of Expected timeline for
Global December 31, December 31, fully utilizing the
Use of proceeds Offering 2023 2023 unutilized amount™
2HRE #HE2023F #BE2023F EHEBA
FRGRIE 12A31H 12A318  XREAREH
FRERERZ B EHARE XBARE FHRER
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B&#T) (B&#T) (A&BT)
To fund our research and development Before December 31, 2027
activities
AMEESREES 287.6 80.9 206.7 2027412 A31HAT
For our sales and marketing activities Before December 31, 2027
RRHE REHES 137.9 15.2 122.7  2027F12 A31HA
To expand our production capacity and Before December 31, 2027
strengthen our manufacturing capabilities
FARMB T B I IS8 B35 AL ) 28.4 5.6 22.8 2027F12 A31HA
To fund potential strategic investments and Before December 31, 2027
acquisitions
REENBRRERKEREES 56.7 - 56.7 2027F12A318AI
For our working capital and general corporate Before December 31, 2027
purposes
AREEESR—RARMAE 56.7 - 56.7 202712 A31HA
Total
&t 567.3 101.7 465.6
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Note:

(1) The expected timeline for fully utilizing the unutilized amount
disclosed above is based on the best estimates made by the
Board pursuant to the latest information up to the date of this
report.

As disclosed on pages 485 to 492 of the Prospectus, based on
the current business plan, the Company intended to implement
the use of proceeds from the Global Offering in the five financial
years from 2023 to 2027. The net proceeds from the Global
Offering (adjusted on a pro rata basis based on the actual net
proceeds) have been and will be utilized in that same manner,
proportion and the expected timeframe as set out in the
Prospectus. The Board currently expects full utilization of the
net proceeds raised from the Global Offering by December 31,
2027, subject to changes in light of the Company’s evolving
business needs and changing market conditions.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a leading interventional medical device provider
in China for CHD, a major field of application for structural
heart diseases. The Company is principally engaged in the
research, development, manufacture and commercialization of
interventional medical devices primarily targeting structural heart
diseases. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating
results for the year ended December 31, 2023 by its principal
business is set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section of this Annual Report. Particulars of the Company’
principal subsidiary as at December 31, 2023 are set out in
note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 213 of this Annual
Report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, the outlook of
future development of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Reporting Period and the material factors underlying its financial
performance and financial position as required by section 388(2)
and Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance can be found in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this Annual Report. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in note 3 “Financial
Risk Management” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Further details relating to the Group’s relationships with its
key stakeholders, the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, as well as the compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
can refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 94 to 165 of this Annual Report. The “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” form part of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS

We face various risks involved in our daily business operations,
including risks that are specific to our business as well as the
industry and regulatory landscape in the PRC. In particular, the
research, development and commercialization of our products
are heavily regulated in all material aspects, and we may be
unable to obtain, maintain or renew the regulatory filings and
registration certificates required to commercialize our products
in a timely manner, or at all. For details, please refer to the
sections headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

We are dedicated to lowering the environmental impact of all
aspects of our business operations. We endeavour to comply
with the relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and implement effective measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, waste reduction and energy saving.
For instance, (1) we manage the use of energy and water in
the office area and encourage employees to save resources;
(2) we fully carry out garbage sorting and recycling to promote
waste recycling; and (38) we use LED energy saving lamps to
replace high-energy lamps and reduce the power consumption
of electrical equipment. We have followed the comprehensive
policy on environmental, social and corporate governance in
accordance with the Listing Rules, which sets out how we
practice corporate social responsibility in our daily operations
and productions. In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
contained in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report is set out on
pages 94 to 165 of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is subject to various PRC laws and regulations
in relation to its operations in the PRC, including, without
limitation, in the aspects of medical devices and environmental
and social protection. The Group is also subject to the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong that have a significant
impact on the Company including, without limitation, the
Companies Ordinance, SFO and the Listing Rules. As far as the
Board and the management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of
the Group as of the date of this report. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance
with, applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During
the Reporting Period, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policies of the Company are as follows:

1.

the Board of the Company proposes the profit distribution
plan to the general meeting for approval based on the
Company’s overall business status, operation results,
financial results, operation capital, capital demands, future
prospects, cash flows and any other factors deemed as
relevant by the Board, taking full consideration to return
of investors, provided that the earnings and accumulative
undistributed dividends for the current year are positive
and the statutory reserve fund and the surplus reserve
fund are provided in full;

the profit distribution policy of the Company shall remain
continuous and stable, and shall be in the interest of
the Company in the long term, in the interests of all
Shareholders as a whole and in line with the sustainable
development of the Company;

in case of war, natural disasters and other force majeure,
or where changes to the external operating environment of
the Company result in material impact on the production
and operation of the Company, or where there are
significant changes in the Company’s own operations
status, proposed by the Board and passed by the
shareholder’s general meeting, the Company may adjust
its profits distribution policy; and

the adjustment plan for the dividend policy shall be
formulated by the Board and be considered and approved
at the shareholder’s general meeting. The adjusted
profit distribution policy shall not violate the laws and
regulations, departmental rules, normative documents and
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.57 per Share (tax inclusive) for the year ended December
31, 2023 (approximately RMB197.6 million in aggregate), which
is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the 2023
AGM, the final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The
exchange rate for the final dividend to be paid in Hong Kong
dollars will be the mean of the exchange rates of Renminbi
to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the PBOC during the
five business days preceding the date of approval of the final
dividend at the 2023 AGM, The final dividend is expected to
be paid on or before Monday, September 30, 2024 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Friday, May 31, 2024. (2022 final dividend:
Nil). Further details are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the final dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, May
30, 2024 to Friday, May 31, 2024, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, May 29, 2024 for registration. The record date
for entitlement to the proposed final dividend is Friday, May 31,
2024.

No Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the prior five financial years is set out on page 344 of
this Annual Report. This summary does not constitute a part of
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended December 31, 2023, total sales to the
Group’s five largest customers represented 12.6% of total
revenue of the Group, and total sales to the Group’s single
largest customer accounted for 3.2% of total revenue of the
Group. For the year ended December 31, 2023, we collaborated
with the Retained Lepu Medical Group to distribute our
products overseas and in China, and generated revenue from
sales to the Retained Lepu Medical Group of RMB7.8 million.
Such transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business at arm’s length with reference to normal commercial
terms. For details, please refer to “Continuing Connected
Transactions — Sale of Products Framework Agreement” of this
Annual Report.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2023, total purchase from
the Group’s five largest suppliers represented 50.8% of total
purchase of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023,
and total purchase from the Group’s single largest supplier
accounted for 22.9% of total purchase of the Group. For the
year ended December 31, 2023, we procured certain non-core
components and parts from the Retained Lepu Medical Group,
and our purchases from the Retained Lepu Medical Group
was RMB2.8 million. Such transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business at arm’s length with reference to
normal commercial terms.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders (to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, who holds more than 5% of the issued Shares of
the Company) had any interest in the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Company during the Reporting Period.
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Overlapping of Customers and Suppliers

Our Directors confirmed that none of our major customers
was also our major suppliers during the year ended December
31, 2023, except for the Retained Lepu Medical Group, which
was our major distributor as well as our major supplier in
2023. Negotiations of the terms of our sales to and purchases
from the Retained Lepu Medical Group were conducted on
an individual basis, and the sales and purchases were neither
interconnected or inter-conditional with each other. Our
Directors confirmed that all of our sales to and purchases
from the Retained Lepu Medical Group were conducted in the
ordinary course of business under normal commercial terms
and on arm’s length basis.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year ended December
31, 20283 are set out in note 14 to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year ended December 31, 2023, details of
movements in the investment properties of the Company
and the Group are set out in the note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the section headed “Particulars of
Investment Properties” on page 343.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note
27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVE AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set
out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 216 to
217 of this Annual Report, respectively, of which, the details of
the reserves available for distribution to Shareholders is set out
in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As of December 31, 2023, we had no outstanding balance of
borrowings or unutilized banking facilities.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the 2023 AGM will be held on May 23, 2024,
The notice of the 2023 AGM will be published on the respective
websites of the Company (http://www.scientechmed.com) and
the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk)
in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining Shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
2023 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, May 20, 2024 to Thursday, May 23,
2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. Shareholders whose names appear on
the Company’s register of members on May 23, 2024 shall be
entitled to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
2023 AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the H
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on May 17, 2024 for
Registration.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company who held office
during the Reporting Period are:

Executive Director:
Ms. Chen Juan (Chairwoman of the Board and General Manager)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yuxin (redesignated on March 1, 2024)
Mr. Fu Shan

Mr. Zheng Guorui

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi

Supervisors:

Mr. Wang Xinglin
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong
Mr. Qian Weidong
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 54 to
64 of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Director has confirmed
his/her independence for the Reporting Period in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

TERM OF OFFICE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Executive Director

Ms. Chen Juan, being our executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with our Company on October 20, 2022
pursuant to Rule 19A.54 of the Listing Rules. The service
contract is for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. The service contracts may be renewed in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors

Each of Mr. Fu Shan and Mr. Zheng Guorui, being our non-
executive Directors, Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa, Mr. Zheng
Yufeng and Mr. Liu Daozhi, being our independent non-
executive Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment
with our Company on October 20, 2022. Ms. Zhang Yuxin
entered into a service agreement with the Company on March
1, 2024 regarding her appointment as non-executive Director
for a term of three years. She will hold office until the next
annual general meeting of the Company and be subject to the
requirements for retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the articles of association of the Company. Each letter of
appointment is for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date. The letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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Supervisors

Each of Mr. Wang Xinglin, Ms. Wang Xiaoyong and Mr. Qian
Weidong, being our Supervisors, has entered into a service
contract with our Company on October 20, 2022 pursuant to
Rule 19A.55 of the Listing Rules. Each service contract is for
an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.
The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with
the Articles of Association and the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS IN SIGNIFICANT
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, during the Reporting
Period, none of the Directors had directly or indirectly a material
interest in a transaction, arrangement or contract, to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries is a
party and is significant to the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and any controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or
any contracts of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has maintained appropriate liability insurance for
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management to cover the
legal action arising out of corporate action.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company had not signed
or entered into any contract in respect of the management
or administration of the entire or any significant part of the
business.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with the Group’s remuneration policy, in
assessing the amount of remuneration payable to Directors
and senior management, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee will take into account factors such as
the salaries paid by comparable companies, their tenure, time
commitment, level of responsibilities and personal performance
(as the case may be). Details of the emoluments of the Director
and five highest paid individuals of the Company are set out
in the note 8 and note 35(e) to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefit scheme of the
Company are set out in the note 8 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from
our business, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with our business under Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2023, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executives of our Company had interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein, or which will be required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
our Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable
the Directors or Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporates, and none of the Directors, Supervisors
or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities
of the Company or any other body corporates or had exercised
any such right.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as at December 31, 2023,
the following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Name of Class of Number of Long position/ BIThRE
Shareholders Nature of interests Shares Shares short position® wEz
BREH ERnE B %R Bi®AE e/ %e? @EWESLO
Dr. Py (o3 Interest in a controlled corporation  H Shares Long position (L)
SEIE L () REEEB S ER HA% 280,000,000 HEWL 80.75%
Lepu Medical ™3  Beneficial owner H Shares Long position (L)
FERR M) BaBEAA HA& 277,200,000 1A (L) 79.94%
Interest in a controlled corporation  H Shares Long position (L)
REEEB e HA& 2,800,000 1A (L) 0.81%
Total: Long position (L)
i 280,000,000 HEL) 80.75%
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Notes:

1. As at December 31, 2023, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 346,749,997 shares.

2. The letter (L) denotes a long position in shares of the Company.

3. Lepu Medical held approximately 80.75% of the shareholding
interest of our Company, including approximately 0.81% indirect
shareholding interest through Target Medical and approximately
79.94% direct shareholding interest. Lepu Medical held the entire
share interest in Target Medical and was therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Target Medical under the SFO.
Dr. Pu is the actual controller of Lepu Medical and was therefore
deemed to be interested in the H shares held by Lepu Medical
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company) who
had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were required to be disclosed under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or to be entered in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company had not entered into
or maintained any equity-linked agreements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Period.

SHARE SCHEME

The Company did not adopt any share scheme under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules in the year ended December 31, 2023.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights in the Articles
of Association, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions were set out in note
35 “Related Party Transactions” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Details of any related party transaction which
constitute continuing connected transaction not exempted
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the following transactions of
our Group constitute the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Connected Persons

Lepu Medical is one of our Substantial Shareholders, directly
and indirectly holding approximately 80.75% of total issued
share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2023.
Accordingly, Lepu Medical and its subsidiaries (other than
the Group) are our connected persons for the purposes of
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Clinical Trial Service Framework Agreement

On October 18, 2022, our Company entered into a clinical
trial service framework agreement with Lepu Medical
(the “Clinical Trial Service Framework Agreement’),
pursuant to which the Retained Lepu Medical Group
agreed to provide clinical trial services on our products
that enter into clinical trial stage from time to time for
our Group. We may enter into individual agreements
separately with the Retained Lepu Medical Group with
respect to different transactions which provide for specific
terms and conditions including products, price, payment
and other terms in accordance with the Clinical Trial
Service Framework Agreement and applicable laws. The
term of the Clinical Trial Service Framework Agreement
commenced from November 8, 2022 and expire on
December 31, 2024. For details, please refer to the
Prospectus.

The reasons and benefits of entering into the transaction
are that we are a developer and manufacturer of occluders
and occluder-related products and a developer of heart
valve products. Clinical trial services are vital to our clinical
studies for occluders and heart valve products as part of
our development process. Hefei Hospital, a member of the
Retained Lepu Medical Group, is a cardiovascular hospital
equipped with the requisite qualification for providing
clinical trial services and has a track record of having the
capability of providing efficient clinical trial services since
our cooperation with them in 2019. As such, we engage
Hefei Hospital as one of the hospitals that provide clinical
trial services for us.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Clinical Trial Service Framework
Agreement are RMB9.0 million, RMB9.5 million and
RMB9.5 million for the three years ending December 31,
2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively. During the Reporting
Period, the actual transaction amount was RMB3.6 million.
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Sale of Products Framework Agreement

On October 18, 2022, our Company entered into a sale
of products framework agreement with Lepu Medical (the
“Sale of Products Framework Agreement’), pursuant
to which our Group may sell to (1) Lepu (Shanghai) and
Anhui Magete certain products manufactured by our
Group, namely, congenital heart disease occluders,
congenital heart disease occluder delivery systems, LAA
occluder systems, and snares, for distribution within
the PRC; and (2) Lepu India congenital heart disease
occluders, congenital heart disease occluder delivery
systems and snares, for distribution in India. We may
enter into individual agreements separately with Lepu
(Shanghai), Anhui Magete and Lepu India with respect to
different transactions which provide for specific terms and
conditions including products, price, payment and other
terms in accordance with the Sale of Products Framework
Agreement and applicable laws. The term of the Sale
of Products Framework Agreement commenced from
November 8, 2022 and expire on December 31, 2024. For
details, please refer to the Prospectus.

The reasons and benefits of entering into the transaction
are that: (a) Our principal business is the production and
sales of occluder and occluder-related devices and it is in
our ordinary and usual course of business to sell occluder
delivery systems to other parties for distribution; (b) Since
2012, we have been distributing our occluders through the
Retained Lepu Medical Group with its wide and developed
distribution network. We have been steadily ramping up
our distribution qualification and capability by means
including applying for our own distribution licenses. While
we have established our own sales capability, a portion
of the sales of our products will be conducted through
members of the Retained Lepu Medical Group as our
distributors; and (c) Certain of the requisite certificates
for conducting sales in India were registered by Lepu
India. We will continue to engage them as our distribution
channel in India, where the Medical Devices Rules, which
were published by the central government of India in 2016
and became effective in 2017, forbid the application by
a foreign entity from applying for a license for importing
medical devices. It is not practicably feasible and unduly
burdensome for us to establish an Indian entity within the
near future to carry out as efficiently the role currently
undertaken by Lepu India, due to our unfamiliarity with the
local regulatory environment and the current pandemic
situation caused by COVID-19.
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The annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Sale of Products Framework
Agreement are RMB14.3 million, RMB17.9 million and
RMB20.4 million for the three years ending December 31,
2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively. During the Reporting
Period, the actual transaction amount was RMB7.8 million.

Entrusted Products Related Framework Agreement

On October 18, 2022, our Company entered into a
entrusted products related framework agreement with
Lepu Medical (the “Entrusted Products Related
Framework Agreement’), pursuant to which our Group
agreed to engage the Retained Lepu Medical Group to
conduct the Relevant Activities legally according to the
directions of our Group. We will reimburse Lepu Medical
of its costs and fees actually incurred for the R&D and
registration related activities associated with the Entrusted
Products. Upon commercialization of the Entrusted
Products, the Group may purchase the TAVR system
and TMVCRS to be manufactured by Lepu Medical for
sales and distribution onwards as authorized by Lepu
Medical irrevocably and exclusively pursuant to the asset
transfer agreement. The Group may enter into individual
agreements separately with the Retained Lepu Medical
Group with respect to different transactions which provide
for specific terms and conditions including target, price,
payment and other terms in accordance with the Entrusted
Products Related Framework Agreement and applicable
laws. The term of the Entrusted Products Related
Framework Agreement commenced from November 8,
2022 and expire on December 31, 2024. For details,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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The reasons and benefits of entering into the transaction
are that historically the type inspections and animal tests
of the Entrusted Products were conducted under the name
of Lepu Medical. Due to the PRC regulatory restrictions
in connection with the Entrusted Products at the time of
entering into the transaction, it was not feasible for us to
directly take over and continue with the Relevant Activities
including conducting the clinical trials. Entrusting the
Retained Lepu Medical Group with the subsequent R&D,
registration and manufacturing of the Entrusted Products
is crucial to the realization of their commercialization and
subsequent monetization. The Entrustment Arrangements
under this transaction, which are integral to the injection
of interventional heart valve business from Lepu Medical
to our Group, strategically complemented our existing
product portfolio and enabled us to have a product
portfolio covering all three major fields of application in the
interventional medical device market targeting structural
heart diseases.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Entrusted Products Related
Framework Agreement are RMB28.0 million, RMB18.0
million and RMB11.0 million for the three years ending
December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 respectively. During
the Reporting Period, the actual transaction amount was
RMB18.0 million.

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to Rule 14A.55
of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(i) conducted on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third
parties and either on normal commercial terms or
better; and

(i) conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
has performed certain agreed-upon audit procedures for
the above continuing connected transactions entered into
by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2023
according to the Rule 14A.56 to the Listing Rule and
issued written confirmation letter therefor, which contained
its results and conclusion.

Letter from the independent auditor confirmed with the
Board that they are not aware of anything that may
enable them to believe the above continuing connected
transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Company’s Board of
directors;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group for transactions
involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group;

(i)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the annual cap disclosed in
Prospectus.

Save as disclosed above, the “related party transactions”
mentioned in note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
do not constitute the connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
which are required to be disclosed by the Company during the
Reporting Period in accordance with the provisions concerning
the disclosure of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the relevant connected
transactions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENT

Each of Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Lepu
Medical”) and Dr. Pu Zhongjie (24 (“‘Dr. Pu”) entered into
a non-competition agreement with the Company dated January
27, 2022 (the “Non-Competition Agreement’), pursuant to
which, Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu have irrevocably undertaken to
the Company (for the interests of the Company itself and other
members of the Group) that Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu shall not,
and shall procure that its associates (excluding the Group) will
not, directly or indirectly, whether on their own or jointly with
another person or company, acquire interest in, participate
in, develop, operate or engage in any business or company
which directly or indirectly competes or may compete with any
business of the Company. Please refer to the Prospectus for
details of the Non-Competition Agreement.

The Company has received the annual confirmation that Lepu
Medical and Dr. Pu have complied with the Non-Competition
Agreement during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
performance of the Non-Competition Agreement during the
Reporting Period, according to the information and confirmation
provided or given by Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu, and are satisfied
that Lepu Medical and Dr. Pu have complied with the Non-
Competition Agreement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group has no
permitted indemnity provision.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for
the Reporting Period and details of the Shares issued during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 27 “Share Capital” to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

The Company did not make charitable and other donations
during the Reporting Period.
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DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the Reporting
Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules and the Company
has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for the
deviation as disclosed in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section of this Annual Report.

Information on the corporate governance practices and
compliance with the CG Code of the Company, please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 166 to 200 of this
Annual Report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has applied for and the Stock Exchange has
approved waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1) of the
Listing Rules. Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the required public float under the
Listing Rules and the public float waiver at any time during the
Reporting Period.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND
COMPLIANCE

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company was not
involved in any material legal proceedings or arbitrations. To
the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no material legal
proceeding or claim which is pending or threatening against the
Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa and Mr. Zheng
Yufeng, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Zheng
Guorui. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Consolidated
Financial Statements and this Annual Report, reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the auditor
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited the accompanying
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report, which
have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS Accounting
Standards. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire as the auditor
of the Company upon the conclusion of the forthcoming 2023
AGM and will not be standing for re-appointment.

On April 7, 2024, the Board proposed to appoint BDO China
Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP (M {5&&HARS
AT L @A E)) as the new auditor of the Company. The
proposed change of auditors is subject to the Shareholders’
approval at the AGM. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated April 7, 2024.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On March 28, 2024, the Board proposed a declaration and
payment of a final dividend for the year ended December 31,
2023. Further details are disclosed in “ - Final Dividend” in
this annual report and Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On April 7, 2024, the Board considered and approved to
prepare the Company’s financial statements and disclose
relevant financial information in accordance with the CASBE
starting from the interim report for the six months ending June
30, 2024, proposed to amend the Articles of Association and
appoint BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants
LLP ZEEEEREFH®REBER)) as the new auditor
of the Company. The proposed amendments to the Articles
of Association and the change of auditors are subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the AGM. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated April 7, 2024.
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Save as disclosed above, there are no material subsequent
events undertaken by the Group after December 31, 2023 and
up to the date of this Annual Report.

By order of the Board
Chen Juan
Chairwoman and Executive Director

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
March 28, 2024
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In 2023, all members of the Board of Supervisors, adhering
to an attitude of responsibility to all Shareholders, earnestly
performed their supervisory duties and positively conducted
their works in accordance with the principle of honesty by
participating meetings of the Board of Supervisors, attending
Board meetings and shareholder’s general meetings and
effectively supervised on the legality of operations, financial
conditions as well as the duty performance of the Directors and
management of the Company, in strict accordance with the
Company Law and other relevant laws, the Listing Rules and
the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association, which
promoted the standardized operation of the Company.

BASIC COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors shall comprise three supervisors.
The appointment and dismissal of the chairman of the Board
of Supervisors shall be passed by the votes of more than two-
thirds of the members of the Board of Supervisors. Each term
of office of a Supervisor is three years and he/she may serve
consecutive terms if re-elected.

The Board of Supervisors shall be composed of representatives
of the Shareholders and representatives of the Company’s
employees. Shareholder representatives shall be elected and
removed at shareholders’ general meetings, and employee
representatives shall be elected and removed democratically
by the employees of the company. The number of employee
representative supervisors of the Company shall not be
less than one-third of the Supervisors. Directors and
senior management members shall not act concurrently as
Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors consists of three supervisors which
are as follows:

Shareholder Representative Supervisors:
Mr. Wang Xinglin (chairman)
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong

Employee Representative Supervisors:
Mr. Qian Weidong
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OVERALL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors serve as the supervision institution
of the Company which shall strictly perform their duties in
compliance with the Company Law, the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association. The Board of Supervisors is responsible
for supervising the performance of the Board and senior
management, the Company’s financial operations, internal
control and risk management.

PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board of Supervisors convened one meeting,
eight resolutions were considered. All supervisors attended
the following meetings in person to discuss and consider the
following matters on, among others, the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2023, the Independent Auditor’'s Report and
the Audit Report, the financial budget plan for 2024 of the
Company, the 2023 Working Report of Board of Supervisors
of the Company, the 2023 Annual Results Announcement and
the 2023 Annual Report of the Company, the 2023 Internal
Control and Self-assessment Report of the Company, the
remuneration matters on Directors for 2023 and 2024, the
remuneration matters on Supervisors for 2023 and 2024, the
proposed re-election of supervisors for the forthcoming session,
the proposed profit distribution plan, as well as the proposed
appointment of auditor of the Company for 2024.

The attendance of each supervisor at the Board of Supervisors
meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of supervisors ERlg

Mr. Wang Xinglin (chairman) FEMELE (F/F)
Ms. Wang Xiaoyong FHRELZLT

Mr. Qian Weidong BERLAE

During the Reporting Period, the members of the Board of
Supervisors attended the shareholder’s general meeting and
the Board meeting of the Company, put forward relevant
opinions and suggestions with a serious and responsible
attitude, conducted supervision on the procedures and content
of the meetings, and effectively supervised the decision-
making procedures, legal operations and financial conditions
of the Company’s business, as well as the duty performance
of the Directors and management in the daily operations of the
Company, which well-safeguarded the legal interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.
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THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ BASIC
EVALUATION ON THE OPERATIONS
CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD AND THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2023, through supervising
the Directors and senior management, the Board of Supervisors
believed that the Company’s major business decision-
making procedures were legal and effective; when performing
their duties, the Directors and senior management earnestly
implemented the laws and regulations of the PRC, the Articles
of Association and the resolutions of the shareholder’s general
meetings and the Board meetings, and there was no behavior
that harmed the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
and no violations committed by the Directors or senior
management were found during operations.

INDEPENDENT OPINION ON THE RELEVANT
MATTERS OF THE COMPANY DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on
Compliance of the Company’s Operations with Legal
Requirements

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors supervised the convening
procedures and resolutions of the shareholder’s general
meetings and the Board meetings of the Company, the
implementation of resolutions of the shareholder’s general
meetings by the Board, and the duty performance of senior
management in accordance with the rights granted under the
Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

The Board of Supervisors believed that the Company’s
decision-making procedures complied with the relevant
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules, and the Board has
standardized operations, legal procedures, reasonable
decisions, and earnestly implemented each resolution of the
shareholder’'s general meetings. The Directors and senior
management were loyal and diligent when they dedicated to
their duties, with no violation of laws, regulations, the Articles
of Association or damage to the interests of the Company.
Each resolution of the shareholder’s general meetings has been
implemented.
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Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Financial Position

The Board of Supervisors supervised the Company’s finance,
and believed that the Company’s financial system was
sound, its financial operations were in good condition, and
considered that the Company strictly met the requirements of
the accounting system and accounting standards for business
enterprises and other relevant financial regulations. Meanwhile,
after the Board of Supervisor carefully reviewed 2023 Financial
Statements and other relevant documents proposed to be
submitted by the Board to the shareholder’s general meeting,
which was audited and issued an unqualified opinion by the
independent auditor, it believed that such financial report has
followed the principle of consistency, objectively, truly and
fairly reflected the financial position and operation results of the
Company.

Independent Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Connected Transactions

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the relevant information of
the connected transactions of the Company during this year and
believed that the Company’s relevant connected transactions
were implemented in strict accordance with the relevant
systems and agreements of connected transactions and were in
line with the principles of fairness and reasonableness, without
prejudice to the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

2024 ANNUAL WORK PLAN

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors will continue to fully perform
its supervisory duties and strictly comply with the Company
Law and other relevant laws, the Listing Rules and the
relevant requirements of the Articles of Association, exercise
its supervisory authority independently in accordance with
laws and perform its fiduciary duty, effectively safeguard the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders and ensure the
standardized and healthy operation of the Company.

1. The Board of Supervisors will carry out its daily work to
convene meetings of the Board of Supervisors according
to the actual situation of the Company and make its best
efforts to review and consider various proposals;
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The Board of Supervisors will strengthen the
implementation of its supervisory functions. The Board of
Supervisors will enhance the supervision of the Directors
and senior management in the discharge of their duties
and responsibilities, the execution of resolutions and
compliance with regulations, improve the supervision and
correction of violations, misconduct and omissions of
senior management, and promote the standardization and
legality of their decision-making and operating activities;
conduct focused supervision on the implementation of
the Company’s major operating decisions, major asset
acquisitions and external investments, and regularly review
and audit the Company’s financial reports to effectively
prevent business risks;

The Board of Supervisors will learn about laws, regulations
and relevant policies in a timely manner. The Board of
Supervisors will seriously study the laws, regulations and
relevant policies amended from time to time, continuously
urge the construction and operation of the internal control
system, promote a long-term effective mechanism of
standardizing corporate governance of the Company and
facilitate the sustainable and healthy development of the
Company; and

The members of the Board of Supervisors will diligently
and responsibly pay close attention to the production,
operation and management as well as important measures
of the Company on a daily basis, participate in the Board
meetings, shareholder’s general meetings and other
important meetings of the Company, and actively provide
their opinions or advice.
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By Order of the Board of Supervisors
Wang Xinglin
Chairman

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

March 28, 2024
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RE  HEREREKRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) issued by LEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or
“us” or “our”). It aims to disclose the performance
and outcomes in respect of environmental, social and
governance (the “ESG”) areas of the Company during
2023 to the stakeholders. In order to fully understand the
ESG practices and measures of the Company, the Report
should be read in conjunction with the section headed
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report and
“Corporate Governance” on the website of the Company.

Reporting Boundary

In accordance with the corporate and shareholding
structure for FY2023, the Report covers the scope of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Reporting Period of the
Report is from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.

Reporting Principles

In the preparation of the Report, the principles of
“materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance” and “consistency”
are used to define the content of the report and the
presentation of information.

Materiality: The Report has identified key stakeholders
and their ESG concerns in the preparation hereof, and
accordingly disclosed the same based on the relative
importance of their concerns. For details of the materiality
assessment work, please refer to the sub-sections headed
“Communication with Stakeholders” and “Material ESG
Issues Assessment” below.
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Quantitative: The Report uses quantitative information
to present key performance indicators in environmental
and social areas, and explains the quantitative standards,
methods, assumptions and/or computation, as well as
the sources of conversion factors used herein in the
appropriate places.

Balance: The purpose of the Report is to present a
balanced account of the Company’s efforts in four aspects
of ESG, including prudent management, responsible
operation, value of talents, and green operation.

Consistency: The data disclosed in the Report are based
on statistical methods consistent with previous public
disclosures. Individual changes have been explained to
ensure consistency.

Basis of Report

The Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set forth in Appendix C2 to
the Listing Rules.

Information Source

The information, data and cases used in the Report are
derived from the Company’s official documents, statistical
reports, financial reports or public documents, as well
as ESG practice information collected and summarized
by various functional departments of the Company. The
Board is responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and
completeness of the Report. This Report is published in
both Chinese and English. In case of any discrepancy, the
Chinese version shall prevail.
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ESG MANAGEMENT

The Company fully implements ESG concept into business
activities and management, and is committed to optimizing
ESG management strategy and governance structure,
leading the Company’s daily business decisions, and
constantly improving the Company’s ESG management

level.

1.

ESG Strategy

The Company adheres to the corporate philosophy
of “shape better lives with heartfelt care”, and is
committed to the creation and research of advanced
technology to provide safer, effective and innovative
medical solutions for the majority of patients with
CHD. In this way, we do our best to promote
the long-term development of human health. The
Company has incorporated the ESG concept into its
daily operation and management process, ensuring
the business operations align harmoniously with ESG
considerations. We always actively pay attention
to the demands from stakeholders and strive to
create maximum value for shareholders, customers
and employees. Besides, we work to improve the
corporate governance ability, and fulfill environmental
responsibilities, aiming to become a responsible
corporate citizen.

Driven by innovation, the Company remains steadfast
in its commitment to providing customers with high
quality and responsible products. We continue to
optimize our supplier management system and
adhere to the principles of integrity and honesty.
We protect the legitimate rights and interests of
employees and support their healthy development.
Besides, we actively address ESG-related risks.
We formulate feasible action targets and plans to
address the risks and seize the opportunities of
climate change. We gradually reduce the negative
impact of business operations on the environment,
and shoulder social responsibilities as always to
promote the common development of the enterprise
and each stakeholder.
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ESG Governance Structure
Board Statement

The Board of the Company is responsible for
ESG strategy and reporting, and for overseeing
the Company’s ESG matters. The Board decides
and reviews ESG matters, responsible for making
decisions on ESG-related strategic planning and
reviewing ESG performance.

The Company regularly assesses the materiality of
ESG issues. The specific evaluation process and
results are detailed in the sub-sections headed
“Communication with Stakeholders” and “Material
ESG Issues Assessment” in the ESG Report
and are reviewed by the Board. The Board has
comprehensively identified key ESG risks related to
the Company, including business ethics, information
security and privacy protection, intellectual property
rights, employee growth and development and
climate change etc., and developed relevant
response measures. We also require relevant
departments to implement relevant response
measures in the operations and management.

We also pay close attention to the setting of
environmental targets associated with our business
operations, i.e., targets to reduce emissions
and resource consumption from our day-to-day
operations. As the Company continues to expand,
we will explore and develop feasible environmental
targets to help the Company fully realize green
operations.

The Report also discloses the above-mentioned ESG
related matters in detail, which has been reviewed
and approved by the Board on March 28, 2024.
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Sustainable Actions

UN Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs)
aim to promote the global realization of sustainable
development in three dimensions: social, economic
and environmental, and to ensure the sustainable
development. We actively support the UN SDGs and
China’s National Plan on Implementation of the 2030
Agenda for Sustainable Development. Based on
the characteristics of the Company’s business, we
identified priorities under the UN SDGs framework
and took the following actions.

Prudent Management

o The Company attaches great importance to
the social value of the enterprise and regards
prudent management as the key to the
Company development. We strive to maintain
a high level governance, actively foster a
diverse culture, adhere to business ethics,
and strictly protect information security and
customer privacy. We continue to strengthen
all dimensions of management capabilities,
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Responsible Operation

° We adhere to the corporate philosophy
of “shape better lives with heartfelt care”,
continuously improves product quality, and
actively assumes social responsibility. We
attach great importance to product innovation,
strictly guarantee product quality, clarify
marketing responsibilities, and standardize
supplier management with the concept of
synergy and win-win. We are also committed to
public welfare to help build a harmonious and
beautiful community.
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Value of Talents

HEALTH AND

We pay attention to talent training, always
adhere to the people-oriented concept, stick
to the principle of diversity and inclusiveness,
and constantly expand the channels for talent
introduction. We respect the legitimate rights
and interests of employees, focus on the
occupational health and safety of employees,
continue to improve employee compensation
and benefits, performance evaluation,
promotion channels and training management,
provide employees with fair and diversified
development space, and strive to achieve
the common growth of employees and the
Company.

GOOD GENDER
EQUALITY

WELL-BEING

g

DECENT 10 REDUCED

WORK AND

INEQUALITIES

ECONOMIC

V'S

(=)

Green Operation

12

QO

We value environmental protection
responsibility, actively respond to the national
call for energy conservation and emission
reduction, and are committed to achieving
green operation. We continue to concern
environmental and resource utilization issues,
save energy use, and reduce pollutant
emissions in production and daily office
processes. At the same time, we are deeply
aware of the risks and opportunities brought
by climate change, and constantly improve
our operating system and further promote the
sustainable development of the Company.
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Communication with Stakeholders

The Company actively maintains a good cooperative
and reciprocal relationship with stakeholders. In
order to timely and comprehensively understand
the expectations and demands of stakeholders, we
communicate effectively with stakeholders through
various channels.

Based on our business scope and nature of
production and operation, we identify stakeholders
closely related to the development of the Company.
And those ESG issues of concern to stakeholders
serve as an important reference for the Company’s
ESG management direction and report disclosure.
During the Reporting Period, we maintained close
communication with stakeholders, and identified key
stakeholders in the Company’s business operations
along with communication and response methods
with reference to the Stock Exchange’s ESG
Reporting Guide as follows:

Key Stakeholders
FEFIRERA

ESG Issues of key concern
TEMEHESGHE

Governments and regulatory  Employment

authorities Ef%

BFREERE Supply chain management
HERER
Product responsibility
EmEE
Anti-corruption
RES
Community investment

HREE

Shareholders and investors Employment
BRR\EE 3
Product responsibility
EmEE
Anti-corruption
RE)S

NEHEELBE

D IRE BB AN SRR 4
ERENEEERHE AR
(SSREYETh g el aN:y)
HIEMERR - HAFIER R S
HETBEBZERERMARTD
B

BFERBSXHHRE - £E
ranE  WEARRERE
T E R M AR R 5 TR
B WK EHEHIEHESGE
BIERARIMESGE R T M
BERBENEESE - HEH
W HAEFSABETREFR
mAR 2EBIM(ESGH
SHEIDMEHARBEKE

BN EAR T MERNR
EIESN - ERBERET

Main Communication Channels

FEREBRRBRERE

Policy consultations
RREA

Incident reporting
SHER

Information disclosures
EERE

Shareholders’ meetings
REAE

Results announcements

Interim and annual reports
RERFERS

Announcements of significant events
EXFERE

Online and offline communication
BERERTAR

Company website

NGIFEN
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Key Stakeholders
TEFIRERA

Employees
BT

Patients

EFR

Suppliers
i

Media and non-governmental
organizations

L R

Communities

itE

ESG Issues of key concern
FEMEMESGHE

Employment

B

Health and safety
fEREZ e
Development and training
EEYEE

Labor standards

BT ER

Product responsibility
EmEfE
Anti-corruption
RE)5

Supply chain management
HERER
Anti-corruption

RER

Emissions

i3t

Use of resources

BREA

Environmental and natural resources
RERRAER
Employment

=

Supply chain management
HERER

Product responsibility
EmEE

Community investment

HtRKE

RE  HEgREREKRE

Main Communication Channels

IERBARRRE

Employee performance appraisal and feedback
BIRMERERE

Employee internal meetings

BINHERLR

Corporate internal announcements and emails
PEANDLE B

Employee activities

8IEH

Information disclosures
EERE

Daily business communication
AREBEAIN

Tender invitation for and assessment of suppliers
HEBRER AR

Regular meetings with suppliers
HEBTHERSE

Onsite inspection on suppliers

HEREHER

Press conferences
NEENEG

News interviews

MBS

Advertising and promotion
BEEEE

Social media

HREER

Industry seminars
ESVnk

Community engagement and communication
REFA R B A T 1 58
Identification of community demands

BRHES L
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5. Material ESG Issues Assessment

During the assessment of material ESG issues,
based on the requirements of the Stock Exchange’s
ESG Reporting Guide, we analyzed industry
characteristics and the Company’s business, and
communicated with key stakeholders through the
above-mentioned communication feedback channels.
In the end, we identified and summarized 13 material

ESG issues.

We evaluated and ranked the importance of each
ESG concerns from the two dimensions of the
impact on the Company’s operation and the impact
on stakeholders, and the evaluation results were
divided into three levels: high, moderate and general.
Among them, there are 4 items of high importance,
7 items of moderate importance and 2 items of
general importance. This Report will provide targeted
disclosure responses to each issue according to its

importance.

ScienTech Medical 2023 ESG Materiality Matrix
D REEE2023FESGE B M BB ER

Tt High

BB -k SR k2
Middle B

=

Significance to the stakeholders

Low 1K Middle A High =

Significance to the development of the Company

HOFBERRNERE

Continuous R&D

o and Innovation

bt vikz eIk

Company Governance
NEER

Employee Rights and
Interests Protection
B T HE=RE
Pollutant Discharge
Reduction
AT R BER
Information Security and
Privacy Protection
ERLEHBILRE
Resource Utilization
Conservation
BIRERMEL
Social Responsibilities
BITHEEE

EEESGHE=ER 4

HEEZESGEERHMEER -
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) BAETEFHEARE
%o WiEB EUERRERE
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BREESREEHSEARE
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Product Quality Initiatives
FEEMME

Comply with Business Ethics
BTRIRER

Occupational Health

e and Safety

BilEmars

Employee Growth and
Development

BT REER
Standardization in
Supplier Management
IRE R IR
Response to Climate
Change .
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PRUDENT MANAGEMENT

In the current complex and changeable market, prudent
management has become the key to the development
of enterprises. The Company continues to explore and
innovate to create more value for shareholders, customers,
employees and society, and providing strong support
and guarantee for the sustainable development of the
Company.

1. Corporate Governance

We are committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. The Board of the Company
consists of seven Directors, including one executive
Director, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
established three Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. The Board has delegated
to such Board Committees responsibilities as set out
in their respective terms of reference.

We are committed to promoting a diverse culture in
the Company. We have adopted the Board Diversity
Policy, which considers the benefits of diversity in
all aspects, including professional experience, skills,
knowledge, educational background, age, gender,
culture and ethnicity and length of service, to
maintain an appropriate scope and balance for the
talents, skills, experience and diversified perspectives
of the Board. The Board has a wide range of age,
ranging from 41 years old to 60 years old. Three
of our directors are female. In terms of diversity of
professional skills, our Directors have a balanced mix
of knowledge and skills, including but not limited to
various professional skills such as overall business
management, finance and accounting and material
science.
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Comply with Business Ethics

The Company strictly abides by business ethics
and strives to create a clean and positive business
environment. We strictly comply with a series of anti-
corruption and anti-bribery laws and regulations
such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Anti-Money Laundering Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery. We also adopt a “Zero Tolerance” attitude
towards any corruption or bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. In this way, we continuously
optimize the supervision system and closely integrate
it with business operations to achieve effective and
comprehensive regulation.

The Company implements the Integrity and Self-
Discipline System and signs the Commitment to
Integrity with all employees to regulate their behavior.
We require all of our employees to strictly observe
the ethical standards of honesty and integrity,
which are outlined in our Employee Manual. We
also impose anti-corruption responsibilities on our
distributors, who are explicitly obligated in our
distributorship agreement to comply with and require
their employees and affiliates to comply with all
applicable anti-bribery and anti-unfair competition
laws and regulations, and they are prohibited from
offering or promising to offer money or anything of
value to our employees or entities as required by
laws or regulations.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The Company actively conducts business ethics
training. All new employees are required to receive
orientation training related to business ethics.
Additionally, we invite third-party professional
organizations to regularly conduct legal and
regulatory training related to business ethics for all
employees to enhance their integrity in practice.
During the year, the Company conducted training
for all employees on the contract management
process, employee confidentiality obligations and
non-competition restrictions, and popularized the
relevant legal provisions and punishment standards
for embezzlement to employees, so as to improve
employees’ ability to prevent business ethics and
legal risks. We also focus on strengthening the
training and supervision of anti-corruption and
integrity promotion in medical institutions, organizing
employees to study in depth the Guidance on
Strengthening the Handling of Bribery Crime Cases,
the Nine Principles for the Integrity of Medical
Institution Staff and the National Action Plan for the
Integrity of Medical Institutions and Their Staff (2021-
2024), improve the anti-corruption consciousness,
resolutely avoid the occurrence of medical corruption
and commercial bribery in pharmaceutical purchasing
and marketing medical services. During the
Reporting Period, the data on anti-corruption training
was included in employee training statistics.

To better supervise the fulfillment of business
ethics, we have set up supervision and reporting
channels such as reporting hotline, e-mail and letter
to encourage all stakeholders to actively report
actual or suspected violations of ethical standards
or employee professional ethics. Our internal audit
department is responsible for investigating the
reports and allegations, keeping written records, and
reporting the investigation results to management
and the Board. If our employees are confirmed to
have committed fraud, corruption, bribery, or other
misconducts, the Company will carry out serious
accountability and strict investigation in accordance
with relevant internal policies, and those suspected
of illegal or criminal activities will be transferred
to judicial authorities for handling. For the identity
information of the whistleblowers, we will keep
it strictly confidential to ensure their privacy and
security.

There were no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Company or its
employees during the Reporting Period.
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Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Company strictly abides by the Cybersecurity
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Data
Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China and
other applicable laws and regulations. Meanwhile, the
Company follows relevant implementation guidance,
industry standards and legal regulations such as the
Norms on the Quality Management for the Clinical
Trials of Medical Devices and the Interim Measures
for the Administration of Human Genetic Resources.
We have also formulated and implemented a series
of information security and privacy protection
management systems such as the File Server
Use and Management Specification to protect the
medical data processing records and other personal
sensitive information of clinical trials and patients
enrolled in clinical trials after commercialization of
relevant products.

To ensure network information security, we have
clarified the principles and methods of personal data
protection in the File Server Use and Management
Specification, set different permissions for file access
and modification, and strengthened internal security
management through different means, including
disaster-tolerant backup, anti-virus software, and
password policies. Meanwhile, we conduct 24/7
uninterrupted monitoring of the network and system
operating environment to prevent network risks
and vulnerabilities. During the Reporting Period,
the Company’s scanning rate of all server security
vulnerabilities was 100%, reached 100% completion
rate of annual review of business important system
permissions, constructed no less than 100 security
monitoring scenarios.
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We respect the privacy of patients, customers and
employees and have a number of safeguards in
place to protect their personal data from improper
disclosure or use. Being fully aware of the high
sensitivity of personal information of patients or
subjects in clinical trials, we strictly comply with
the requirements in the Norms on the Quality
Management for the Clinical Trials of Medlical Devices
to conduct product clinical trials and have taken a
number of safeguards to protect the legitimate rights
and privacy of subjects.

° We sign confidentiality agreements with all
employees, suppliers, and partners involved
in confidential information, and require each
employee and managerial staff to fulfill their
confidentiality obligations.

° Qur clinical trials are strictly carried out in
accordance with the Norms on the Quality
Management for the Clinical Trials of Medical
Devices, reviewed by the Medical Ethics
Committee, and completed with the help of
cooperative clinical trial centers (hospitals),
sample testing units, etc. We have also signed
the Informed Consent with the subjects to
protect their legal rights and interests as well
as the safety of their privacy.

o We demand our partners conduct clinical
trials in accordance with the requirements for
protecting subjects’ privacy stipulated in the
Good Clinical Practice, and closely monitor and
manage the clinical trial process.

We also focus on enhancing employees’ awareness
of information security and privacy protection.
During the Reporting Period, the coverage rates for
employee information security training and personal
information protection training were both 100%. The
compliance rate for personal information protection
control was 100%, and there were zero incidents of
personal information leakage.
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IV. RESPONSIBLE OPERATION

Adhering to the corporate philosophy of “shape better
lives with heartfelt care”, the Company holds the “quality-
first” principle, actively builds and continuously optimizes
the quality management system covering the entire
process of research and development, production sales,
etc., and standardizes the management of suppliers.
Moreover, we enhance technological innovation and
product development, and respond to patients’ needs
with innovative medical products and services, so as
to lay a solid foundation for the Company’s long-term
development.

1. Continuous R&D and Innovation

The Company believes that R&D innovation is
the core driver for the Company’s sustainable
development. We continue to increase R&D input,
build a talent team for scientific research and
innovation, and actively carry out joint research in
the industry. We also respect and protect intellectual
property rights, and develop structural heart
diseases (SHD) and interventional heart valve medical
devices with independent intellectual property rights
for the global market, so as to meet the needs of
doctors and patients with technological innovation,
and to provide the market with safe, effective, and
innovative medical products and services.
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Abiding by the Principles of R&D

The Company has made continuous efforts
to establish a sound safety compliance R&D
innovation system. In strict accordance with
the Biosecurity Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Medical Devices and the
Measures for the Administration of Registration
and Recordation of Medical Devices and
other laws and regulations, the Company
has formulated the control document Design
and Development Control Procedure with
reference to 1SO14971:2019. This document
provides comprehensive and detailed
regulations on project initiation planning,
research and development, design and
development conversion, project identification
and confirmation, registration stage and
mass production stage, thus making the
whole process management of design and
development more standardized.

Advocating Innovation

The Company always believes that innovation
is the source power of the development of the
Company. We have set up a high-quality R&D
team and built a high-quality R&D center to
promote the high-quality development of the
Company. We have established research and
development centers in Beijing and Shanghai,
which lays a solid foundation for the innovative
research and development of our products
and services, the cultivation of talents and the
establishment of industry standards.
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We have built our R&D team with technological
expertise in various areas, primarily including
nitinol shape memory cutting and braiding
techniques, animal source material processing
techniques, biodegradable material controlled
release techniques, suturing techniques, and
structure design and processing techniques.
Our R&D team has a total of 52 members from
the fields of biomaterials, biomedical science,
material science, and mechanical engineering,
with approximately 40% holding a master’s or
higher degree in relevant fields. The Company’s
R&D team has extensive expertise, which
allows it to develop products with unique
designs and notable pre-clinical research
results.
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At the same time, we maintain continuous
collaboration with hospitals, research
institutions and experts in the field to ensure
that our R&D progress is capable of addressing
the evolving needs of patients and doctors.
We have collaborated with a prominent
medical institution in China in the research and
development of our TAVR system, which is
expected to be 100% deployable, retrievable
and repositionable before decoupling from the
delivery system. We have also collaborated
with the National Engineering Research
Center for Biomaterials (BSR4 %224 %}
TRREMFES L), Fuwai Hospital (B4h
B2p7), Changhai Hospital (K/&%F), Hefei
High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital (AIES
#¥1EPBT), Shanghai Medical Devices Testing
Institute (E/BMEESMLFBFAI), and
Shandong Institute of Medical Device and
Pharmaceutical Packaging Inspection (ILE%
BB SR B B IR BRI %EPT). Together, we
conduct research on biodegradable occluder
materials for cardioembolic stroke prevention
and treatment and to optimize the processing
techniques and testing methods. By doing
so, we have formed a holistic professional
cooperation chain of basic research — clinical
application — translational medicine — industrial
application. The cooperation represents an
all-round integration of enterprises, research
institutes and hospitals, and has gained the
national support as a major project. Relying on
the project, we aim to optimize biodegradable
product design and strengthen our techniques
in degradation rate control, which plays a key
role in the development of our biodegradable
occluder product and product candidates.
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1.3 R&D Achievements 1.3 BIFTHHE6LE

As a leader and pioneer in the field of SHD, we
always embrace innovation in the development
of new materials and new structural design.
We are committed to exploring the frontier
of cardiac medical devices, so as to develop
more safe, effective, diversified products and
solutions for the treatment of SHD. We pay
close attention to technological progress
and industry trends, and actively promote
our technology and product iteration and
value exploration. Our key solutions include:
CHD Treatment Solutions, Cardioembolic
Stroke Prevention Solutions, Valvular Disease
Treatment Solutions, and Pressure Regulation
Treatment Solutions. Except the occluder
series products, we continue to research
biodegradable technology and interatrial shunt
device, vascular plug and other procedural
accessories related to invasive heart procedure,
of which we have achieved industry-leading
achievements in biodegradable technology.
During the Reporting Period, Our fourth
generation MemoSorb® biodegradable ASD
occluder product candidate has completed
its clinical trial stage, registration application
of which has been submitted to the NMPA
for approval in June 2023; the second
generation MemoSorb® biodegradable
PFO occluder product was approved by
the NMPA in September 2023; Bio-Lefort®
biodegradable LAA occlude product candidate
has successfully completed its pre-clinical
type inspection stage and animal test stage
as planned and officially entered the stage of
multi-center clinical trial enroliment.
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From the concept of green medicine and
sustainable development, biodegradable
occluders have significant advantages
From the social perspective, compared with
traditional metal occluders, the biodegradable
occluder will play the role of a temporary bridge
to facilitate the completion of autologous tissue
repair after implantation in the human body.
When the endothelialization of the occluder
surface is complete, the occluder will be
gradually degraded and eventually become
carbon dioxide and water and be discharged
from the body, leaving no foreign matter, thus
avoiding the risk of long-term complications
and the possibility of reoperation caused by
the traditional metal occluder permanently
remaining in the body after implantation,
providing patients with more optimized surgical
treatment plans, and also helping to reduce the
burden on the social medical system. From the
environmental perspective, the biodegradable
occluder can be naturally degraded in the
body without additional intervention or surgical
removal, which reduces the pollution of medical
waste to the environment and promotes the
development of the concept of green medicine
care.
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By the end of the Reporting Period, we had HEREHR  BME

achieved the following key advances in R&D:

Product Name

EmREE

Cardioembolic Stroke Prevention

Product — Biodegradable LAA Closure
Occluder Il

DR ERTER E R —— £ VR B OF
HIERE (I11R)

G-Cruiser® Biodegradable Occluder
Intervention Delivery System
G-Cruiser®f] & iR 5118 83 T ABIX 248

Disposable Introducing Sheath
/N

Cardioembolic Stroke Prevention Product —

Biodegradable MemoSorb® PFO Occluder IV

IR R IA Em —— £V R [E R
MemoSorb®5[ [B FL A A E HE 28 IV

ExtraSnare® Multiple-loop Snare
ExtraSnare®% IR B £ 25

ScienCrown® Transcatheter Aortic Valve
Replacement (“TAVR”) System
ScienCrown®ili fE Z £ TAVR

MERGBMSUATER
B -

Progress

EtE

The first implantation was completed in
China in February 2023, with multiple
6-month postoperative follow-ups completed
to date, and the product is in the pre-
commercialization clinical trial stage.
20232 REFETKENEA BEBAD
e Z D168 A BEsn - ZEmBai £ ATER KA
HEFEER -

Approved by the NMPA in June 2023,

it helps promote the application of
biodegradable occluders.

20236 AERERE BE - BAIEAEIE
SEHHERBRMA S -

Approved by the NMPA in June 2023, it has
completed the CHD interventional medical
consumable product line.

2023F 6 ABBREE /HLE - BHEOTA
FEMEMIRZER o

Approved by the NMPA for commercialization
in September 2023, it is the world’s first
biodegradable PFO occluder. To date,

more than 600 Biodegradable MemoSorb®
PFO Occluder IV have been successfully
implanted following commercialization.
20239 R EBKREERIE LT - RERE
E R PR O EFLARPAE 2SS - BEBAIE T
FXB008RHI_ETHIRHE A ©

It is approved by the NMPA in October 2023.
2023F10 AEBERK EE R -

The one-year postoperative follow-up results
of the clinical research were announced in
December 2023, and the product is currently
in the registration and approval stage with
the NMPA.

202812 A AT T ERIKFFE — FHABE R 45

R EmBRERBEREEERDTMEREER o
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Product Name Progress

EmEE EE

MemoSorb® Biodegradable ASD Occluder, Currently in the registration and approval
RF-Lance® Disposable Radiofrequency stage with the NMPA.

Atrial Septal Puncture Needle, RF-Lance® BAlGR R EREE B MEREE -

Radiofrequency Puncture Instrument, and
Ceniper® Disposable Atrial Septal Puncture
System
MemoSorb® 4 ¥ 7] 4 B 5 [ b TR 18 BT 4 8%
RF-Lance®— X 14 57 48 5 fElb@ RISt -

RF — Lance®5f #85F & - Ceniper®— X 1%
%Fﬁ%l’?ﬂ%m%%u%

" \1 Case: Biodegradable MemoSorb® PFO Occluder approved by the NMPA l’ oS

” £l : MemoSorb®EMTIERIPELRAHERERRBE Rt # N _7

On September 11, 2023, the Biodegradable MemoSorb® PFO Occluder independently
developed by LEPU ScienTech was approved by the National Medical Products
Administration (NMPA), making it the world’s first approved biodegradable PFO
occluder. Unlike the traditional metal occluders, biodegradable occluders can be
degraded over time into carbon dioxide and water upon the completion of endothelial
repair, they would not be permanent implants in the human body, and this will
lead to more optimal surgical treatment options for patients. The NMPA approval
of our MemoSorb® PFO Occluder marks the entry into the biodegradable era for
the prevention and treatment of cardioembolic stroke. In the same month, the
Biodegradable MemoSorb® PFO Occluder was used for the purpose of compassionate
use for the first time in the world after its commercialization.

2023F9A11 A « LREBEA EHEAMemoSorb®AE ¥ A F& 750 B 7L AR BAH 1 2R B K
EZERINMPABLE - KARZKEEESLO A FEENINE AR ES - BERESEHIE
25 NE - Y] BE AR T B SR AE N R IS 1B e Ak 18 RI BE RS R R iR R — ALK - TEEAR
PRABEYE  ERREEFREZERENFINAEAR @ LEFE LREZEFRHIEEM
HEARIFEAEEFR o B A - MemoSorb®4: ¥ Al B 2 0 [B] FL R B St HE 28 e K ETh 18 2 3k & 1l
BIFRRIEEA °
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During the Reporting Period, the Company
obtained multiple certifications and industry
honors and awards in the field of technology
research and development:

° In March 2023, Shanghai Shape Memory
Alloy Co., Ltd. was accredited as the
“Shanghai Enterprise Technology Center”.

. In October 2023, Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy Co., Ltd. won the “First
Prize of Beijing Science and Technology
Invention Award”.

o In November 2023, as the leading unit,
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy Co.,
Ltd. undertook the “National Key R&D
Project in the 14th Five-Year Plan” of the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the
People’s Republic of China - “Research
and Development of Fully Biodegradable
Occluder Products for the Prevention and
Treatment of Cardiogenic Stroke”.

° The “Fully Biodegradable Occluder
System” independently developed by
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy was
successfully recognized by Science and
Technology Commission of Shanghai
Municipality as 2023 Accreditation of
a project in transforming high-tech
achievements in Shanghai. (Project No.
202301063)

o The “Interventional Delivery System for
Occluder” independently developed
by Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy was
successfully recognized by Science and
Technology Commission of Shanghai
Municipality as 2023 Accreditation of a
model project in transforming high-tech
achievements in Shanghai. (Project No.
202301064)
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1.4 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Company is deeply aware that the
protection of intellectual property rights is
important for the long-term stable development
of the Company. In strict compliance with the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations, we have formulated the
Measures for the Administration of Intellectual
Property Rights to strengthen the management
of the Company’s trademarks and patents
and maintain the advantages of independent
innovation.

The Company has established a professional
intellectual property team responsible for patent
applications, protection and operations, which
reports directly to the chairman on intellectual
property-related matters. Additionally, we have
established stable partnership with multiple
patent agencies and law firms, which provide
professional legal services for the application
and maintenance of Company’s patents.
Furthermore, we cooperate with external
professional institutions to advance patent
navigation decision-making projects. Based on
the results of patent navigation analysis, we
refine the Company’s development strategy
and avoid patent risks in product launches
from various aspects, such as the Company’s
development direction, competitive strategy
and patent operation. This also enables us to
identify the key new products, keep optimizing
the product structure, and promote technology
integration and patent integration based on
products.
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We have a number of innovative products with
independent proprietary intellectual property
rights and continue to expand and develop
a broader portfolio of intellectual property
rights. The Company carries out standardized
management of intellectual property rights,
and regularly organizes third-party professional
institutions and project teams composed
of company managers, R&D personnel and
intellectual property personnel to jointly carry
out standardization supervision and audit work
and correct any existing problems. Finally,
we invite independent third-party professional
institutions to conduct re-certification of
standards implementation.

The Company attaches great importance to
the use and protection of patents, and has
formulated the Patent Dispute Management
Procedures to deal with intellectual property
disputes. We have purchased patent and
trademark insurance to ensure that high-
value patents continue to bring benefits to
the Company. Throughout new product and
technology development, we have taken strict
preventive measures:

° During the R&D phase, we conduct
patent early warning analysis, and
track and retrieve technology in similar
fields to ensure there are no conflicting
applications.

o During the application phase, we focus
on the quality of documents for patent
applications and the scope of rights
protection.

o During the practical application phase,
we focus on the maintenance of patent
validity and the continuous assessment
of the value of patents, thus preparing for
their implementation in various ways.
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The Company invests more than RMB600,000
annually in patent applications. By the
end of reporting period, the Company had
obtained 243 registered patents, including
39 invention patents, 200 utility patents and
4 design patents. 60 domestic patents were
pending, including 57 invention patents and
3 utility patents. We also had 2 PCT patents
granted by the European Patent Office
authorized, with 17 applications pending.
In addition, the Company has 54 registered
trademarks. During the Reporting Period, the
Company obtained the Intellectual Property
Management System Certification (Certificate
No.: ZJLH21IPOO0O9ROM) and was rated as
a National Intellectual Property Advantage
Enterprise.

Product Quality Initiatives

The Company believes that good product quality
is crucial to patient health and safety. We attach
great importance to quality control of products and
strictly abide by applicable laws and regulations of
the countries and regions where we operate, such
as the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Regulation on the Supervision and
Administration of Medical Devices, the Measures for
the Administration of Registration and Recordation
Medical Devices and the Measures for the
Supervision and Administration of Medical Device
Production. Based on these laws and regulations,
we have established a sound product quality control
system.
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2.1

HE

Strengthening Quality Management

The Company has developed a series of
related standard operating procedures (SOPs),
including the Working Environment Control
Procedure, the Design and Development
Control Procedure, the Production and
Service Control Procedure, the Clinical
Evaluation Control Procedure and the Adverse
Event Monitoring and Re-evaluation Control
Procedure. In this way, we have formed a
comprehensive quality management system
that covers pre-development and planning,
clinical trials safety, manufacturing and post-
marketing supervision. The Company’s quality
management system complies with a variety
of legal and regulatory requirements and
international standards, including registration
certificates from numerous countries, such as
Mexico, Brazil, Ukraine, Argentina, Pakistan,
Russia, Colombia, Kazakhstan, Peru, Saudi
Arabia and Sri Lanka, ISO 13485 Quality
Management System Certification and EU
Medical Device Directive (MDD) CE Mark
Certification. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, the Company has accumulated 18
products that have obtained the NMPA Medical
Device Registration Certificate.

bsi.

Certificate of Registration
QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM - ISO 13485:2016 & EN ISO 13485:2016
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We constantly strengthen and solidify our
product manufacturing capabilities. For this
purpose, we employ experienced production
personnel and a quality control team, purchase
advanced production facilities, and formulate
strict quality control standards to assure
the production of high-quality products. The
Company’s quality control team primarily
follows up on quality management status
concerning product design and development,
raw materials supply and procurement,
product manufacturing and delivery as well
as after-sales services, to ensure compliant
manufacturing of qualified products.

With years of expertise and management
experience, we have established a three-
tier quality control system with reference to
international quality authentication standards.
The system provides solid assurance for
product quality management throughout the
whole product lifecycle, from product design
and development, procurement, production and
sales and customer service.

° Tier 1: Programmatic guidelines for a
comprehensive quality system with the
Company’s Quality Manual as the core.

o Tier 2: Detailed procedural requirements
for each section that may affect final
product quality.

° Tier 3: Defined the SOPs applied for each
task based on the two preceding tiers.
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With regard to the production phase, we
strictly follow the Production and Service
Provision Control Procedure to standardize

EEERER  RFMESE
BRERCEEMREREE
HIZF) - LR ENIRE

the production and service procedures EEMRBRRE  RE
and guarantee the precision, efficiency and SEREMNREE - B X
safety of the production process. In terms of Mzz2k EERE®R
product quality inspection, we strictly follow RE  RMIERBIRRB(E

the Product Monitoring and Measurement
Control Procedure, the Inspection Standard
Operating Procedure, the Identification and
Traceability Control Procedure, the Non-
conforming Product Control Procedure, etc.
By doing so, we can monitor the calibration
of devices and equipment, standardize
product quality inspection work, and avoid the
occurrence of non-conforming events. With a
focus on product performance testing, product
measurement and product label verification,
our quality control inspectors will inspect
products, keep inspection records for each
batch of products, check and verify records,
and dispose of or destroy unqualified products.
The aforementioned measures can effectively
ensure that all non-conformities event
throughout the product lifecycle, from raw
material procurement through the production
process to product delivery, can be properly
identified and managed, providing a firm
guarantee for the product quality.

° Strict quality control and inspection
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We attach great importance to the cultivation
of quality awareness of employees, and
actively carry out various quality training
activities to ensure the steady improvement
of product quality. We organize training for
production personnel, including industry quality
management regulations, quality awareness,
etc., and assess the participating employees
through questions, practical operations and
written answers, etc., to further implement the
training content, provide fundamental guarantee
for product quality.

Quality Special Training of the Company
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2.2 Responsible Marketing and Feedback

The Company strictly complies with the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Regulation on the Implementation
of the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Criteria for
the Examination and Publication of Medical
Apparatus Advertisements, the Regulation on
the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices, the Measures for the Administration
of Medical Device Adverse Event Monitoring
and Re-evaluation, the Measures for the
Administration of Medical Device Recalls
and other relevant laws and regulations
in China, the EU and other countries and
regions where we operate, continuously
standardizing marketing activities. On this
basis, we have established the Product Recall
Control Procedure, the Quality Information
Feedback Control Procedure, the Adverse
Event Monitoring and Re-evaluation Control
Procedure, the Administrative Provisions on
Customer Complaints, etc. to clarify product
after-sales management standards and
customer complaint handling procedures. This
is to ensure that sales and marketing activities
in China and overseas are carried out in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

We have commercialized 14 and 11 products
respectively in China and Overseas. We are
committed to the proper use of trademarks,
images and other materials and rigorously
manage the authenticity, accuracy and
compliance of marketing materials during the
marketing process.
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We continue to strengthen our staff’s
awareness of legal compliance. This year, we
carried out special training on advertising laws
and regulations, popularized to our staff the
background and content of the Advertising
Law, the Interim Measures for the Examination
and Administration of Advertisements for Drugs,
Medical Devices, Health Food and Formula
Foods for Special Medical Purposes, the Interim
Provisions for the Administration of Language
and Writing in Advertisements, the extreme
wording in advertisements and the basis of
punishment for advertising violations. We also
carefully interpreted the important provisions of
the advertising law for staff to understand and
learn.

The Company focuses on fostering employees’
awareness of responsible marketing. This year,
we have provided comprehensive training
for our internal marketing team and external
partners. For our internal marketing staff,
we have offered training covering company
policies, integrity and self-discipline, quality
control, compliance operations, information
security, and legal knowledge to ensure that
team members adhere to the code of conduct
in work and professional ethics. Furthermore,
to enhance the professional competence of the
marketing team, we have also conducted in-
depth training in the areas of academic clinical
basics, product knowledge, and operation
support skills. This training not only strengthens
the professional skills of the marketing team
members but also further reinforces their
concept of responsible marketing. In terms
of training for external partners, we have
conducted department meetings for product
training in several hospitals to enhance external
partners’ understanding and application
capabilities of our products. Through these
efforts, we also aim to convey our responsible
marketing concept, and jointly promote the
healthy development of the industry.
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We have established various feedback channels
for our customers, including product labels and
instructions, the Company’s official website
and an adverse event monitoring system.
In line with the requirements of the Quality
Information Feedback Control Procedure, we
receive and handle customer complaints to
protect their legitimate rights and interests
from being infringed. While having a reporting
system in place for adverse events to
proactively investigate the situation of adverse
events, we also firmly adhere to the policy
of “prompt report of any suspicious event”.
Besides, we undertake special self-inspection
and investigation on adverse events regarding
feedback information, product returns, and
internal traceability of products to analyze and
correct misconducts.

According to the Advisory Notices and Recalls
Control Procedure, we continuously refine
the product recall management and formulate
a detailed recall program to enable us to
complete the recall process within the required
deadline. Once a product is recalled, we take
a series of measures to replace or destroy the
recalled product and report the recall situation
to the regulatory authorities. During the
Reporting Period, the Company had no product
recall event.

In accordance with the Quality Information
Feedback Control Procedure, the Company
actively handles customer complaints. For
product quality issues and quality complaints
received, the Company will handle them
in accordance with relevant policies and
provide timely feedback. After completing the
investigation within the stipulated time frame,
quality complaints are closed to ensure that
every product complaint is addressed promptly
and followed up with continuous quality
improvement.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company
received 3 complaints’ about products and
services and 15 medical device adverse
events?, all of which were resolved. In addition,
our customer complaint response rate,
customer complaint resolution rate, and overall
satisfaction rate of complaint handling were all
100%:3.

3. Standardization in Supplier Management

The Company is committed to harmonious
cooperation with high-quality suppliers to create
a transparent, safe and stable high-quality supply
chain. We adhere to the principle of win-win
cooperation in the selection, access and evaluation
of suppliers during cooperation, and incorporate
environmental and social risks into supplier
performance evaluation indicators. By strictly
implementing policies such as the Procurement
Control Procedure and the Supplier Evaluation
Control, we continuously standardize the purchasing
process and refine management requirements to
ensure that the procured products and services meet
high-quality standards.

Complaints about products and services include feedback and
suggestions for improvement on product and service quality
provided by hospitals, doctors, and patients we work with.

A medical device adverse event refers to any harmful event
occurred while using marketed medical devices under their normal
usage that causes, or is likely to cause, harm to human body.
The statistics of comprehensive satisfaction rate of complaint
handling include satisfaction with our customer service related
“service items” and product quality related “non-service items”.
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In the supplier selection and access section,
the Company has set up an evaluation team
through collaboration and cooperation involving
the Procurement Department, Quality Department
and other departments with procurement needs
to evaluate all potential suppliers according to
the technical requirements of the products based
on the requirements of the Procurement Control
Procedure and the Supplier Evaluation Control.
After a review of the qualification documents
submitted by the suppliers, we will conduct an
on-site specific inspection for suppliers of critical
materials. Ultimately, we comprehensively review the
sample results, business qualifications, production
and quality assurance capabilities, quality system
certification status, etc., to include top suppliers in
our qualified supplier list. This year, 191 suppliers
met the relevant employment requirements of
our Procurement Control Procedure and Supplier
Evaluation Control.

While focusing on the suppliers’ ability to deliver
high-quality goods and services, we also consider
environmental and social risks in supplier selection.
Under the premise of compliance with laws and
regulations related to environmental protection, work
safety, and labor management, we try our best to
employ suppliers who have environmental protection
or other related green credentials.

The Company continuously optimizes the list of
qualified suppliers and strictly reviews and evaluates
such suppliers on a yearly basis. For suppliers failing
to meet the qualification rate for products supplied,
we will urge them to make corrections. If suppliers
cannot effectively improve, we will initiate the exit
procedure according to relevant rules to ensure the
continuous quality and stability of the supply chain.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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During the Reporting Period, we primarily cooperated
with suppliers with a sound reputation in the
domestic or international industry. In addition, some
suppliers have obtained qualifications such as
ISO 9001, ISO 13485, and Environmental Impact
Assessment report.

Indicator

EEEB

Total number of suppliers

HEmRR

Number of suppliers by
geographical region

B ERSHHERNE

Domestic suppliers
BAMEEEE

Social Responsibilities

The Company actively gives back to society,
striving to fulfill its corporate social responsibility
while developing. Deeply engaging in the field
of interventional medical devices targeting heart
diseases, we actively promote cooperation in the
industry, share experience and discuss technical
problems with domestic and foreign experts by
holding and participating in various academic
conferences and seminars, and jointly promote the
development of the field of interventional medical
devices targeting heart diseases and benefit more
patients.

4,

WEBA - BME2HEBAIN
TERNODEEREMHEREE
TEE XrHEEBD DG
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Number

191

180

Overseas suppliers (including Hong Kong,
Macao and Taiwan)
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Case: Successfully Held MemoSorb Degradable Roundtable

to Help Children with a Healthy Future
£ - DREFBHETMemoSorbFIERBERE W HREBERERRK

In December 2023, the Company successfully held MemoSorb degradable Roundtable
meeting during CPCS2023 11th Children’s Heart Disease Congress. This roundtable
attracted industry experts from Shanghai Children’s Medical Center, the First Affiliated
Hospital of Guangxi Medical University and many other medical institutions together to
conduct in-depth discussion and exchange ideas on the clinical application of MemoSorb
degradable series occluder, laying a solid foundation for promoting the clinical application
and standardized development of innovative degradable occluder.

2023F12 8 + DFBEEACPCS2023% +—ERE OB RS HIRE - BIIEH 7 MemoSorb Al
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MemoSorb Degradable Roundtable
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Case: Convene MemoSorb Biodegradable Series Theme
Satellite Meeting to Explore New Directions in

Structural Heart Disease Prevention and Treatment

R : OFEREMMemoSorb TRRRIIEESER - KERMBOBAB AT AR

In December 2023, LEPU ScienTech held MemoSorb degradable satellite meeting themed
as “From the Heart, to the Brain’s Peace”. The meeting gathered experts and professors
from Jiangsu Provincial People’s Hospital, Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular Disease Hospital
and other authoritative medical institutions to jointly discuss the innovation achievements
in the field of cardiogenic stroke prevention and treatment of structural heart disease and
the new direction of future development. It has injected new vitality into the development of
interventional therapy of heart disease.
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Case: Set Up the Full Degradation Occlusion Technology

Training Center to Help Talent Training

RO ORERBIISERIEZREENSC  BHTRASIESR

In May 2023, the training center for degradation occlusion technology of LEPU College was
officially unveiled. The training center aims to provide high-quality technical training and
academic exchanges for more clinicians by uniting a group of clinical experts with mature
technology and norms as teachers, so as to promote the level of interventional therapy in the
field of structural heart to a new height of development and benefit more patients.
20235 H - 4L Bk 2 R IERIFIR O ERIEIE o ZIF T OIER 2 0 AR 3 B i 8
BRiET e EEBBKAS —HRMKARENERERELSTH  REZHABERMES
BENRMFNIMBMRN - EMEDEBORENAGEKTERFINERESE  BERES
BE o

R B F B
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Opening ceremony of the LEPU College training center
2e % By 2[R AR E E R I P O E R

V. VALUE OF TALENTS R EBEAL
Putting our people first, we stick to the principle of RATIERFRFIUAABINIES -
diversity and inclusion, and actively expand channels BiEZTEANEL - BREEA
for talent introduction to create a fair and diversified AB|EEE  BORBETITER
development space for employees. We fully respect T ZOMBERETEE - BB
the rights and interests of all employees. We have BEREETER  HHEMEETR -
formulated strict regulations on compensation and ENEL L R E S E TR
benefits, performance evaluation and rewards and g EHBAETRHABZFHE
punishments, and provide reasonable promotion channels B EAE TR EENYS B
for employees. We also attach great importance to the FEIHREBEAFELRE -

occupational health and safety of our employees and work
together with them to realize sustainable development.
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Employee Rights and Interests Protection

We strictly comply with the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor and other
relevant laws and regulations, as well as the ten
principles of the United Nations Global Compact,
the core conventions of the International Labor
Organization, and other requirements related to the
protection of human rights, and have established and
implemented internal policies such as the Employee
Manual and the Recruitment Management System
to protect the legitimate rights and interests of our
employees.

1.1 Employment and Labor Standards

The Company conducts recruitment based
on the principles of open recruitment, equal
competition and merit-based selection to
ensure equal employment. We carry out
recruitment through a variety of channels,
including recruitment agency promotion,
internal recommendations, online job boards
and offline job fairs, to attract a wide range
of talents. We provide equal employment
opportunities for candidates and forbid
discrimination against candidates based on
their ethnicity, race, age, gender, marital status
or religious beliefs. Additionally, we adopt a
“zero tolerance” attitude towards any form of
discrimination, harassment, or violation of the
dignity of others.
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We sign labor contracts with candidates
on a voluntary basis and strictly follow the
legal requirements in the process of signing,
renewing, or terminating labor contracts.
We abide by legal requirements such as the
Regulations on the Prohibition of Child Labor
and resolutely eliminate violations such as the
use of child labor and forced labor. We ensure
that applicants meet the minimum legal working
age requirements by requesting identity
documents during the recruitment process. In
case of any employment of child labor or forced
labor, we will conduct investigation according
to relevant procedures. If the violation is
verified, we will deal with it in accordance with
national laws and regulations as well as the
internal company policies, promptly rectify
the situation and compensate the employees
concerned. In serious violations, the relevant
liable unit shall be held accountable.
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1.2 Compensation and Benefits

Adhering to the principle of “igniting
employees’ enthusiasm”, we have formulated
and implemented internal norms such as the
Human Resource Administrative Manual, the
Compensation and Performance Management
System, and the Collection of Administrative
Incentive Policies. We have designed a
compensation and performance system to
attract, retain and motivate talents. We provide
competitive compensation and performance-
based cash rewards to employees, optimize
and adjust compensation on an annual
basis according to the employee’s career
development plan. At the beginning of 2024,
the Company introduced a mechanism that
links employees’ compensation to performance,
and implemented a non-threshold bonus policy
for the marketing teams to further stimulate the
potential of employees. Meanwhile, we provide
long-term share-based remuneration incentives
to R&D staff, encouraging them to continuously
carry out research and development work
and constantly enhance the Company’s R&D
competitiveness.

Strictly abiding by the Social Insurance Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation
on Paid Annual Leave for Employees, the
Regulations Concerning the Labor Protection
of Female Staff and Workers and other relevant
laws and regulations, we keep improving
non-monetary benefits. For example, we pay
statutory social insurances and housing fund
and supplementary commercial insurance
for employees in a timely manner, and offer
perks such as sickness benefits, annual
physical examinations, as well as gifts for
special occasions like festivals, marriages and
birthdays.
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We are committed to building a diverse and fair
working environment. We also fully respect the
rights and interests of all employees, and treat
minority employees, employees with disabilities
and retired-and-rehired employees equally. In
addition, the Company pays special attention
to the rights and interests of female employees,
and fully guarantees the equal treatment of
them. Specifically, we actively provide exclusive
benefits and care, and hold training sessions,
sharing sessions and other activities for female
employees. Moreover, as a “Civilized Women'’s
Post” unit in Songjiang District, Shanghai,
the percentage of female employees in the
Company has long been maintained at over
50%. This year, 55% of employees are female,
with more than 60% of management and 56%
of the R&D team being female.
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2023 Employment Overview

Category of employees

EIgEY
Overall
EHEER
By gender Male employees EHET
BRENBS Female employees THET
By age Employees aged under 30 30U TETL
BRERES Employees aged 31 to 50 31E50RET
Employees aged over 51 51 FET
By position Senior management employees SR EEEET
BRGNS Middle management employees FREEEE T
Ordinary employees ETRET
By geographical Mainland China RESEAMERE T
region Hong Kong, Macau, BoME
BMERS Taiwan and overseas (EBRE)ET
By employment Full-time employees EAET
category Interns BEE
REREHNRS

2023 Employee Turnover Overview

Category of employees

RIgY

Overall

EhaER

By gender Male employees EMHET

BRERBS Female employees ZHET

By age Employees aged under 30 0FA T E LA E

BRERES Employees aged 31 to 50 S1ES0RBLRAE

Employees aged over 51 515 EE Tk %

By geographical Mainland China HEI A S Ttk &
region Hong Kong, Macau, BRAARENET

RBERS Taiwan and overseas i

2023 R T EM@ER

Number of Proportion of

employees employees
EIBE BRIk

219 100%

99 45.21%

120 54.79%

52 23.74%

158 72.15%

9 4.11%

) 2.28%

21 9.59%

193 88.13%

219 100%

0 0

219 100%

0 0
2023FE B IRKER

Employees

turnover rate*

BIm%®:

12.75%

13.95%

11.67%

18.80%

5.06%

0

12.75%

0

4 The Company’s turnover statistics include resignation, retirement 2 ARARRRIAESRTEERE A B
and even deaths. B RRFIEMHET -
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1.3  Working Hour and Leave

1.4

In strict accordance with laws and regulations,
the Company implements a legal standard
working hour system and standardizes the
management of working hours. The daily
working hours of each employee should not
exceed 8 hours in principle. Employees who
work overtime for a specific reason shall fill
in and submit overtime application forms to
the heads of respective departments and the
HR Department for review and approval. We
provide employees with overtime allowances
according to the statutory standard. Meanwhile,
employees are entitled to statutory leaves and
other kinds of leaves such as annual leave,
personal leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave, bereavement leave and work-
related injury leave.

Employee Communication and Activities

We attach great importance to communication
with employees to keep up with their concerns
and complaints. To strengthen internal
communication and exchange, the Company
has implemented flat management and set up
a variety of unimpeded feedback channels,
such as a special email box, to receive helpful
comments and suggestions from employees.

We advocate that work alternated with rest,
encouraging employees to actively participate
in various activities after work as their work and
life balance are also our concerns. This year,
the Company organized diversified activities,
such as team-building activities, birthday
parties, deportment and grooming classes, tea
courses, sharing sessions and competitions,
to enrich employees’ leisure time and enhance
team cohesion.

1.3

1.4
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Occupational Health and Safety

The occupational health and safety of employees is
always the focus of the Company. In this respect,
the Company strictly abides by the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, the Regulation
on Work-Related Injury Insurance, the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations. The Company attaches
great importance to the occupational health and
safety of laboratory and front-line employees.
The Company has formulated a series of policy
documents regarding workplace safety management
and fire control guidelines, including the Production
Safety Management System, to effectively ensure
production safety and the health of front-line
employees. This year, the Company revised the
Collection of Work Safety Management Policies
(2023) and Contingency Response Plan (2023). In
addition, we carried out training and publicity to
improve employees’ awareness of risk prevention
and the emphasis on work safety.

In addition, to fully promote the occupational health
and safety management, the Company has set up a
safety management team comprising team members
mainly from the Production Department and the
Administrative Department. The general manager
serves as the team leader, the executive director
of operations and the heads of the Production
Department as the deputy team leaders, and
personnel from production, administrative and quality
departments as team members.
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The Company is dedicated to providing a safe and
healthy workplace for front-line employees. We have
specified safety practices and accident prevention
and reporting procedures, and also inspected office
premises, production facilities and sites on a regular
basis to investigate safety hazards and prevent
emergencies. Furthermore, employees responsible
for production and quality control must hold relevant
qualifications, and front-line employees are provided
with necessary personal protective equipment,
including cleanroom suits, protective caps, masks,
goggles, safety shoes, anti-burn gloves and hand
sanitizers, and are required to wear appropriate
safety equipment at work. Additionally, we install
safety protection devices and put up safety warning
signs for positions with potential safety hazards
to remind and prevent employees from safety
accidents.

To protect the employees against occupational
diseases, we provide employees with pre-
employment health check-ups and periodic health
check-ups. Employees’ health records are properly
kept to monitor their health status. Besides, before
starting production work, new employees are
required to receive induction training on contents
including equipment operation standards and
production safety regulations. In addition, we hold
safety training every year and invite third parties to
help the Company conduct fire drills at intervals to
improve the safety awareness and skills of front-line
employees.

In 2023, the number of lost days due to work injuries
of the Company was 0. In the past three years, the
Company did not have any work-related fatalities.
The number of work-related fatalities and the work-
related fatality rate were 0.
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3. Employee Growth and Development

3.1

Clear Career Paths

We have established performance assessment
mechanisms and promotion channels under
a fair, reasonable and transparent principle to
expand the talent pool. We have set up a “dual-
channel” promotion mechanism, aiming to
provide opportunities regarding promotion and
career advancement for administrative talents,
marketing talents and production and technical
talents. As for production and technical talents,
the technical channel and management channel
are further set up to fully explore their potential
and provide targeted career advancement
training for them.

Administrative sequence,
marketing sequence

IHFF) ~ &S

Manager/Senior

EE regional manager
5= FESEIpNERSTIE
/A /A

Senior specialist/
Senior sales manager

BREE/ERIHELE
7\

Deputy Manager/
Regional Manager

ElRSL PN S ]
A

High Commissioner/
sales Manager

Supervisor/
gional manager

3. EINRHEBRE

3.1
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Production sequence

B

7\

Senior technician
=R BED

Intermediate technician

AR EREm

- Manager
Specialist 4
— ﬁl{i
X

Assistant manager
Bl4g3z

Supervisor
*E

Intermediate specialist/
Sales ma

Specialist/Sales
representative

BIHERRK

Engineer

Es&:01

Technician
L=

Employee Promotion Channels
ODRBEETIEARE
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3.2 Employee Training 3.2 #EETEH

Committed to building an excellent talent
team, the Company aims to establish a training
system that covers all employees guided by
the corporate culture and philosophy. We
have developed a year-round training program
based on the training needs of our employees.
Employees can enrich their professional
knowledge and improve their practical ability
through diversified ways such as internal
training, external training and vocational
certificate training. The Company supports
employees to obtain all kinds of professional
certificates and qualifications to continuously
improve their personal professionalism and
career competitiveness. In this process, we
hope to achieve mutual growth with employees.

° New employee training: The Company
provides induction training on its
development history, corporate culture
and philosophy for new employees,
helping them understand and learn its
rules and regulations and adapt to new
roles more easily.

° Professional competence training: We
carry out training on skill and qualification
according to the career development
needs of employees in different positions.
Specifically, we conduct technological
process training, new product training,
inspection standards training and quality
system regulations training to enhance
employees’ professional competence.
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o Leadership training: The Company
has set up a “LEPU Eyas Business
School”, which provides special training
for backbone and core managers from
time to time. These special training
sessions cover product knowledge, sales
skills, corporate development strategy
and other areas, that fully enhance the
leadership skills and comprehensive
quality of the middle management. We
also invite external professionals to train
our management so as to broaden their
horizons.

New employee training

o SEERHEN: A
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Job specific mandatory training

MR TN i I B % 3% #l

Corporate development history Skills, qualifications and on-the-job training
AFRERER Faels - EEHRUR EEENEI
Corporate culture and philosophy Laws and regulations training
DELCMES ERIER I

Corporate rules and regulations Academic training

AFRERE ==yl

Training method Internal training and external training
BilsX AEBEEFI ~ SNEBIE )

New Employee Training System

DB B T

In addition to routine training, we make great
efforts to foster the comprehensive quality of
employees. This year, we carried out legal and
compliance training such as anti-corruption
training to enhance employees’ moral and
legal awareness. Besides, we organize industry
sharing sessions, technical exchange meetings,
brainstorming and other academic training,
helping employees stay abreast of industry
trends and stimulating their innovative thinking.
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VL.

Product Training for New Employees

DREERRNE TEREI

2023 Employee Training Overview

2023 B T ISR

Average
training Percentage of
time employees
Category of (hours) trained (%)
employees ENFYER  BIREHMGH
BIRY (pag) (%)

Overall

ERER 2.18 7717%
By gender Male employees SMHET 2.13 79.80%
BERE S Female employees THET 2.13 75.00%
By position Senior management employees EREEEE T 0.40 20.00%
ERRES Middle management employees F#EEEET 1.81 90.47%
Ordinary employees ERET 1.50 75.13%

GREEN OPERATION

In response to the national call for energy conservation
and emission reduction, the Company takes active
measures to fulfil its responsibility for environmental
protection to achieve green operation. We strictly abide
by the laws and regulations such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, and
the environmental protection rules of the regions and
industries where we operate. We have also formulated
the Working Environment Control Procedure and other
management regulations to facilitate the certification of
ISO 14001 Environmental Management System. Focusing
on the efficient utilization of energy and the circular
use of resources, we have made steady progress in
our environmental management level to practice green
operation with our concrete actions.
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Committed to continuously improving environmental
management performance and creating a corporate image
with a high sense of social responsibility, the Company
integrates environmental protection into organizational
activities, products and services. We adopt a top-
down approach to pollution control, and strengthen
the management of pollution treatment facilities and
environmental monitoring and management. We carry out
systematic environmental risk assessment to ensure that
all factors that have or may have a significant impact on
the environment are promptly identified and effectively
controlled. Besides, we implement pollution control
throughout the production process to minimize pollution
and damage to the environment. In addition, to enhance
all the employees’ awareness of environmental protection,
we carry out regular environmental protection training
and formulate practical and feasible environment goals
and plans in four aspects: energy conservation, emission
reduction, water conservation, and waste reduction.
These efforts aim to help the Company implement green
operation in all aspects.

1. Resource Utilization and Conservation

We stringently abide by relevant laws and regulations
such as the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Water Law of the People’s
Republic of China. Upholding the environmental
protection concept of conserving natural and social
resources, we pay constant attention to the utilization
of the environment and resources. For electricity,
water resources and office paper consumed in our
daily operation, we work to improve the resource
use efficiency and constantly optimize the resource
use strategy and method. In this way, we reduce the
consumption of electricity, water resource and office
paper in the daily operation.
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The Company manages the energy and water use
in the office area in accordance with the provisions
of the Employee Manual, giving instructions to
employees to standardize water and electricity use.

Water conservation: We encourage employees
to save water and actively collect water use data in
the daily operation to identify and control waste. We
also reduce water waste through daily inspection to
improve the resource use efficiency.

Energy conservation: We use LED energy-saving
lamps instead of high energy-consuming lamps
as daily office lighting equipment. We also require
each employee to develop an energy-saving habit,
making sure lights are out when nobody is in the
office, and cutting the power consumption level of
air conditioners, central ventilation system, exhaust
system and other power equipment. Furthermore,
we encourage employees to share cars for business
travel, aiming to reduce the consumption of fossil
energy.

Paperless office: We advocate paperless office. To
reduce the consumption of office paper, employees
go through various approval processes electronically
on OA system instead of via paper documents.
We also take measures such as teleconference
and Internet office to achieve cross-regional
communication.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Pollutant Discharge Reduction

The Company strictly abides by the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes, the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Pollution from Environmental Noise and other laws
and regulations relating to environmental protection.
By formulating and implementing Measures for the
Management of Wastewater, Waste Gas, Solid Waste
and Noise and other internal standard documents,
we strictly control the pollutants produced in the
course of operation process to minimize the impact
on the ecology and the load on the environment.

2.1  Experiment and Production

Based on the internal management regulations
such as the Measures for the Management
of Wastewater, Waste Gas, Solid Waste
and Noise, the Company standardizes the
management of waste gas, solid waste,
waste water and noise generated in the
experiment and production process, ensures
that the pollutants are treated and discharged
in compliance, effectively controls noise
pollution, and minimizes the negative impact
on the environment caused by the Company’s
experiments and production.

RE  HEgREREKRE

R 75 e B R

ARBBEBET(PEARK
MBARRISREAE) (REA
RAEMBE YIS RREN
JAVE) (R EARFMBEIKITR
PraE) (hEARKMBERER
B RS RMGAE) FIRIRAAMR
HUREIER - B E I 5 CRE
K EER - BERBEYMBREE
BHOER) FEN B RS - K
MEELBREPELNEES
RYREBIE B - &
REEHRDHERNTE -

TRERIR IR B T o

2.1 ERRAEEIRA

REERCEK - BER -
B BB RE Y AR S B IR
E)ERBERHE
HERMEERGAE
ERRER - BEEY B
K-BBETREE
2 MREBESAVAE
REERESRHER A
BIEHIRBSR  E&
RARERIERAER
MEEUHRRELANEA

By 488
HEZ -

147



148 Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LELRBEERE (L8) ROBRAR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHKS

Waste gas treatment

The Company uses the gas collector to collect
the dust, soot and waste gas generated from
EO treatment®, and discharge them after
being treated by a cartridge dust collector and
welding dust purifier in strict accordance with
relevant environmental protection standards.
After treatment, emissions of each waste gas
pollutant fall below the limit of the /ntegrated
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants (DB31/933-
2015). Meanwhile, we entrust qualified third-
party institutions to carry out exhaust gas
testing and issue test reports every year to
ensure compliant emissions. This aims to
implement relevant environmental protection
standards.
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Waste disposal

The hazardous wastes produced in the course
of our production and operation process are
mainly medical wastes, chemical waste liquids
and non-hazardous wastes. The Company
standardizes the disposal method and process
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste in
accordance with the internal regulations. We
entrust that qualified third parties conduct
compliant disposal of different types of waste
in strict accordance with relevant regulations to
minimize its generation.

Wastewater disposal

The wastewater produced in the course
of our operation mainly includes domestic
sewage, purified water, water for injection
and tail water for pure water preparation. The
Company keeps improving the disposal level of
wastewater pollutants on the basis of ensuring
compliant discharge, in an effort to reduce the
impact of production and operating activities
on the ecological environment. We conduct
analysis and detection on the wastewater
produced on a regular basis. After detection,
the concentration of pollutants in the main
outlet of the sewage falls within the compliance
range of the /ntegrated Sewage Discharge
Standard (DB/31/199-2018). We discharge
the qualified wastewater into the designated
sewage pipe network system in the park. The
laboratory waste liquid that has small volume
and no toxicity, which is discharged into the
municipal pipe network in compliance after
unified treatment.
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2.2

Noise management

The noise in the operation of the Company is
mainly generated from equipment operation. To
effectively control noise pollution, we use low-
noise equipment to reduce the basic vibration
of the equipment. Furthermore, we make
reasonable arrangement for the equipment and
facilities, putting the mechanical equipment
in the production workshop to keep a further
distance from the plant boundary and adopting
wall soundproofing measures to further reduce
noise transmission. During the operation of
equipment, we will close doors and windows
to minimize the impact of noise on the external
environment. In 2023, the noise contribution
value at 1-meter of the plant boundary of the
Company fell within the compliance range for
daytime regarding 3 types of Environmental
Noise Function under the Emission Standard
for Industrial Enterprises Environmental Noise
at Plant Boundary (GB12348-2008). We also
entrust qualified third-party institutions to carry
out noise detection and issue test reports every
year to ensure compliant operation.

Daily Office Operations

The non-hazardous wastes generated by our
daily office operations are mainly electronic
waste and domestic waste. We fully carry out
garbage sorting and recycling to promote cyclic
utilization of wastes. Specially, we hand over
wastes with recycling value to qualified third
parties for compliant disposal.
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Response to Climate Change

We are deeply aware of the potential impact of
climate change on corporate production and
operation and the upstream and downstream value
chain. During the Reporting Period, we further
optimized identification and management process
of climate change related risks and opportunities.
Against major physical risks relating to climate
change identified and transition risk, we actively
took more response measures and strengthen our
management. To seize potential climate change
related opportunities identified, we continuously
evaluated and tapped potential of our products and
services to keep up with the market trend.

Climate change related risks

Risk type Potential risk

REER BIER R

Transition risk  Policy and As policies and regulations relating

BRER legal risks to climate change are increasingly
BENEZRER  perfected and information disclosure and

Reputation risk
BEER

compliance requirements are becoming
more stringent, more rigorous energy
consumption or information disclosure
standards will be introduced, which wil
increase the potential compliance cost of
the Company.
BRREECEBOBRERARTE
EERENGAEEE  NAMEES
wHAREL A E SRR E S RER
£ BEMARAEEHERMA -

As the concept of green development

is widely recognized, it may damage

the company’s reputation and brand
image if our operation exerts damaging
impacts on the climate and environment,
for example, by discharging waste gas,
wastewater or disposing of solid waste in
a substandard manner during production
and operations, resulting in loss of
customers.
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Responses

M8

We keep abreast of policies and
regulations relating to climate change

in the regions where we operate and
strengthen our compliance disclosure
or operational capability to effectively
respond to new external regulatory
requirements.
REEHYTHRARMEES NENR
(REBCEBBRER - R REA R R
BB AREHHNIINEEE
B -

We implement the concept of
environmental protection in the course
of operation and strictly control all
segments of production and operation
that may affect the bottom line of
environmental compliance.
EELRRPERRRES  RTEER
L RIEA RS KRR A RERRVRE ©
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RE  HEREREKRE

Risk type
RERER

Physical risk
REAR

Acute risk
SRR

Potential risk

EERR

Extreme weather events such as
typhoons, droughts and floods caused
by climate change may lead to power
shortage, increase energy consumption
and environmental compliance costs,
etc., thereby increasing operating costs,
resulting in lower operating revenue.
REECBENERAR (0 BE - &
BORKE)URBRENRR - &L
o BRREBEALAS - fiEmeas
A - RS FA TR -

Responses

MEEE

We keep a close eye on extreme weather
forecasts provided by the meteorological
authorities, release relevant reminders
and establish emergency plans and

rapid and effective emergency response

mechanisms. These efforts aim to ensure

physical safety of employees.

BRI REHFRENOBRRREMHE

W BTEBRETMTESRER  BY

RiE - BRERER  WENESRER

t BAREEINAGRR -

o We have formulated
Environmental Emergency Event
Contingency Response Plan and
other internal polices to deal
with property and human losses
caused by extreme weather.

o HE(RERRENESER)ERN
IR - PSR KRG B &
EMASEX-

o We have insured our research and
production facilities, machinery,
equipment, inventory and other
fixed assets on site to mitigate
the risk of losses due to extreme
weather.

o AMRAMEERE - HiAOHK
#RE FERHAMETEER
BRE  HEARERAIMER
BERMER o
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Climate change related opportunities

Opportunity type
BEHR

Resource efficiency

RiRM=E

Products and services

= & RR

Description

#iE R

Relying on green electricity
substitution and energy-saving
management, the company can
improve its operational resilience,
reduce operating costs and
greenhouse gas emission risks,

and thus reduce the company’s
sensitivity to changes in carbon
trading prices.
NAlrEBRgEE N ER REEE
B ReECENELTL  REES
PR BOR =R BE R R - (i R MK
NEHRR ZERECNGURE -

The Company can meet

climate adaptation needs and
increase revenue by developing
environmentally friendly, green
medical products and services.
NRITEBHERERET  TaGE
ERE M E o B AR TS B RR B FE
MEX - BElA -

WmiEE®E

Responses

PR 15

Continue to take integrated
energy saving measures in
production and office.

HERRAEENPQBEF

HAR B BRBETEIE

Explore the use of green
electricity to improve the
reliability of energy supply.
BRARFERAZEED - U
REp RN RS o

Actively develop new
products (such as
degradable occluder)

to enhance the
competitiveness of products
in the market and increase
product sales.
TR R 35 0 on (WA T PR AR 3T
ER)  RAERETS LH
HEN RBAEREEE -
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4. Environmental Key Performance Indicators

(KPIs)e”

In 2023, the environmental KPIs of the Company are

listed below.

2023 Energy and Use of Resources KPIs

Indicator

Energy consumption?®

Direct energy consumption

Gasoline

Indirect energy consumption

Purchased electricity

Energy consumption per capita

Total water consumption®

Water consumption per capita

Alloy Co.,Ltd.

suitable water resources.

HiR

ReRERER

EHigREiFAE
FUH

I RE iR R ¥
SNEE

ARERA T

Ek@m

AEKE

In 2023, we consumed 12 tonne(s) of packaging materials.
Packaging materials mainly include paper boxes, cartons, labels,
instructions, glass, foam and blister boxes.

Unless otherwise stated, the scope of environmental data
statistics in the Report covers LEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and Shanghai Shape Memory

During the Reporting Period, our main operation was daily
operation of office, plant and laboratory. The direct energy
consumption mainly included gasoline and the indirect energy
consumption mainly included electricity.

Since the water resources used by the Company are from
municipal water supply, we do not have any problem in obtaining

4. REBRBEMERFRY

2023%F - LREBEIRIBHEBE
BRIERIIRAT ©

2023 FREIR R Wi H e @Ry IT

Data
Unit - L B
MWh KE 1,452.08
MWh JKFL B 95.83
MWh JKEL B 95.83
MWh KRB 1,356.20
MWh KL 1,356.20
MWh/person KR /A 6.63
Tonnes 7 7,442.00
Tonnes/person &,/ A 33.98

6

2023FF - HAIMEANEEMK12

WE e BEMHEIZREAR B
& HAE - W OAARRRER -
BRBHPAN  ARERENRITAY
oA RESR L LFBEMX (L
B)ROERAE - LBERELEESM
HARRAT -

HEHR HMNEEELRARAE
MR IBRREREEE  TE2HRH
HEERERRTH - FERERERAES

FATH AR B B A K E BEK
AR B SREGE AR EARERA E R RH

Bo
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2023 Emissions KPIs'®

Indicator g
Total greenhouse gas (GHG) BEREEREE"

(BE1REE2)

emissions
(Scope 1 and Scope 2)™

Direct GHG emissions BEERERBEHER
(Scope 1) (&E1)
Gasoline YU

Indirect GHG emissions MERE BN
(Scope 2) (8E2)
Purchased electricity HNEE )

GHG emissions per capita A BRERBHERE
(Scope 1 and Scope 2) (BE1 REE2)

The Company has not been listed as a key pollutant discharge
unit. According to the relevant provisions of the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the installation and networking of
automatic monitoring equipment for non-key pollutant discharge
units are not mandatory provisions. With the rapid expansion of
the Company’s scale, we will progressively monitor waste gas
and waste water, and sort out data statistics.

The GHG calculation covers carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide. GHG emissions are presented in carbon dioxide equivalents
and calculated based on the 20271 Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China issued by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

GHG Scope 1 covers “direct energy” GHG emissions caused
by the business owned or controlled by the Company, Scope
2 covers ‘“indirect energy” GHG emissions caused by the
Company’s internal consumption (purchased or acquired) of
electricity. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s total
GHG emissions were “direct energy” GHG emissions caused
by gasoline and“indirect energy” GHG emissions caused by
electricity.

Unit

Tonnes

Tonnes

Tonnes
Tonnes

Tonnes

RE  HEgREREKRE

2023 FHEM MR BEBIER

Data

Ef 8ig

A 809.13

73 23.46

73 23.46

A 785.67

A 785.67

Tonnes/person W&,/ A 3.69

0 LEEAKRIIABRHES L B

(hEARKMBEIGTRTAE) (hE
ARKMBEARGRIDEE) BERE -
REFEHTECAPERRBEOL
RAMBREERTIERTE - BERRRE
MRERA - RAIEETHEER - BE
7K B BRI A BB e AT AR B

BRERERESETIZRNE |k -
FREEECER - AEREBHMZER
“EHREERY  YRBTEARHK
B A REIRF AR T 2021 R BEIR B
R E AR R E T )R E

Je
(=
F

RERBEEEVRE R D AR RIEGA
EBERELNRERER - BE2E
EREATAMER (BEXRSHN) E
NFRHEBER [ B B JR R E R BT -
HEHR - RAMNABEREHNEER
FURDHFERT SR [EEER DEERE
BERR - LA E P EI BeY [ B aEIR 1R
ERBHER -
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2023 Wastes KPIs

Indicator it ]

Total hazardous waste™ FEREEDEE"
Hazardous medical waste BEBEEEY
Hazardous waste consumables BEREEM

Hazardous waste per capita AIBEEED

Total non-hazardous waste' BEEEDEE"
Domestic waste EERBEEY
Electronic waste BTEEY

Non-hazardous waste per capita AMEEEEN

L Hazardous waste includes hazardous waste consumables and
hazardous medical waste. Hazardous waste consumables include
toner cartridges and ink cartridge procured by the Company,
which are calculated based on the data in the procurement
breakdown provided by suppliers. Hazardous medical waste
includes infectious waste and injurious waste, etc., which are
calculated through medical waste treatment slips and ledger
registration.

L& Non-hazardous waste includes domestic waste and electronic
waste, of which domestic waste includes copy paper, bulbs etc.,
electronic waste includes computers, printers and hard disks.

2023 FEEVHEBEMER

Data
Unit B 2ig
Tonnes A 0.38
Tonnes A 0.10
Tonnes A 0.28
Tonnes/person 1,/ A 0.002
Tonnes A 416
Tonnes A 415
Tonnes A 0.01
Tonnes/person M,/ A 0.02

FERENEEATEERMREEE

BEY  EREEEERNBEARQF
RENME 22F @ RIEHERIREH
MERBHAXRTOEBETZE B F
BERVERRAMEEDNEGIEEY

BABEREVEERENGRER
%H -

BEEEREYBRELEEEEYRETESR
Y ERAERBEEYEEENE  BA
CEFBEEYEEEN ST - E

&=
=T
% -
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APPENDIX: ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX fiisk - (IRIR - HERERWEE
S ®|BIE

TABLE

Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

RE - FRER BE  —HRBRERAIVNER (ER)

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

MABERTE

Governance Structure

BRRE

Reporting Principles
EHRRA

A statement from the board containing the following elements:

HEFSRLNER  EPHBTINE :

(i) a dlsclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(i REESQHRE HERELREHNEE

(ii) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritize and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer’s businesses); and

(i) BEENRE HEeRERERTH KRR BRI -
BREFIREREENIRE ﬁé&amﬁ%$a( B
BEITAEBHMRAR) B &

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how they
relate to the issuer’s businesses.

(i) %%@m@ﬁ%%~ﬁ@&%&@%a%ﬁﬂﬁ§\ﬁ%
BeAmEETARBEHE

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG
Report:

WANBBEERERE HERERBRERNARERTIERR
Al

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(i) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results of
the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

BEMRE HERELSREERE : (\BREERSE HEK
BRRENBRKERELRARMER () PWBTADETHR
28 BHERNEERNENELRBTARNELENBERE
8o

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

£ BREREKRE /RER (NER) MAMEE - 5% -
BERk/SFEIANER  URAEANEARZNTRET
B o

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant

factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

—B BTARERER  HeREABRSTRERS AR
BRIERNERE () AEAATEEERLENERRE -

Disclosure location or remarks

WEMERwE

ESG Management - ESG
Governance Structure
ESGEH-ESGEALRIE

About the Report
R IRE

157
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Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERMBRNES(ER)

Reporting Boundary
E R E

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason
for the change.

BERS e RERARENERDE - REIhE W%fkiﬁ
%mkﬁi HA&%ﬁﬁimﬂE°%Eﬁﬁlﬁ%&x

“Comply or Explain” Provisions

FETHREGEX

A. Environmental

A BIR

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 :

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI A1.1
FRREMIERALA

KPI A1.2

BIREMIRIZAL2

KPI A1.3
FREMERALS

Information on:

BRBERMBERBHN  MAKRLHNES  BEREZERY

HEHZH) -

(@) the policies; and

(@) BOR + R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

b)  ETFTHETAREAZENHEBZZRRINER -

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PR AR R B

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

B (8E1) ReRMAEZ (BE2) REREHENE (UMRE) &
(WER) BE (WABEBEN - §EREHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).
%FE%E@%% B8 (LAMEEE ) K (miEh) ZE (M EEEE
fI - §ERMEE) -

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fur B O e

About the Report
RIS

Green Operation - Pollutant
Discharge Reduction

REEE - BB RYTR

Green Operation - Environmental
KPIs
REEE - REBRERER
Green Operation - Environmental
KPIs

ReEE - REERENEE

Green Operation - Environmental
KPIs

HEEE — RIRHRENEE
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Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERMBRNES(ER)

KPI A1.4
BREMIERALL

KPI A1.5
AR IRIEIRALS

KPI A1.6
FREMIERALG

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
ESEEEENESE (U E) & (WER) ZE (NIgERE
i - BERIHE) -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
WL E BB R AEDEL B RAMERA AR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HREEEERESEEYNAE  RERMEITIARERERS
ENELARARRNSR -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2: BiRER
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI A2.1
B EERA2.1

KPI A2.2
AR IRNIEIRA2.2

Policies on the efficient use of resources including energy, water,
and other raw materials.

BRERER (BERR  KREMEME) HBE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.qg.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
RENESMERER,/ ZBEER(NE - [EUh) BFE ATE
TREFE) REBE (WABESEN - BERMEHE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BREKERTE (NABESEN - BERME) °

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fur B O e

Green Operation - Environmental
KPls
FEEE - REBRERER

As the Company continues to
expand, we will explore and
develop feasible environmental
targets to help the Company fully
realize green operations

BEE RRRENTEREA - B8
RARRE L HIE B AITTHIRE B
B BhARZEHERGEER

Green Operation - Pollutant
Discharge Reduction
REEE — B EMIEN

As the Company continues to
expand, we will explore and
develop feasible environmental
targets to help the Company fully
realize green operations
BEARARENTEER - HAK
ARARRE L HIE B AITTHRE B
B BHARZEHERGRES

Green Operation — Resource
Utilization and Conservation
gEEE — BREANEL

Green Operation - Environmental
KPIs
REEE - REBRERER

Green Operation - Environmental
KPIs
FEEE - REBRERER
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Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERMBRNES(ER)

KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
BREMIEIZA2.3 to achieve them.
AT UMaEREANE B R AERE LB EAEDMA SR o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
MIRERUEIZEA2.4 is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
HASKEER AR AT B R AR - AR LMAKBREBRRA
ENELARARRNSR -

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)

MIREBUEIZA2.5 and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
RMAAREMEMEE (U E) R (ER) §£EEME
Eo

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEAS : RBERBRRE

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the
—MIRE environment and natural resources.

REBTAERERAREREXNERT ENBK

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
FSR B R IRAS. 1 environment and natural resources and actions taken to manage
them.

HOXBEDHRERBABRNEAZERERNEEFBTE
T8

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fur B O e

As the Company continues to
expand, we will explore and
develop feasible environmental
targets to help the Company fully
realize green operations

BEE RRRENTEREA - HMH
RN I E A THIRIE B
B PHRR2AERGRES

Green Operation — Environmental
KPIs
FEEY - REBRERER

As the Company continues to
expand, we will explore and
develop feasible environmental
targets to help the Company fully
realize green operations
FEEARRENTEER - HAK
ARARRE L HIE B AITTHIRE B
B BhRRZEHERGZEES

Green Operation - Environmental
KPIs
FEEE - REBRERER

Green Operation
REEE

Green Operation
REEe
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Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERMBRNES(ER)

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4: RIRE(L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
—WRE related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer
Eﬁ&%U&J‘E’ﬁEZ«‘ REHETAEEYENERRRABEEN

BR
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
BIRETUEIEALA impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the

actions taken to manage them.
WIEERAIREHETAELY ENEARGHEMSEE - REY

178 °
B. Social
B.it®
Employment and Labor Practices
ERRFEER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: E#
General Disclosure Information on:
—RIRE ARFMERE BEREMN TERE - BRY FERE 31
b RIBBRUAREMAEBREND -
(a) the policies; and
(@) 15633
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
(b) BTHETABEAYENERERRAOINER -
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
MIRERIEEB A geographical region.
BHR - BEER  FRARRMRESNESEY -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
MIRERUEEB1.2 region.

IR ERAR KBRS HATRALE -

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fur B O e

Green Operation - Response to
Climate Change
REEE - BHREZL

Green Operation - Response to
Climate Change
HEEE - BHREZL

Value of Talents -Employee Rights
and Interests Protection

ORAT — BIERRE

Value of Talents — Employee
Rights and Interests Protection

ORAT — BITRRE

Value of Talents — Employee
Rights and Interests Protection

ERAT — ETERRE
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Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERMBRNES(ER)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BEB2: REERR

General Disclosure
—B R

KPI B2.1
AR R R 1RB2.1

KPI B2.2
PR ENEEB2.2

KPI B2.3
AR E1RB2.3

Information on:
BARUEZE2THERENREETHERENBEN

() the policies; and
(@) BK &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer
b)  EFHBTABEATENREERLRGINER -
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of
the past three years including the reporting year.

BE-F (BRERFE) SFRTUHMARRLE -

Lost days due to work injury.

RAIGEAIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
how they are implemented and monitored.
HFT R R EREET 2R - UREERTRERAE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BEB3 : HRREH

General Disclosure
—MR B

KPI B3.1
AR IR R 1RB3.1

KPI B3.2
BAR IR A 1RBS.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRRTHES BT TERE MM N KRB - B INES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
RUBRERERN (MERERE TRERE) SAHINRIET
ERal

The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

RIERIREERERE D - BREE TR TR -

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fur B O e

Value of Talents - Occupational
Health and Safety
URAT - BEREREZ S

Value of Talents — Occupational
Health and Safety
OBRAT - BEREEZ S

Value of Talents - Occupational
Health and Safety
OBRAT - BEREEZ S

Value of Talents - Occupational
Health and Safety
DRAT - BEREEZ S

Value of Talents - Employee
Growth and Development

ORAT - EIRRERR

Value of Talents - Employee
Growth and Development

ORAT - EIRRERR

Value of Talents — Employee
Growth and Development

ORAT - EIRERERR
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Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERMBRNES(ER)

Aspect B4: Labor Standards

EEB4 : $ T

General Disclosure
—B R

KPI B4.1
AR R 1RB4.1

KPI B4.2
B EMIEIRB4.2

Operating Practices

EERA

Information on:

BREBILE TS TH

() the policies; and

(@) BK &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

(b) BTHBITABTEAZENBREERBANER -

relating to preventing child and forced labor.

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labor.
iR REE R RET REHST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

HEAEZRBRENEERABERARRN TR o

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

MBS : #EHEE

General Disclosure
—MR B

KPI B5.1
AR R 1RB5.1

KPI B5.2
BASE UIEIEB5.2

KPI B5.3
BAR IR 5 1RB5.3

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.
EEHEENORE R GRARNER -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BEENMEERAE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

HAEBERHERNEN  MERTEBEMNNHEERZE - U
FEBRTRERAE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

TG B A R B ER S M ERIE Rt g R B - A KRIEHA
WIRERERE -

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fur B O e

Value of Talents - Employee
Rights and Interests Protection
URAT — BIRERRE

Value of Talents — Employee
Rights and Interests Protection
URAT — BIRERRE

Value of Talents - Employee
Rights and Interests Protection
URAT — EIRRRRE

Responsible Operation —
Standardization in Supplier
Management
&L - RafERER

Responsible Operation —
Standardization in Supplier
Management

BLELE -RafErER

Responsible Operation —
Standardization in Supplier
Management
BEE - RBtERER

Responsible Operation —
Standardization in Supplier
Management
BAEE - RGHERER
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Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERWABRNES(ER)

KPI B5.4
AR A RIS 1RBE 4

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BEB6 : ERAHE

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI B6.1
AR 1R 15B6.1

KPI B6.2
AR HE15B6.2

KPI B6.3
AR5 13B6.3

KPI B6.4
BAR IR 151386 4

KPI B6.5
BAR IR A 1RB6.5

WAEREHEERERESARRERRRGNED - LAREEH
IRERGE -

Information on:

ERMRHEERNRBORRELZS  BE  RERBLEENR
ROER -

(@) the policies; and

(@) 156

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer
b)  ETHETAREAZENHEBZZRRINER -
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
PEXREXERAYPAR 2 HEREAMARKNBE ST

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BREEANERMRBORFHE UREEHTE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

Ml EAELRENAEREENED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
LS 8T B2 R E mE YR o

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

MR EEERREREBLEER - ARABRTRERDE -

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fr B O e

Responsible Operation —
Standardization in Supplier
Management

BELEL - HBfERER

Responsible Operation — Product
Quality Initiatives
BB - TEEMME

Responsible Operation — Product
Quality Initiatives
BfEE - TEEMME

Responsible Operation - Product
Quality Initiatives
BEEE - TEEmmE

Responsible Operation —
Continuous R&D and Innovation
BEEE - HERERN

Responsible Operation - Product
Quality Initiatives
BELE - IEEMmE

Prudent Management —
Information Security and Privacy
Protection

REEE - FER2ERALERE
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R -HEKREAR

Requirements, Subject Area, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

HE TERG BE —REERMBRNES(ER)

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7: RERK

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI B7.1
AR R 1R .1

KPI B7.2

BBEIEIERT.2

KPI B7.3
AR MR 1RB7.3

Information on:

BREMIEEEE 9% - BEFRERER

() the policies; and

(@) BOR R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

(b) BTHETABEAYENERERRAOINEN -

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

%Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁAﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁE%%%ﬁ RABRIFNHE
PEEA

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Bl SEERERER  URABRTRER X -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.
HillmEERETRENREE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[BEBS : it E#RE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B8.1
FAR iR 1A 1RB8.1

KPI B8.2
FAR IR E15B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities takes into consideration communities’ interests.

B E2ERTREEMEMEFENRREXBEHEZE
HENEER o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labor needs, health, culture, sport).

EXEREE (N¥E  REFH SIFK BE -8
K) ®

B

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

ERIREMBHER (NS EXERH) o

HE

Disclosure location or remarks

58 fur B O e

Prudent Management — Comply
with Business Ethics

BREE - HIHEEE

Prudent Management — Comply
with Business Ethics

RIS — B

Prudent Management — Comply
with Business Ethics

RlgE - BTExER

Prudent Management — Comply
with Business Ethics

RREL -BTHFER

Responsible Operation - Social
Responsibilities
EffES - BITHLERA

Responsible Operation - Social
Responsibilities
EffiE% - BT ERE

Responsible Operation - Social
Responsibilities
BffEE - BT/ AT
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance
Report set out in the Annual Report of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance, and the procedures to enable the
Shareholders to evaluate how the principles of corporate
governance have been applied. Other than deviation from
the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as disclosed in this
Annual Report, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the CG Code during the period from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this Annual Report. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Company
to safeguard the interests of the Shareholder(s), enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies,
and enhance its transparency and accountability.

BEEEMARRIAQAIEZE2023F12 A
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Save for the above, the Board is of the view that during the
Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code. The
Board shall nevertheless review the structure and composition
of the Board in light of prevailing circumstances and monitor the
code of corporate governance practices of the Company from
time to time, in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

VALUES AND CULTURE

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are
conducted in accordance with high ethical standards. This
reflects its belief that, in the achievement of its long-term
objectives, it is imperative to act with probity, transparency
and accountability. By so acting, the Company believes that
Shareholder wealth will be maximised in the long term and
that its employees, those with whom it does business and the
communities in which it operates will all benefit.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary,
its business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be
taken to respond to the changes and meet the market needs to
foster the sustainability of the Group.

AN\ A 2N
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and be collectively
responsibility for promoting the Company’s success by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors take decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company
and whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them that are commensurate with their role and the Board
responsibilities. The Board includes a balanced composition
of executive Director and non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive directors) so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for daily management and operation to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee specific aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, including the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The Board has
delegated to such Board Committees responsibilities as set out
in their respective terms of reference. The Board directly, and
indirectly through its committees, leads and provides direction
to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial
performance, and ensures that sound corporate governance,
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

EF¥E
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company
and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
independent professional advisers and its joint company
secretaries in appropriate circumstances, as and when required,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for
the legal proceedings against the Directors, and will review the
insurance coverage on an annual basis.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists of
seven Directors, including one executive Director, three non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The list of current members of the Board of the
Company is as follows:

EFEMHEAA

RAFHEH EFTSHTREFTHEX -
BREIRHITES  SHRIERTEEMIA
BIUFNITES - ARAEFEREXE
SR ¢

Name i Position B 6L

Ms. Chen Juan PRg L 1 Executive Director (Chairwoman of the Board) $1TE % (EE L)

Ms. Zhang Yuxin REFTZLT Non-executive Director FEHITEFR (R2024%F
(re-designated on March 1, 2024) 381 HHAE)

Mr. Fu Shan L E Non-executive Director FEHITES

Mr. Zheng Guorui EpESH LA Non-executive Director FRTES

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa EaEX+ Independent non-executive Director B EHMITES

Mr. Zheng Yufeng B RIEEAE Independent non-executive Director BUFNTES

Mr. Liu Daozhi RlEEEE Independent non-executive Director B IEHITES

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” on page 54 to page 64 in this Annual Report.
Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” of this Annual Report, none of the
Directors has any personal relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) with
Chairwoman, any other Director or chief executive.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors, among which
at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has also complied with the requirements of
the Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to appointment of
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third
of the members of the Board. Each of the independent non-
executive Director has confirmed their independence during the
Reporting Period, based on the Rule 3.13 to the Listing Rules,
thus the Company considers they are independent persons.

The Company has adopted the Terms of Reference of the
Independent Non-executive Directors (B 7 FE#h1T78E 5 T {EH|
/£ )), which was formulated on a specific basis to stipulate the
qualifications, selection procedures, powers and obligations of
independent non-executive Directors and will review such policy
on an annual basis. The independent non-executive Directors
provide independent and objective advice and opinions on the
Company’s development strategies, results issues and other
matters with taking account of interests of all Shareholders,
and maintain their independence required as independent non-
executive Directors. The independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. The Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company have a majority of independent
non-executive Directors, and the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee both are chaired by independent non-
executive Directors.

According to the Terms of Reference of the Independent
Non-executive Directors (BIZIEHITEE TIEHIE)) of the
Company, in order to give full play to the independent non-
executive Directors and ensure the Board could obtain
independent views and advice, the Company has delegated the
special authorities to the independent non-executive Directors,
including (but not limited to) the material connected transactions
resolutions shall be submitted to the Board for discussing after
reviewed and recognized by the independent non-executive
Directors; before the independent non-executive Directors
make a judgement, they may engage intermediary agents to
issue independent financial advisor report as the basis of their
judgements. The independent non-executive Directors shall
obtain consents from more than half of all independent non-
executive Directors when they make judgements by exercising
relevant special authorities. The Company shall disclose the
circumstances if the relevant proposals not been adopted or the
relevant authorities cannot be exercised in a normal manner.
The Chairman at least annually holds a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors. The Board has reviewed this mechanism during
the Reporting Period and considered it has been implemented
effectively.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We are committed to promoting a diverse culture in the
Company. Taking into consideration of various factors of our
corporate governance structure, we promote diversity with great
efforts wherever practicable.

We have adopted the Board Diversity Policy, which sets out
the objectives and stipulates that all appointments of members
of the Board shall be made based on the talents, skills and
experience level required by the overall operation of the
Board. Our Nomination Committee will review and evaluate
the composition of the Board, and make recommendations
to the Board in connection with the appointment of members
of the Board. At the same time, our Nomination Committee
will consider the benefits of diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge,
educational background, age, gender, culture and ethnicity and
length of service, to maintain an appropriate scope and balance
for the talents, skills, experience and diversified perspectives of
the Board.

The summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out as follows:

The effective Board Diversity Policy facilitates to enhance the
effectiveness of our Board and to maintain high standard of
corporate governance. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the
criteria in selecting candidates to the Board, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to our
Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including but not limited to overall business management,
finance and accounting and material science.

They obtained degrees in diversified majors including finance,
accounting science, physics and history. The Board is of the
view that it satisfied the Board Diversity Policy and has achieved
overall diversity. In addition, the Board has a wide range of age,
ranging from 41 years old to 60 years old. Three of our directors
are female. The Board will also ensure that appropriate balance
of gender diversity is achieved with reference to investors’
expectation, and international and local recommended best
practices and is of the view that the nomination policy of the
Company can ensure there will be potential successors to the
Board to maintain the diversity of the Board.
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The Company’s hiring process is merit-based and no
discriminatory.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender
diversity in its workforce (including senior management).

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
diversity of the Board, and will monitor and evaluate the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to
time and at least on an annual basis, to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

As of December 31, 2023, the proportion of the Group’s male
employees were approximately 45.21% and female employees
were approximately 54.79%, respectively. The Company has
also taken and continues to take steps to promote gender
diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities for
recruitment, promotion, training and career development are
equally opened to all eligible employees without discrimination.

All Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
will bring various valuable business experience, knowledge and
professional skills to the Board, to enable it to operate efficiently
and effectively. The independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and other Board
Committees.

Taking consideration of our current business mode and specific
requirements, as well as different backgrounds and capacities
of the Directors, the Directors are in the opinion of the
composition of the Board is consistent with the Board Diversity
Policy and effectively implemented.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors will be provided necessary
induction training and information, to ensure appropriate
understanding of the operation and business of the Company
and full awareness of, to an appropriate extent, Directors’
responsibilities under the relevant laws and regulations, rules
and provisions. The Company also arranges regular seminars
for Directors to provide them with updates on the latest
developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with updated information on
the Company’s performance, status and prospects on a regular
basis to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4, all Directors are required to
participate in continuous professional development, thereby
to develop and update their knowledge and skills. The joint
company secretaries of the Company from time to time will
update and provide written training materials relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a Director.
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All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous SRESCDETAENFESERR U

professional development and provided the Company with
records of training attended during the Reporting Period.
According to the information provided by the Directors, the
training records of all Directors for the year ended December

31, 2023 are as follows:

Name of Directors

Executive Director
Ms. Chen Juan

Non-executive Director
Ms. Zhang Yuxin

Mr. Fu Shan

Mr. Zheng Guorui

Independent non-executive
Director

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa

Mr. Zheng Yufeng

Mr. Liu Daozhi
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Types of training/education
1R BE R
Reading regulatory
updates or corporate
Attending training on governance related
regulatory development, materials or materials
directors’ duties or other relevant to directors’

relevant topics duties
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CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND GENERAL
MANAGER

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 in the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Ms. Chen Juan is currently serving as the chairman of the Board
as well as the general manager of the Company. She has been
primarily involved in developing overall corporate and business
strategies of the Group and making significant business and
operational decisions of the Group. The Directors consider that
vesting the roles of both the chairman of the Board and the
general manager of the Company in Ms. Chen is beneficial to
the business prospects of the Group by ensuring consistent
leadership to the Group as well as prompt and effective
decision making and implementation. In addition, our Directors
believe that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company, given that: (1) decision to be made by our Board
requires approval by at least a majority of our Directors; (2)
Ms. Chen and the other Directors are aware of and undertake
to fulfil their fiduciary duties as Directors, which require,
among other things, that she acts for the benefit and in the
best interests of the Company and will make decisions for the
Company accordingly; (3) the balance of power and authority
was ensured by the operations of the Board, which consisted of
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, and had a fairly strong
independence element; and (4) the overall strategic and other
key business, financial, and operational policies of the Company
are made collectively after thorough discussion at both Board
and senior management levels.

The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the
corporate governance practices and its structure of the Group,
in order to assess whether separation of the roles of chairman
and general manager is necessary.

EERREER

RIFCEEERTRD BT RGN FEC.2.1
k- TRETHASNACEEERD @ X
TR ARERE -

RBXETEMETARREETRRAR
B AT B2HEFEAREBREQRME
BRES - (FHAKRBMERRBTINEZR
R-BERR ARZIREARAESR
RRBEEME - AIBAREREAREDN
—EAE AR KA RARERIL T A
BEiemANRAKEHEBAR - 1o -
ER: MEFSEHNOARELAKLBY
BESHE  QRXETREMEFNERL
EHBEITEEREENZIEERT  EBXK
(%) EEAARRNHMERIATE
ARBREMDZOTAITE  LERUS
ARFEHRE  QEEE (HMBNTT
BES  MAFNTESN=RBILIENTT
EEMAKIY ABRBMNBIULITER) FEF
A REORTE ) ERREIR B0 18] ¢ R(4) AR RIEY
ERRBEREMBERRE WHBREZK
RORNEEELSREEEEMEATEE
Mg ARGIE  MEERR BB
CHEEARTEFTEHEEE ZMENE
RERR A1 -

EEeREBEERAKBELEERERR
HEBOARE AR OFERES

(=
R R BEE B ER D

o



Annual Report 2023
ZE=FRH

Corporate Governance Report

BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which sets out the processes and procedures to
ensure a strong independent element on the Board, and allows
the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to better
safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board
effectiveness, maximise strengths, and identify the areas that
need improvement or further development. The evaluation
process also clarifies what actions of the Company need to
be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, for
instance, addressing individual training and development needs
of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism,
the Board will conduct annual review on its independence.

During the Reporting Period, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each Director (except for Ms. Zhang Yuxin) has entered into
service contracts with the Company on October 20, 2022 with
a term of three years, each of them may serve consecutive
terms if re-elected subject to the agreements of both parties.
Ms. Zhang Yuxin has entered into a new service agreement with
the Company on March 1, 2024 regarding her re-designation as
a non-executive Director for a term of three years.

None of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The procedures and process for appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
composition forms of the Board, and provide recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-election and succession
plans of Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practices of holding Board
meetings regularly, at least four Board meetings a year, and
at approximately quarterly intervals. A notice will be sent to all
the Directors at least 14 days before the convening of a regular
Board meeting, so that all the Directors have the opportunity to
attend regular meetings and discuss the matters on the agenda.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
the Company shall give reasonable notice thereof. Notices of
meetings have included the agenda and accompanying relevant
Board documents, and shall be dispatched at least three
days before the date of Board meetings or Board Committee
meetings. The chairman ensures that the Directors have
sufficient time to review relevant documents and be adequately
prepared and briefed for attending the Board meetings or Board
Committee meetings. When Directors or Board Committee
members are unable to attend the meeting, they will be advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the chairman prior to the meeting.
Minutes of meetings shall be kept by the joint company
secretaries with copies thereof circulated to all Directors for
reference and record.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient details about the matters considered
by the Board and the Board Committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting and Board Committee meetings
are/will be sent to the Directors for their consideration within a
reasonable time after the meeting is held. Minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by all Directors.

During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings were held
by the Company. The Company convened one shareholder’s
general meeting during the Reporting Period. The attendance of
each Director at the Board meetings is set out below:

Number of Board
meetings attended/
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Number of general
meetings attended/

required to be attended required to be attended

EHEEESRY EHERRAERE
Name of Director EFNA BHEEFEERH BHERRXEREH
Executive Director WITESR
Ms. Chen Juan BR1E 20 & 4/4 1/1
Non-executive Director EHITES
Ms. Zhang Yuxin RS8R E 4/4 1/1
Mr. Fu Shan b 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zheng Guorui 2 [ 857 5 A= 4/4 1/1
Independent non-executive Director B IEHITE =
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa BREEZL 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zheng Yufeng B F & 5 A& 4/4 1/1
Mr. Liu Daozhi RIELSLE 4/4 1/1

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding the transactions of securities of the Company by its
Directors, the Supervisors and the relevant employees who
would likely possess inside information of the Company. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors and Supervisors and
all of them have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code during the Reporting Period.

EF(EERESETESXZ2M
REEFAD

ARBEHRMCETRE )M ERCITH
(BRETADEREBSAHRES &5
KiFREE (AIEZEARRARHEEN
AL) ETARRRESFRHNITRSTH
RAARFERETREFFHAREN
B REZERESFCHR  RERBEY
N—EEF (LA -

179



180

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LELRBEERE (L8) ROBRAR

Corporate Governance Report
SEERRE

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the
Directors, the Supervisors and the relevant employees was
noted by the Company for the Relevant Period.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including: approval and supervision of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult with
the Company’s senior management independently. The daily
management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approvals need to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board confirms that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors, and the corporate
governance functions of them includes: (a) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with laws and regulatory requirements; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management; (c) to develop, review
and monitor the codes of conduct and compliance manuals
applicable to employees and the Directors; (d) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board and
report relevant matters; (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG code and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report; and (f) to review and monitor the Company’s
compliance with its whistleblowing policy. During the Reporting
Period, the Board has reviewed the annual corporate
governance report of the Company, and has performed the
above corporate governance functions.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms.
Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairperson), Mr. Zheng Yufeng, both
being independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Zheng
Guorui, being a non-executive Director. Ms. Chan Ka Lai
Vanessa has the appropriate professional qualification and
experiences as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1.

to deal with matters relating to the relationship with the
Company’s auditor;

to review the Company’s financial information;

to regulate the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control system;

to review the arrangements established by the Company
to allow employees of the Company to confidentially raise
concerns regarding to possible misconduct in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit
Committee shall ensure the appropriate arrangements are
in place to allow the Company to investigate such matters
in a fair and independent manner and take appropriate
actions;

to act as the key representative for overseeing the
Company’s relationship with the external auditor;

to supervise and evaluate the internal and external
audit work of the Company, and be responsible for the
coordination of internal audit and external audit; and

to exercise other duties and powers as specified in the
applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules, rules
and systems of the Company or authorized by the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available for inspection on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Audit Committee has convened 2 meetings during the
Reporting Period.
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During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to discuss and consider the following
matters:

° to review the final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022 as
well as the report prepared by the Auditor relating to
auditing and accounting issues and any significant findings
during the audit;

° to review the interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the six months ended June 30, 2023
as well as the report prepared by the Auditor relating to
auditing and accounting issues and any significant findings
during the review; and

° to review the financial reporting systems, compliance
procedures, internal control systems (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function),
risk management systems and processes and the re-
appointment of the Auditor; the Board had not breached
any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
Auditor.

The table below sets forth the attendance of each Audit
Committee member at the Audit Committee meetings during the
Reporting Period:

Name of Directors EEns

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa (Chairperson) PR (£E)
Mr. Zheng Yufeng LIRS

Mr. Zheng Guorui BPEA 55 5 A4

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of five Directors, namely
Ms. Chen Juan (Chairperson), being an executive Director, Mr.
Zheng Guorui, being a non-executive Director, Ms. Chan Ka
Lai Vanessa, Mr. Zheng Yufeng and Mr. Liu Daozhi, all being
independent non-executive Directors.
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The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
once annually, and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the
succession plans for Directors, in particular the chairman
of the Board and the general manager; and

5. to perform other duties as required by the Board from
time to time.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR NOMINATION

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or
incumbent based on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill
and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties
and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

According to the nomination policy, the Directors are selected
as per the following procedures:

1. conduct comprehensive evaluation and analysis of
the existing Directors, fully communicate with relevant
departments of the Company, study the Company’s
demand for new Directors;

2. extensively search for candidates for Directors within
the Company and its subsidiaries and in the job market
according to the position demand and the board diversity
policy of the Company;
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3. gather information of each preliminary candidate, including
his/her occupation, education, professional title, detailed
work experience and all part-time work record, and
prepare relevant written materials;

4. seek the consent of candidates nominated for Directors
by relevant departments or personnel for their nomination
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations and the
Articles of Association, otherwise they may not be the
candidates for Directors;

5. convene a Nomination Committee meeting to review
the qualifications of the candidates according to the job
requirements for Directors;

6. form a resolution of the Nomination Committee meeting,
and make recommendations for candidates and submit

relevant materials to the Board; and

7. conduct other work subsequently according to the
decisions or feedback of the Board.

The nomination policy of the Company is available for inspection
on the website of the Company.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available for inspection on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held to discuss and consider the following
matters:

° to review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

° to review the nomination policy; and

° to review the Board diversity policy.
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The table sets forth the attendance of each Nomination
Committee member at the Nomination Committee meeting
during the Reporting Period:

Name of Directors EEns

Ms. Chen Juan (Chairperson) BRI Z L (£/E)
Mr. Zheng Guorui BB 855 5 A4

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa PRE=Bz+

Mr. Zheng Yufeng LIRS

Mr. Liu Daozhi Gl et

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of five Directors,
namely Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairman), being an independent
non-executive Director, Ms. Chen Juan, being an executive
Director, Mr. Fu Shan, being a non-executive Director, Ms. Chan
Ka Lai Vanessa and Mr. Liu Daozhi, both being independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company include:

1. to review on an annual basis and make recommendations
to the Board regarding the general remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management of
the Company and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing the remuneration

policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives resolved from time to time;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration portfolios of individual executive Director
and senior management which include benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and share scheme
(if any), including any compensation payables for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;
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4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions of the Group in other regions;

6. to review and approve the compensation payables to the
executive Directors and senior management for their loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. to review and approve the compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct
to ensure that such arrangements are consistent with
the contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

8. to ensure that no Directors or any of his/her associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration; and review and/or approve matters
in respect of the Company’s share scheme in accordance
with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available for inspection on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held to discuss and consider the following
matters:

° to review remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company for 2022;

° to review the remuneration policy and structure for
Directors and senior management of the Company for
2023; and

U to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management of the Company.
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The table sets forth the attendance of each Remuneration
Committee member at the Remuneration Committee meeting
during the Reporting Period:

Name of Directors EENR

Mr. Zheng Yufeng (Chairperson) B RS E (£E)
Ms. Chen Juan BRI 2+

Mr. Fu Shan R seE

Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa PRI

Mr. Liu Daozhi 2BEESLE

Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors consists of three supervisors,
including Mr. Wang Xinglin, Ms. Wang Xiaoyong and Mr. Qian
Weidong. Mr. Wang Xinglin is currently served as the chairman
of the Board of Supervisors.

The power and responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors
include, but not limited to, review the Company’s financial
report; supervise the Directors and senior management in
their performance of their duties and to propose the removal
of Directors and senior management who have violated laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association or resolutions of
the shareholder’s general meeting; when the acts of Directors,
general manager or other senior management personnel are
detrimental to the Company’s interests, to require them to
correct these acts; propose the convening of the extraordinary
general meetings and to convene and preside over the
shareholders’ general meetings when the Board fails to perform
the duty of convening and presiding over the shareholders’
general meetings under the Articles of Association; and exercise
any other authority stipulated in the Articles of Association.

Each term of office of a Supervisor is three years and he/she
may serve consecutive terms if re-elected. A Supervisor shall
continue to perform his/her duties in accordance with the laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association until
a duly appointed Supervisor takes office, if re-election is not
conducted in a timely manner upon the expiry of his/her term of
office or if the resignation of Supervisors results in the number
of Supervisors being less than the quorum.

The biographical information of the Supervisors is set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” on page 54 and page 64 of this
annual report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration by band of Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company (whose biographical
details are included in section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” of this Annual Report), for the year
ended December 31, 2023 are set out below and in note
35(e) “Directors’ emoluments” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

MeER(ARES)

Band of remuneration (in RMB)

RMB1 - RMB1,000,000

ARE17TE ARE1,000,0007T

ﬁ%\%%&%ﬁ%ﬂkﬁ%ﬁ

BHZE2023F12A31HILFE B - &
ERADFSREBEAE (BENBEF
BHRAFERIES  EShafERE
BE|—&) MBS EREATN 0T RER
AP BRRWEISE) [ ESME] -

Number of individuals

AB

RMB1,000,001 - RMB2,000,000
RMB2,000,001 - RMB3,000,000
RMB3,000,001 - RMB4,000,000
RMB4,000,001 - RMB5,000,000

AER#¥1,000,001 TE AK#2,000,0007T
AER#¥2,000,001 TZE AK#3,000,0007T
AER#¥3,000,001 TE A K% 4,000,0007T
AER#¥4,000,001 TE AK#5,000,0007T

O S )|

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments paid by the Group
to any of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2023 which give a true and fair view of the affairs
of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results
and cash flows. The management has provided to the Board
such interpretation and information as necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s
financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.
The Company has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on the Company’s performance, positions
and prospects. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement made by the Auditor regarding
its reporting responsibilities on the Financial Statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
page 201 to page 212 of this Annual Report.

MEEEHEXRNEREZEAFH - BX
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining solid and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
investments of Shareholders and the Company’s assets. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed
to identify, assess and report on potential risks and implement
control measures, to mitigate rather than to completely eliminate
the risks associated with achieving our business objectives.
These systems provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The key features of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems include the following:

° An organized structure with clearly defined and distinct
scope of authority and responsibilities;

° A comprehensive financial accounting system to provide
for various performance measurement indicators and to
ensure compliance with relevant rules;

° Annual plans prepared by senior management of the
Company on ESG, financial reporting, operations and
compliance with reference to significant potential risks;

° Strict prohibition of unauthorised expenditures;

° Guidelines on the dissemination of confidential and
sensitive information;

° Specific approval from executive Director/responsible
senior executive of the Company prior to commitment in
all material matters;

° Appropriate policy to ensure the effective use of resources,
the qualifications and experiences possessed by our staff
members who are responsible for the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions, and sufficient training
provided to our staff members;

° Management’s review and evaluation on the internal
control procedures and monitoring of risk factors on a
regular basis; and

o Report to the Audit Committee about the findings on
identified risks and measures to address such risks.
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The main procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant potential risks are as follows:

° Identify — We identify current and emerging risks in our
business operations and categorize those risks into a
reasonable profile based on timeframe, likelihood, intensity
and impact severity. We establish four risk categories,
including strategic risks, financial risks, operating risks
and legal risks. The Audit Committee has established
and oversaw the whistleblowing policy. In line with that
commitment, the Company expects and encourages the
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders
who have concerns about any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Company to voice their concerns.
All whistleblowing reports are investigated to the fullest
extent possible and reported to the Audit Committee.

° Assess — We assess and prioritize risks so that the most
important risks can be identified and dealt with. Based
on both qualitative and quantitative analyses, we prioritize
risks in terms of likelihood and impact severity.

° Mitigate — Based on our assessment of (i) the probability
and impact severity of the risks; (ii) cost and benefit of the
mitigation plans, we choose the appropriate option for
dealing with risks, including risk elimination by suspending
the associated business activities, risk reduction by
adopting appropriate control measures, risk transfer by
outsourcing or purchasing insurance policies, and risk
acceptance by choosing to accept risks of low priority.

° Measure — We measure our risk management system
by determining if changes have been implemented and
if changes are effective. In the event of any weakness in
control, we follow up by adjusting our risk management
measures and report material issues to the Board.

The Audit Committee assists the Board to at least annually
review and monitor the scope, issues, results and action plans
in relation to or arising from the internal and external audits.
The Audit Committee also assists with the Board’s corporate
governance role in the Group, particularly in overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems, and managing the
finance and internal audit functions.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experiences, training programs and budget of the Company
in relation to the accounting and financial reporting functions
and those relating to the Company’'s ESG performance and
reporting, and will further review and assess such systems at
least once each year. The Audit Committee and the Board were
not aware of any areas of concern that would have a material
impact on the Group’s financial position or results of operations
and considered the risk management and internal control
systems to be generally effective and adequate to govern the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company has maintained its anti-corruption policy, code
of ethics and business conduct among all employees. The
Audit Committee is the main responsible body to supervise
the anti-fraud and anti-corruption work conducted by our
internal audit department, including organizing the annual
fraud risk assessment of all departments and subsidiaries of
the Company, carrying out the consequences and prevention
of anti-fraud and corruption training sessions and activities,
handling anti-fraud and anti-corruption reports, organizing the
relevant case investigation, offering rectification suggestion and
reporting to our management and the Board on such matters.

We have set up telephone reporting hotline and email
address for our employees and business partners to report
violation of professional ethics by our employees, including
suspected fraud, corruption or bribery misconducts. Our
internal audit department conducts investigation for such
reports and allegations, keeps written records, and reports
the investigation results to our management and the Board.
Specifically, our internal audit department will establish special
investigation teams comprised of employees from our internal
audit department and other relevant departments to conduct
joint investigations. Our internal audit department may also
engage external experts to participate in the investigation as
necessary. The special investigation teams shall assess the
relevant internal controls and produce written reports to make
recommendations for improvement. In the meantime, employees
who are confirmed to commit fraud, corruption, bribery or other
misconducts shall receive internal economic and administrative
disciplinary punishments in accordance with the relevant
internal policies. If the misconducts violate relevant laws, such
employees may also subject to civil or criminal penalties in
accordance with relevant laws.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has in place the Whistleblowing Policy for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with
the Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matters
related to the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION
POLICY

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s Directors, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding
to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited.

Handling of inside information

The Company has adopted policies in respect of the
confidentiality management of the Company’s information and
the disclosure of inside information, sensitive information or
confidential information in accordance with the SFO and the
Listing Rules to ensure confidentiality when handling inside
information and the publication of relevant disclosures to the
public as soon as practicable. Under this policy, the Company
disseminates information to specified persons on a need-to-
know basis, and requires all employees who have access to
the inside information to maintain strict confidentiality of the
inside information until it is announced. The policy also sets out
the procedures for identifying, handling and monitoring inside
information or sensitive or confidential information, the scope
of inside information and the procedures and precautionary
measures for reporting or leakage of inside information of the
Group.

AUDITOR’ REMUNERATION

Approximate remuneration paid or payable in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided to the Company by the Auditor
for the year ended 31 December, 2023 were set out as follows:
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qin Xue (“Mr. Qin”) serves as the joint company secretary
of the Company, who is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board
policies and procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. Mr. Qin has extensive experience
in accounting and finance matters, but presently does not
possess any of the qualification required under Rules 3.28 and
8.17 of the Listing Rules, the Company has applied to the Stock
Exchange and was exempted by the Stock Exchange from strict
compliance with the Listing Rules, such that Mr. Qin may be
appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company.

In addition, to maintain good corporate governance and in
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company has appointed Ms. Ko Mei Ying (“Ms.
Ko”) of Tricor Services Limited (a company secretarial service
provider) as another joint company secretary of the Company,
that provides general corporate and secretarial support services
to assist Mr. Qin in discharging the duties and responsibilities of
a company secretary of the Company. Ms. Ko is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom, and
therefore meets the qualification requirements under Note 1 to
Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and is in compliance with Rule
8.17 of the Listing Rules. The main contact person of Ms. Ko in
the Company is Mr. Qin.

Prior to the engagement of Ms. Ko effective from July 18, 2023,
Ms. Ng Ka Man (“Ms. Ng”) served as the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng was a delegate of TMF Hong Kong
Limited, a company secretarial service provider.

Mr. Qin, Ms. Ko and Ms. Ng have attended no less than 15
hours relevant professional trainings to follow the requirements
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company considers that effective communication with
the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and understanding the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also deeply convinced of the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information,
which enables shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions. The Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
and the results were satisfactory.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an
opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Directors. The chairperson and the chairmen of the Board
Committees of the Company will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the Auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and Auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and the Shareholders and maintains a website
(https://www.scientechmed.com/), where latest information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.
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Summary of Shareholders’ Communication Policy

General Policy

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and investors, and will regularly review this
Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders
and investors mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (quarterly, interim and annual reports), annual
general meetings and other general meetings that may
be convened, all the disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the website of the Company.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders and investors shall be ensured at all times.
Any question regarding this Policy shall be directed to the
joint company secretaries.

Communication Strategies

Shareholders’ enquiries

2.1

2.2

2.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Share Registrar.

Shareholders and investors may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders and investors shall be provided with
designated contacts and email addresses and enquiry
channels of the Company in order to enable them to make
any query in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communication

3.1

3.2

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders
in plain language and in both English and Chinese
versions to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding.
Shareholders have the right to choose the language (either
English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic
means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other
things, in particular, their email addresses to the Company
in order to facilitate timely and effective communications.

AN\ A 2N
ERERME

B RBA BRI E

BREHE

1.1

1.2

1.3

FEEHERRRRREEREY
W E R AR AR A
2 -

ARRARARREKREEBEEMD
ITBEER  ARANMHRSE (F
B FHRFERS)  BRRAFK
EREMATEARNKRRAE X
HIABEXTHIMHNBEEN
AR nml@akEMARTER
EARRRHE -

72X B B 2 HE AR B R S8 B ) BROR
RIEHEBERM - WHAREKE
EER - ERBEQAMERD -

BHREE

RAEZH

2.1

2.2

2.3

BRERMEE TRREETARE - &
MARRNBHELEIEL °

BREREEABRERLZDAR
AN AFER -

ARBARABRERERRKREERBIEE
MARAHBA - BB REHR
BE - NEAMREENEEALR
AIHEH -

2 A

3.1

3.2

AR QA BRAAZA P
REERS - AR RIRE AR
AR - RRAEEZWRAFEA
BT (B P XX) KB TR
(ENRIAEEFHRA)

BEEAARFARE (LD LRE
5) BEME + U BRCEE AR
R -

195



196

Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
SELRBEMNE (L8) ROEBRALT

Corporate Governance Report

i

RERBWE

Corporate Website

3.3

3.4

3.5

A dedicated “Investor Relations” section is available on
the Company’s website (http://www.scientechmed.com).
Information on the website is updated on a regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the Stock
Exchange is also posted on the Company’s website
immediately thereafter. Such Information includes
prospectus document, results reports, announcements,
circulars and explanatory documents of corporate
governance, etc..

All presentation materials provided in conjunction with
the Company’s annual general meeting and results
announcement each year will be made available on the
Company’s website as soon as practicable after their
release.

Shareholders’ Meetings

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings
shall be in place to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will
be monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and,
if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairmen or their
delegates of the committees under the Board, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend shareholders’
activities organised by the Company, where information
about the Company, including its latest strategic plan,
products and services, etc., will be communicated.
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Investment Market Communications

5.1 Investor/analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings,
roadshows (both domestic and international), media
interviews, marketing activities for investors and holding/
attending specialist industry forums, etc., will be available
on a regular basis in order to facilitate communication
between the Company, Shareholders and the investment
community.

5.2 The Company’s Directors and employees who have
contacts or dialogues with investors, analysts, media or
other interested outside parties are required to comply
with the disclosure obligations and requirements under the
“Disclosure Policy of Inside Information” of the Company.

Shareholder Privacy

6.1 The Company recognises the importance of Shareholders’
privacy and will not disclose Shareholders’ information
without their consent, unless required by law to do so.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company do not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of
the Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as
set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/
or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to the Shareholders’
approval.

For details of the Dividend Policy, please refer to the sections
headed “DIVIDEND POLICY” in the Report of the Directors.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders and other investors who intend to put forward
their enquiries about the Company to the Board could send
their enquiries by post, phone or email to the headquarters of
the Company at 5/F, Building 41, No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District, Shanghai. The contact number is (86) 21-
37015633 and the email address is IR@scientechmed.com.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution shall be proposed for each separate issue (including
the election of certain Directors) at the shareholder’s general
meetings.

All resolutions put forward at the Shareholder’s general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the poll results will be posted timely on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each Shareholder’s
general meeting been held.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 65 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders who request an extraordinary general meeting or
a general meeting of a class of Shareholders shall comply with
the following procedures:

Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of
the Company’s shares have the right to propose to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting and such proposal
shall be made by way of written request(s). The Board shall
reply in writing regarding the acceptance or refusal to convene
an extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon receiving
such proposal in accordance with the laws, regulations and the
Articles of Association.

Where the Board agrees to convene such extraordinary general
meeting, a notice to convene such general meeting shall
be dispatched within five days after the passing of relevant
resolution by the Board, provided that any changes to the
original proposal shall be subject to the approval from related
shareholders.

Where the Board disagrees to convene such extraordinary
general meeting, or where the Board fails to provide any
response within ten days after receiving such proposal,
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of the
Company’s shares shall have the right to propose to the Board
of Supervisors to convene an extraordinary general meeting and
such proposal shall be made by way of written request(s).
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Where the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene such
extraordinary general meeting, a notice to convene such
general meeting shall be dispatched within five days upon
receiving such proposal, provided that any changes to the
original proposal shall be subject to the approval from related
Shareholders.

Where the Board of Supervisors fails to dispatch the notice
to convene such general meeting within the prescribed time
limit, it shall be deemed that the Board of Supervisors does
not convene and preside over such general meeting. Then
the Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than
10% of the Company’s shares for more than 90 consecutive
days are entitled to convene and preside over the meeting by
themselves.

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposal(s) at the
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 67 of the Articles of Association, where
the Company is to convene a general meeting, the Board,
the Board of Supervisors and Shareholders severally or jointly
holding 3% or more of the Shares of the Company shall be
entitled to put forward proposals to the Company. The contents
of the proposals shall fall within the functions and powers of
the general meeting, have clear agenda and specific matters
to be resolved, and shall comply with relevant requirements of
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association. Shareholder(s)
severally or jointly holding more than 3% of the Shares of
the Company may raise interim proposals and submit them
in writing to the convener 10 days before a general meeting.
The convener shall, within 2 days after the receipt of such
proposals, issue a supplemental notice of the general meeting,
announce the contents of the interim proposals, and submit the
interim proposals to the general meeting for consideration.
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Right to Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 101 of the Articles of Association,
candidates for directors shall normally be submitted by the
Board of the Company to the shareholders’ general meeting of
the Company by way of proposal. The Shareholders and the
Board of Supervisors of the Company may nominate candidates
for election as directors in accordance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association.

A written notice of the intention to nominate a candidate for
director and a notice in writing by that candidate indicating
his/her acceptance of such nomination shall be given to the
Company not earlier than the day on which the notice of the
shareholders’ general meeting is given and not later than seven
days before the date of such shareholders’ general meeting.
The period for nomination and acceptance of nominations shall
not be less than seven days.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company has not made any
amendments to its Articles of Association.

On April 7, 2024, the Board considered and approved to
prepare the Company’s financial statements and disclose
relevant financial information in accordance with the CASBE
starting from the interim report for the six months ending
June 30, 2024, subject to the approval by the Shareholders
of the proposed amendments to the Articles of Association
(the “Proposed Amendments”) at the forthcoming AGM. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated April 7, 2024. A circular containing, among other matters,
details of the Proposed Amendments together with the notice
of the AGM, will be published on the HKEXnews website of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the website of the
Company (www.scientechmed.com) in due course.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of LEPU ScienTech Medical
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of LEPU ScienTech
Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 213
to 342, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Capitalisation of development costs

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
not subject to amortisation
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
TR EIR (])

Key Audit Matter
RBFtER

Capitalisation of development costs

MBEAXZREL

Refer to Notes 4(ii) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B 2GR B mR M T4>) 218

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
incurred expenditures on research and development
(“R&D”) activities of approximately RMB143,585,000
out of which, approximately RMB61,578,000 were
recognised as R&D expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
approximately RMB82,007,000 were capitalised as
intangible assets in the consolidated balance sheet
during the year.

HZE2023F12A31HILFE - EREELHAT AR
(SR BEB T HAOARKE143,585,0007T © HAFH
AR¥61,578,000 T EE £ 2023F12 A31 B IEFE
MireBm REM 2 ERERTBRBAMBER I KL
AR#82,007,000tRFRNERN RiFaEEBER
FREZEE °

Development costs are capitalised as intangible
assets only if the capitalisation criteria set out in Note
18 to the consolidated financial statements can be
met. The determination of the capitalization amounts
primarily involved management’s judgement and
estimates in assessing the technical and commercial
feasibilities (covering the estimated future economic
benefits of the products under development) of
each R&D projects and the availability of financial
and technological resources to complete the
R&D projects and commence production and
commercialisation.
MBERZERAIEBLGRE M EREMT18AHERL
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B E M EERREET SR

We performed the following procedures to address
this key audit matter:
HEAEREAFE  BPIDETUATER :

° Understood and evaluated the key

management controls and process over
capitalisation of development costs, and
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the level of
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias;
TR AT BB X B AL R AR B IR E 1
Rmi2 - BBEREHNT - E8HE - BT
BEREZNGBMZEEERARERNKT - FFHE
BRI E A R

° Obtained an understanding of the Group’s
capitalisation criteria of development costs,
and assessed whether they are in line with
the applicable financial reporting framework;
THRESEMERXNERZRE  WaTHE
RN EERYBREER

° For R&D projects which have reached the
development stage, we evaluated the stage
of development, management’s intention to
complete these projects and management’s
judgment on the technical feasibility of these
R&D projects by discussion with management
and corroborated with the relevant supporting
evidence (including research proposals,
approvals for clinical trials, clinical trial
application materials, clinical trial reports and
latest project timetable);
HEERABEBRMABRIBEEMmMS - BMBAE
EREENNmRINBEAE NNERE (BEH
Rz HERKHAR  BRASABRBZME
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
R ER (1)

Key Audit Matter
HARFst=EN

We identified this as a key audit matter because
significant management’s judgement and estimates
were involved in assessing whether the capitalisation
criteria can be met.
HREMEREERENMCBEER P RENEEE
HIET R s - R ZEERERARESEIE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMmE MM EERREETER

° Assessed management’s estimation on the
future economic benefits of the products
under development by evaluating the
reasonableness of the key assumptions
as adopted by management (including the
estimated market size, revenue growth rate
and gross profit margin of the products) in
the estimation by comparing with the industry
information and market data as we obtained
from our independent research;
BBRFMEBELERATESNTRELSNT
SEBETHER A ERBEGERER
RIRAE B A 2 R ER R B R SR R A% (B & (h 5T &Y
MiSHRE  WABREMERENE) NG
(g

° Evaluated the management’s judgements on
the availability of financial and technological
resources to complete the R&D projects and
commence the production by considering the
liquidity and financial position of the Group
and interviewing the key R&D project team
members to understand the adequacy of
competent manpower in the project teams;
ZRTESENRBMEMB MR - WA T
TEMBEAEBNKE - THTEEBERPZ
DEM AT TR - 71 T B IR E S T
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

RBEMER ()
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FREEFER EMET MR EMRBETER

° Examined the underlying supporting
documents of R&D expenditures (including
contracts, payment vouchers and supplier
invoices) on a sample basis;
MEBEEHERXOHERAREEXH (BFEE
A NREREREERESR)

° For the samples selected which are relating
to projects during the development stage,
we further checked whether the costs were
incurred directly attributable to development
activities of the R&D projects by examining
the underlying supporting documents.
HRPTEN EFRZEERIER GRS - E—
PRETERKAIELERCEERBNAEE
B R EB A I -

Based on the above procedures performed,
we consider that the judgments applied by
management in determining the capitalisation of
development costs were supported by the evidence
obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
TR EIR (])

Key Audit Matter
REFAER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation

HEREAMBHELRENREFG

Refer to Notes 4(i), 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
E2Hm e MG mRMEE4() 17 K%18 °

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has
goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation of approximately RMB48,282,000 and
RMB204,097,000, respectively and no provision for
impairment of these assets have been recognised by
the Group.

R2023F12A31H ESEFERERBHD
BREEDRANR/RAR®K48,282,000t R AR
204,097,0007¢C - B &EEEY M|t %S5 EEERERR
B&E -

Management conducts impairment reviews on
goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicated a potential
impairment. The impairment tests are based on
the recoverable amounts of the relevant cash
generating units (“CGUs”) to which the goodwill and
the intangible assets not subject to amortisation are
allocated.

ERESFHNEABAKRRAESBLRENSE 4o
ARPRTRBENERENBRARHNEBILEEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMMmEFMAEEREEN TR

We performed the following procedures to address
this key audit matter:
MABEREBTFIR  BADETATRER

° Obtained an understanding of the

management’s internal control and process
of impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation,
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management
bias;
TREEEYHE EABHNETL EERR
BT {4 8 A BB HE Il A KT @ A2 - WiliBE &
A THEUENEERAEMESRREZE (40
FEE - BNERERENGRM) HKF
AHMEEAERR AN EFRER

° Evaluated the outcome of the management’s
prior year impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;
AHEEREERATFEHEEREREHNEL
BENRENGNER  TEEEBMHFARE
BB R
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TR EIR (])

Key Audit Matter
FREEHER

Management has assessed and determined the
recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs with the
assistance of an independent valuer. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant CGUs were determined by
the higher of their value-in-use and fair value less
cost of disposal. The determination of recoverable
amounts involves the estimation or forecast of the
future cash flows of the relevant CGUs based on
certain key assumptions such as the estimated
growth rate of revenue, gross profit margin, terminal
growth rate and discount rate.
EBRECEB LGB B TG HEE THEAR
CEABMNAWE SRR - HEREEEBMLHN K
EleEREFREENAABEREEEKANMEHR
BaEEE flkbeEFrEREEBReEELEMQ
BARKRIREMEMFTHBRARAMERAN —LHAREBRR
REETE - RATERIERE - EFE - KELREFN
BAIR K o

We identified this as a key audit matter because the
estimation of recoverable amounts are subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty and significant
management’s judgement and estimates were
involved in the impairment assessment.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMET MR ERRBETER

° Evaluated the appropriateness of
management’s identification of CGUs to
which the goodwill and intangible assets not
subject to amortisation were allocated;
AHEREERESIEBEREABENETLE
ENReEFEVNEENL

° Evaluated the independence, competence,
capabilities, and objectivity of the independent
valuer engaged by management based on
our independent background search on the
credentials of the valuer;
BRERMEEEMEENE IS SER @ 7T
TERERFNBE L AEMNBEIL - 6
EHMFEN

° Assessed the appropriateness of the
methodology applied by management
in determining the recoverable amounts
of the relevant CGUs and evaluated the
appropriateness of the discount rate as
adopted by benchmarking with the market
data of comparable companies in the industry
with the involvement of our internal valuation
experts;
ERMABEEERHORET @ S HBEREER
T FEREIR S E A BALA A U B £ FERFE A A
FOEREE M - R AR A BT I5 5
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
R ER (1)

Key Audit Matter
REFAER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMMmEFMAEEREEN TR

° Evaluated the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used in the future cash flow
forecast, including the estimated growth
rate of revenue, gross profit margin, terminal
growth rate and cost component ratio, by
comparing them with the Group’s historical
financial performance and growth trends,
approved financial budgets and also the
industry information and market data as we
obtained from our independent research;
AHEARKRBE @ RFBFERNBRRENEIE
1t BEBANMETERE - EMEX - KK
RERBABAL - I H BB KB e E £ 8
BRIRFIERBE - #OENPBIEE A KA
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&

° Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on the above key
assumptions to further understand the
extent to which adverse changes, either
individually or in aggregate, would result in
the goodwill and intangible assets not subject
to amortisation being impaired;
AHEREN FMARRRETHERRES
i AE—ZF THANEE (EiREFHNAR
RENEERERABHNELEEZLEREY
Z2HE

° Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
related to impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.
RIBERNMBEREER  FHEEFERER
BENETEEREMEEENRERSS RS

Based on the above procedures performed, we
consider that the management’s judgement and
estimates adopted in the impairment assessment
of goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortisation were supported by the evidence
obtained.
ERALAAITHRER - BfIRREREERTHE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 2023 Annual Report (the “annual report”)
other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other
information including the corporate information, financial
highlights, chairman’s statement, management discussion
and analysis, biographies of directors, supervisors and senior
management, corporate governance report and the report
of the directors prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The
remaining other information, including the report of the board
of supervisors, environmental, social and governance report
and the other sections to be included in the annual report, is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included
in the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to the Audit Committee of the Company and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LELRBEMNE (L8) RBERATE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENHRE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

EEREIZAERGSMEE
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BERAEFAAERE(BRMBRES
PR kBB CR BRG] B35 EE R E #E
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HEHAE o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LELRBEMNE (L8) RBERATE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee of the Company with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Cheuk Kay.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEEREMEERER

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Net reversal/(provision) for impairment

losses on financial assets
Other income and losses - net

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income/(costs) — net

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive

income/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Earnings/(losses) per share
attributable to the owners
of the Company (expressed in
RMB per share)

Basic and diluted earnings/(losses)
per share

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Note
B sE
A 6
SHEER AN 7
EF
EER S 7
— R RATER A S 7
Y 7
cRMEEREEBRER
(Bfs) =58 9
Hip A R B8 — 5458 10
BEFE(F8)
BRI A
B T AR
B /(B ) — 558 11
FRrSMEFIA,(5E)
TSRS 12
FERFIE(FER)
FREMZEKS -
MikRHE
FRZELE (5888
EAFIHEEABEFE
(B R2EKE
(518 ) &
FAFIHEAEESRERN,
(1) (e
AR®TIITR)
BREANESRAN /(EE)
13

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HILEE
2023 2022
202345 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
325,896 247,670
(37,085) (27,984)
288,811 219,686
(50,113) (38,663)
(42,835) (53,685)
(61,578) (53,873)
5,981 (5,727)
18,416 (69,464)
158,682 (1,726)
14,816 5,665
(204) (18,971)
14,612 (13,306)
173,294 (15,032)
(21,762) (4,781)
151,532 (19,813)
151,532 (19,813)
151,532 (19,813)
0.44 (0.08)

Nsb ko=
BB R —BF B E -

1Bk N E 2 U et 7k 8 B fE P
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

LELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Deferred income tax assets
Prepayments

Long-term bank deposits

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through L
profit or loss

Restricted cash

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

gE

ERBEE

M - HE KRR
EREEE
KEMZFE

B

ﬁ%ﬁ?
BIEFTTS MQF
SEUNE
%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

FRBEERE

mENEE

8

B 5 REWKIA

T3R8 I H b & Y RIE
ARABEFEEEEH
STARHEENEREE

XEHIRE

EHRITER

ReRBE2EFEY

REBEERE

BERE

s
FAFHAAEGRS

B
Efth 18
BER

HaRs

Note
=4

14
15
16
17
18
20
21
26

22
23
21

25
26
26

27
28

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETTT

106,946 92,978
3,081 4,563
22,256 38,483
48,282 48,282
281,731 204,608
13,257 15,581
533 3,238
95,309 72,396
571,395 480,129
69,423 57,398
32,683 30,615
46,252 38,065

- 258,109

- 790

54,679 =
1,212,034 944,515
1,415,071 1,329,492
1,986,466 1,809,621
346,750 346,750
1,309,143 1,278,528
270,781 119,249
1,926,674 1,744,527




LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Current income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

A\
EREBIRR
HEAE

FRBEERRE

nERR

85 MEA RN IR
BMAIE
BIEPrSAaE
REAERE
RARE

HEERAREH

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 213 to 342
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 28 March 2024 and were signed

on its behalf by:

Annual Report 2023
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note
P

15

30
31

15

REEERER

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTT ARET T
1,099 1,544
1,099 1,544
38,064 34,809
12,589 13,119
6,699 13,831
1,341 1,791
58,693 63,550
59,792 65,094
1,986,466 1,809,621

bR & B ERERE LMK E— 5

B7E -

F213E 342 AR A B IF MK E 1K2024
FIH28HEARRAIEES AR IR B
o WA TREKRESE

Director: Ms. Chen Juan

EF BWIRXL

Director: Ms. Zhang Yuxin
EF REMRKXT
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LELRBEMNE (L8) RBERATE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBEBR

Balance at 1 January 2022

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive losses

Transactions with owners in their

capacity as owners:

Issuance of ordinary shares upon
initial public offering (‘IPO”)

Share issuance costs

Derecognition of redemption
liabilities

Share-hased payments - deemed
contribution from Lepu Medical

Total transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners

Balance at 31 December 2022

1202251 R 1 BoiEeR

EREE
EzEies

REFRER

BEEA(ERBEAN)ZXS

BRDARE ([BRAR
Y& RETERR
RIATRA
BIERBOAE

SB BERRFR
- RELEERNLE

BWRA (EBHEA)
ZX AR

120224 12F 31 B OiEER

Share Treasury Other Retained Total

capital stock reserves earnings equity

A BRE  HbRE  BERN  BRER

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETRT
324,295 (671,507) 593,341 139,062 385,191

- - - (19,813) (19,813)

- - - (19,813) (19,813)

27 22,455 = 579,174 = 601,629

27 - - (21,878) - (21,878)

- 671,507 103,539 - 775,046

29 = = 24,352 = 24,352

22,455 671,507 685,187 - 1,379,149

346,750 = 1,278,528 119,249 1,744,527
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

Share Treasury Other Retained Total
capital stock reserves earnings equity
B B HtG0E g%EH R
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AE®TT AR®TR AR®TRT AERRTRT ARWTR
Balance at 1 January 2023 120231 A 1 AR 346,750 - 1,218,528 119,240 1,744,527
Profit for the year FRFE - - - 151,532 151,532
Other comprehensive income el - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - 151,532 151,532
Transactions with owners in their — BHEA ((EBERA)2K5 -
capacity as owners:
Share-based payments - IR0 AERR
deemed contribution from - RIELLRBNLE
Lepu Medical 29 - - 30,615 - 30,615
Total transactions with owners in E#HA (EEHEA)
their capacity as owners &) L] - - 30,615 - 30,615
Balance at 31 December 2023 12023128 31 AR ER 346,750 - 1,309,143 270,781 1,926,674
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should bilisr A RERS B E) R FE ERE M A M s E— T
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. R:E o
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

LELRBERE (L8) ROBRAE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Payments of internal development
costs capitalised as intangible
assets

Investments in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss (including
investment income)

Placement of term bank deposits

Net cash generated from/
(used in) investing activities

HEZDHERE

RERSHRE
B WH 2
ENAEH

REZDFRERALSN

RATHHRERE
BEDE  BENMRE

BEBIEE
SNERME BB EED
BB 3% A S

BAURA A S
e DR E R RS
SHAE

RENAAEENER
R B A% PR
SR ENHHTEHE
(RIEREKA)

BAEBRITER

BREDRE (FA)
BR&ieH

Note
(=

32(a)

Year ended 31 December
BEE12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTIT
182,795 66,983
8,032 3,269
(26,570) (4,721)
164,257 65,531
(3,066) (13,281)
(3,116) (6,494)
(80,563) (63,585)
(1,268,000) (5,843,037)
1,536,871 5,590,395
(70,808) (70,000)
111,318 (406,002)




Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares
upon IPO

Payment of share issuance costs
(representing capitalised listing
expenses)

Payments for lease liabilities

Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange losses on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Annual Report 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

METDReAE

BRARABERETRD
PSR

S B AR BATROAR
(BEXMELETER)

HERBEMK

MRED (FA),
RUE S g

BeRBSERMBNSEH
FURERREFEY

B MREEFEYD
IR

FRESRBESFR/Y

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

RERERER

Year ended 31 December
BEE12A31HILLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Mk AR®FT ARETTT

- 601,629

- (20,195)

(2,047) (3,630)

(2,047) 577,804

273,528 237,333

944,515 713,480

(6,009) (6,298)

26 1,212,034 944,515

Al 4R G IR &R = 2 e EREE T A9 Y FE—GF
BIE -
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LELRBEMNE (L8) RBERATE

GENERAL INFORMATION

LEPU ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”, 24 L0HFEZRE(EE)RHERAR)
was incorporated as a joint stock limited liability company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”)
on 29 January 2021. The address of its registered office
is Room 201, Building 41, No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company has completed its IPO and listing on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“HKEX”) on 8 November 2022.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred as to
the “Group”) are principally engaged in research and
development, manufacturing and sales of interventional
treatment series occluders for defective congenital heart
disease (BB LRI LR AJGE RS EH1EER) and the
research and development of biological valve (£43EIR)
for heart disease.

Upon incorporation of the Company in January 2021, the
Company had a registered capital of RMB280,000,000
and was owned by Lepu Medical Technology (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd. (BEEEER)BESMKRMNHER AR (“Lepu Medical”)
and Beijing Target Medical Technologies Co., Ltd. (3t =K
H AR AR A F]) (“Target Medical”), as to 99.05% and
0.95%, respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

—REH

S LREERE (E8)BRHAER
AR ([ARAT])K2021F1 H29H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Lepu Medical was incorporated in the PRC on 11 June
1999 whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300003) and Target Medical was
incorporated in the PRC on 18 November 1999 which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Lepu Medical.

As of the date of these consolidated financial statements,
Lepu Medical, together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Target Medical, held 80.75% equity interest in the
Company (with Lepu Medical and Target Medical directly
hold 79.94% and 0.81% equity interests in the Company,
respectively). Dr. Pu Zhongjie is the actual controller
of Lepu Medical. Lepu Medical, Dr. Pu Zhongjie and
Target Medical are considered as a group of controlling
shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets which were measured at fair value.

e BB HRRHEE

—REH (&)

B EEMN1999F6 A11 HRAH
HAY  ERORFIINESR S
Fr £ (BHARAE : 300003) @ Kith
MR 19994F 11 A 18 H A A B 5
Ry HASRETEENEZENBA
Ej °

HEZSHRAY MK A &%
ERERE2EN B AR XM AT
BB AR NRAB0.75% AR - Heh
MEBRBENRWNBDNEEFTE
ARAF79.94% 5 0.81% IE AHEZS ©
BRAB T AL ST BEERIES
A o BEEE  EEGIE LI R K
M 1518 B AR — AR R -

BRRBERI  SEEaMBREAA
RETARE]D TR -

WEEE

AEBEFEMBHREACKRBRER
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g ) Bhe A ER(BERM GRS
SRR REFB ARG (F622
BINRBERTHRE

BRETUAREBEAENESREE
Sh - IR B M B MRBIBE L AR
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Lepu ScienTech Medical Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
LELRBEMNE (L8) RBERATE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

IFRS Accounting Standards comprise the following

authoritative literature:

o IFRS Accounting Standards (“IFRS”)

o IAS Standards (“IAS”)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2 WREEE(R)

REECURE

s (BERMHKHESHER)

(KBERFBHREERD])

. (EBEHEA) ((ERE

AR )
e Interpretations developed by the IFRS Interpretations e MHEBUBHmELENZELZS

Committee (“IFRIC Interpretations”) or its
predecessor body, the standing Interpretations

Committee (“SIC Interpretations”)

2.1 New or amended standards adopted by the

Group

The Group has applied the following new or
amended standards for its annual reporting period

commencing 1 January 2023:

IFRS 17
CBIFR A 75 3 5 BRI D B 17557

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

(B gt R 15 MKBRBR M B HmE

BERER)E29 (BFTA)
Amendments to IAS 8
CEIR a2 R ) 88 5% (18FTA)
Amendments to IAS 12

(Rt ZR) 1298 (IBFTA)
Amendments to IAS 12

(BEIFR &R £/ 125 (BRTA)

ERRE

21 AEECRANFTREET
%

HAEERTH LR -

Insurance Contracts
R a4
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BEESTHR

Definition of Accounting Estimates
B AFTESR
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction
BERHELEMEENBES@RNELEE
International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

BIFR U ERE — SO = SOARAR

(BRMBHRESHEL)BFEAT

S(ERMBEREREERE
DHEMBABEHERESR
Be([FRBEZEE]) Il

AEBB 3202341 A1 A5
b6 2 B9 25 SBER A LA T #72T



2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

New or amended standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

The new or amended standards listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect

the current or future periods.

New or amended standards not yet adopted by

the Group

The following amended standards have been
published but not mandatory for the year ended 31
December 2023 and have not been early adopted by

the Group:

Amendments to IAS 1

(BEIFF s ERI) %15 (BETA)
Amendments to IAS 1

(BEIFR &2/ FE 15 (BRTA)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

(R 2ERI ) B 758 K&
CEIBR B 5 S5 25 A1)
BT (BETA)

Amendments to IFRS 16

(BIFR B 3R 52281 ) 51655
(BFIA)
Amendments to IAS 21

(B & EHER) 2215 (EETA)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

(BERA B HEER ) FE105E K
(EIFR e ER) F 285
(BFTA)

e BB HRRHEE

2 WREEE(R)

2.1

2.2

REMW T R A AR SRS ET
HY2ER (%)

PR HIFRT AR S RT A
EH TR AEERNBERELS
ERFEBBEF T EHREX
AKRBEELBEATE -

2% 8 0 14 K 3R PR B BT AT SR AT A
SET

LA &S ET R 22 R B 2846 - 1B
HZE2023F12A31HILFE
TogHlEnTT » BAREE W &R
EERA

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

HEESERREIERD

Non-Current Liabilities with
Covenants

MR Em B A &

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HERRE L

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

EREHETNHERRE

Lack of Exchangeability
RZ A A3t
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
REFREHBEPERGERE
ZHERNEBEEHEHRA

on or after
RUT®RZ &A%
HEEHRER

1 January 2024

2024%F1H1H
1 January 2024

2024%F1H18
1 January 2024
2024%F1A18
1 January 2024
2024%F1H1H
1 January 2025

20251 A1H
To be determined

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2 New or amended standards not yet adopted by
the Group (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these amended standards, certain
of which are relevant to the Group’s operations.
According to the preliminary assessment made by
the directors of the Company, no significant impact
on the financial performance and position of the
Group is expected when they become effective.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by the management of the Group. The Group
currently does not use any derivative financial instruments
to hedge the relevant financial risk exposure.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk
()  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the functional
currency of respective group entities.
RMB is the functional currency of both the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2

WEEE(])

2.2 AREMEEARERABOHETRES
T2 (4])

AEBEERRFERFEER
BT E  HPaoREAE
BHEERM - REARAE
SFTEM AR - BH%F
RIEFT R AU T2 HARE
BHMBERIREMAEEEAX

MEREER

AEBERKREZ R M HESE
MBRERE  mHERR (2HEIMER
) EEERRBERR - A&
EERREREESIFEINSA
MZ AR AR EER
EEAREEBBERROEBEETH
FE - RREEHAKREEEEE
17 - AEE B R AR EREMITE
SRR T AAEIP R R RE D -

3.1 HBERREZE
(@ TTHEE
(i)  SNERPR

ERARNBER S
D ERNEE R
BENIFEEERE
ENEEBENE
BErER  NgE
EINERER o A
7 N E B A A A
WEEEBH /AR
M o
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e BB HRRHEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency other than RMB. Certain of the
Group’s trade receivables, bank deposits
with initial term of over three months,
cash and cash equivalents, and trade
payables are denominated in foreign
currencies other than RMB and hence
exposed the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group will constantly review
the economic situation and its foreign
exchange risk profile, and will consider
appropriate hedging measures in the
future, as may be necessary.

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from recognised
financial assets and liabilities denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (HKD), US Dollars
(USD) and European Monetary Unit (EUR).

3 MEERETHE (&)

3.1 HBRKREZE(E)

(@) TTHER (&)

(i)

SN e (4B

SN LB 2K B 2R 2R
BERXHRERER
B A AR LASNEY
B ENEER
BE - AKENE
TEZRKFIA -
a R & =1 A
A ERRITERR
ReERREFED
PA R B 5 e 5 3R 0R
PA A R LA SNEY I
WETE - FitER
SNEEERR - AR H
T EREEL
Z & EHHME BB iR
o TEEBER
VERZBEEN
T o

AEEEERAETT
(Bx) FxL(ZE

L) RBMNEEE
iz (BX7T) &t 1 &
ERRATHEER
BEEEHIMNER

B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if USD had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held
constant, net profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB6,692,000
higher/lower (2022: net loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB3,139,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of net foreign exchange
gains/(losses) on translation of USD-
denominated trade receivables, bank
deposits with initial term of over three
months, cash and cash equivalents and
trade payables.

As at 31 December 2023, if HKD had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held
constant, net profit for the year would
have been RMB2,000 higher/lower (2022:
net loss for the year would have been
RMB11,536,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains on
translation of HKD-denominated cash and
cash equivalents.

3

MERREER (1)
3.1 HBRKREZE(E)
(@) WHBEE (&)

() SMNERR ()

7K 2023F 12 A 31
B METHEAR
B EF S TEE5%
(FMTEHEMEZR
BAE) BIFER
AL R4
AR#¥6,692,000
70 (2022 F F N &5
BEER L
#93,139,0007T) -
FEREZHRI
ETNAENESE
IR FRIBE ~ ¥4 BBFR
A=A N MR
ThEZ - BHERR
SEEMRESE
ERIBIRE E £ N
B (E518) %
B o

72023412 A 31
B WBxTHEA
REEH " TK
5% (FTEEMEE
RIFETE) - AF
48 R 30O
L AR2,0007T

(20224F : FAE
BEzR AL

AR#11,536,000
L) FERER
AR ABTEHED
RekBeEE
IR E B A AN E L
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e BB HRRHEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if EUR had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held
constant, net profit for the year would
have been RMB96,000 higher/lower
(2022: net loss for the year would have
been RMB204,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains on
translation of EUR-denominated trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and trade payables.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets other than cash and cash
equivalents and long-term or short-term
bank deposits, the Group’s operating
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group has no borrowings and no
significant interest-bearing debts other
than lease liability, so the potential risk
arising from interest rate fluctuation is
relatively low.

3 MEERETHE (&)

3.1 HBRKREZE(E)

(@) TTHER (&)

(i)

SN e (4B

7K 2023F 12 A 31
B WETHAR
B EFH S TBE%
(FMEHEMEZR
BAE) - BIFER
45 R 3% b0 R
AR#96,0007T
(2022%F : FAEH
BIFRER S I
AR ®204,000
L) FERER
B AR TTEHE B
B REWFIE B
S RASEEBYR
B RENFIERE
EEEIMNEIR S o

JESI

7 K 4 3 4
EAHEAE (B
SRRSEENR
B Ho 8 IR 1TE
KB A%E
O 3 T AT
RERBEA LT
ETSHERHY
2o

HE2023F K
202212 A 31
B AEELERE
R EH M E KA R
B (HEAER
Sh) - BRI R K B
EER)BTER R
HEK -
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e M HRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

®)

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from short-term
or long-term bank deposits, and cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
receivables and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”). The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with short-term or
long-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents since they are deposited at
state-owned banks or reputable commercial
banks which are high-credit-quality financial
institutions. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss have been fully redeemed in March
2023 (Note 24) and hence no longer expose
the Group to any credit risk as of 31 December
2023.

The Group has the following types of financial
assets subject to expected credit loss model:

- trade receivables
- other receivables

3

HMERBER (#8)
3.1 HBRKREZE(E)
(b) 1EEERE

FERBRIERBEH
SEHRITER - B
LkBREEEY BHE
Wk TR - Eo A FE U R IR
RARAEEFERLR
EHTAEHBE (K
NRBEFELEE
FAAEHER] VSR
BE HRABERER
TEHEEMEENKRE
ERKXAEERORARE
B o

AEEBFAFERE
M RARTERAR
RehkReEEBNAH
MEREERR  RE
ERFRITHERARR
ERBEEEFEYWEFRR
BAERITHEER N
BRIRTT - BERTY
BERNSEREENSR
g  EEERMZS
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e BB HRRHEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk of trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on
the historical credit losses and adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the Gross Domestic Product
and the Producer Price Index in China
(the prime location where it sells its
goods) to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in
these factors.

3 MEERETHE (&)

3.1 HBRKREZE(E)

(b) FEmE (&)

(i)

B RWAREE
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e M HRRHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

B35 PR E IR (48)

3.1 HBRKREZE(E)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) 1EEEE (&)
()  Credit risk of trade receivables (Continued) () EBSRWBREEFEE
[R % (5E)
On that basis, the loss allowance EHERLE R
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 2023 K 20224
were determined as follows for trade 12A3818 - E5E
receivables: W R IE B S 18 2
EEMNT
No more More
than 3-6 6-12 than
3 months months months 1 year Total
Tigd 3F 6F 15
3fEA 6f8A 12f8R BE &t
At 31 December 2023 12023128310
Expected loss rate (%) EHEEE (%) 7% 12% 19% 94% 20%
Gross carrying amount - BRE(E - ESENFE
trade receivables (AEBTT)
(RMB'000) 17,922 12,544 5,851 4,329 40,646
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EE%EE (ARETT) (1,234) (1,546) (1,118)  (4,065) (7,963)
No more More
than 3-6 6-12 than
3 months months months 1 year Total
T 3Z 6%
3fEA 618 A 12  1ENE R
At 31 December 2022 12022128310
Expected loss rate (%) EHEEE (%) 6% 15% 13% 92% 31%
Gross carrying amount - BEREE — EHEWIE
trade receivables (ARBTT)
(RMB’000) 16,011 7,501 9,498 11,569 44579
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EiE%EE (ARETT) (1,022) (1,139) (1,195) (10,608  (13,964)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEREEE(E)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBERBEE (H)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEEE (&)
()  Credit risk of trade receivables (Continued) () BEZEWFREAEREE

Rk (&)

Trade receivables are written off where EESENKEE
there is no reasonable expectation HiR: - MBS E
of recovery. Impairment losses on WRIE - B F R
trade receivables are presented as net BB EEER
impairment losses within operating profit. £ ) B A DA R (B
Subsequent recoveries of amounts EEFEET - Al
previously written off are credited against HE M2 ERE
the same line item. Movements in the loss B EIFIEEE T
allowance for trade receivables during the AR—%7IEE - R
respective year are as follows: BEFENEFER
HRIBEEEEES)
UM

Year ended 31 December

BZ12H31BLLFE

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBT T

At beginning of the year F1 (13,964) (8,288)
Net reversal/(provision) 2 5 W IR E

for impairment of trade ‘e () FE

receivables 6,001 (5,676)

At end of the year FR (7,963) (13,964)
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e M HRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i

Credit risk of other receivables

3 MBEERETHE (&)

3.1

For other receivables, management makes
periodic assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability based on
historical settlement records, experience
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the counterparties to settle
the receivables. Movements in the loss
allowance for other receivables during the

respective year are as follows:

At beginning of the year
Provision for impairment of

other receivables

At end of the year

F9)

Hfth & Wk

FR

HRERRE

MBEREEE (K)
(b) FEmE (&)

(i) EHEMEWREEE
B

L At JiE U5 5K IR
s BEEERE
SAEETSE KR
5§24 ﬁT?E,n/ﬁ
f”ﬁlm AR
Z&/&.%E’]H'Jﬁﬁ
HER - T HR G
Ko AE Rl FF 4 7] U =]
Mo REFERNH
it & WK T 5 18 25
HEEBNT

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HILEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
(239) (188)
(20) (51)

(259) (239)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, the policy of
the Group is to regularly monitor the Group’s
liquidity risk and to maintain adequate cash and
cash equivalents to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled
into relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining period at each balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

3 MEERETHE (&)

3.1 HBRKREZE(E)

()

B

AEEFEERTREDW
BehBHeEEY-H
RAE R X T R )RR 1k
B AEENBRRBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

(Continued)

()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMERKEER(HE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 M¥ERBEZE(E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FEHELRE (E)
The following table presents the Group’s TREVAEEK2023
contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at FN2022F12 A31 BHY
31 December 2023 and 2022: EREES IR
Less than Between More than
1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total
PE 1228 25U E I
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETT
As at 31 December 2023 1#2023%12R31A
Trade and other payables (excluded 25 R EFUE
other taxes payable and employee (B IEE hEME
benefit payables) RIEREERT) 28,767 - - 28,767
Lease liabilities HEaR 1,497 1,198 - 2,695
30,264 1,198 - 31,462
As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12A31R
Trade and other payables (excluded &5 R E BB
other taxes payable and employee  (TNEIEE A ESHi
benefit payables) REMEERET) 21,667 - - 21,667
Lease liabilities HEER 2,308 1,087 1,141 4,481
23,970 1,037 1,141 26,148
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e BB HRRHEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMERREE(E)
(Continued)

3.2 BXREKRER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital
(including share capital and other reserves) by
regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part
of this review, the Company considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with the issued
share capital. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group’s capital risk is low as it does
not have any external borrowings as of the respective
balance sheet dates.
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e M HRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair
values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in
these consolidated financial statements.
To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the following
three levels as prescribed under IFRS
Accounting Standards.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market at each of the
reporting dates. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the —
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximate their carrying amounts as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

There are no financial liabilities that were
measured at fair value as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers into and transfers out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting year.

Valuation processes and valuation
techniques used to determine fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to
value financial instruments include:

The finance department of the Group
performs the valuations of items required
for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair values, and report directly
to the chief financial officer (“CFQ”).
Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO and
the finance personnels responsible for
valuations on a periodical basis, in line
with the Group’s reporting periods.
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e M HRRHE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

@)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i

Valuation processes and valuation
techniques used to determine fair values
(Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to
value financial instruments include:

e Quoted market prices or dealer

quotes for similar instruments; and

o Discounted cash flow model and

unobservable inputs mainly including
assumptions of expected future cash
flows and discount rate.

There were no changes in valuation
techniques during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022. There were
no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

3

HMERBER (#8)
3.3 AREEME (E)
(@) LHEELEE(E)

(i

ARNEERAREER

B (b B2 K G E
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mEERE - &

o HRRERE
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i ABUE
FTEBIEFEL
RKIRER=E
X B B8 K &R
%_XCLO

REZE2023F &

202212 A31E
IEFE - AR
MEEE - REZE
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e BB HRRHEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(iv)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

At 31 December 2022, the valuation
of level 3 instruments mainly included
investments in wealth management
products issued by banks and a private
fund. All the wealth management
products were mature within one year or
redeemable at anytime at the Group’s
discretion and with variable return rates
indexed to the performance of underlying
assets. As these instruments are not
traded in an active market, their fair
values have been determined based on
income approach by using a discounted
cash flow analysis with the expected rate
of return.

3 MEERETHE (&)

3.3 ARBEEME (E)

@ ZHEEHEEE)

(iv)

FEREATABRR
BABEBNLARE
B E (F=ER)

REZE2022F12
A31BLEE -
HE=ERTA#E
THEREZERFTA
THRERBITR—
RILEE S N A3
THEMER - FT
BEMEMRHE—
& A Bl B s AT A AR
EEBEBITREMNE
MEEEERD - BE5
BIEH B EXREH
SR A O TR K o
RRELTAERR
BB S EET
BB ERQAEE
EREBREAET
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B | EMITIHIE S
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(iv)  Fair value measurements using significant

3 MBEERETHE (&)

3.3 AREEME (E)

@ ZHEEHAEE)

unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

The following table presents the changes
in level 3 items for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022:

Opening balance as at 1 January
2022

Acquisitions

Disposals

Gains recognised in other income
and losses, net (Note 10)

Closing balance as at 31 December
2022

Opening balance as at 1 January
2023

Acquisitions

Disposals

Gains recognised in other income
and losses, net (Note 10)

Closing balance as at 31 December
2023

202241 A1 BHY
BRI AS R

e B

BE

T E A A R 518 R RERR A
Wy 2= %58 (FFEE10)

MR2022F12 A31 BHAY
HAR 46k

R2023F1 A1 HH
B 454

i

BE

TEE A YA K SR R ERR A
Wezs 558 (F95E10)

MR2023F12 A31 HAY

(iv)

FEREATABRR
BABBORRE
B E(F=EHR)
(&)

TRE7#EZE2023
FN2022%12 A
BTHILEFEE=E
RIEE B

Financial assets
at FVPL
RNAREE
FTEREES
FFAEHER
HEemEE
RMB’'000

AR¥ T

5,843,037
(5,590,395)

5,467

258,109

258,109
1,268,000
(1,536,871)

10,762
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)  Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(iv)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

The following table summarises the
quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in
level 3 fair value measurements as at 31
December 2023 and 2022:

Significant
unobservable
inputs
EXTUER
BARE

Investment in wealth management
products issued by banks

Expected return rate

RERBTRITNENER BHERE

Investment in a wealth management Expected retum rate
product issued by a private fund
(Note 24)

RER—FAEEERA
HTHEHER (Wit2d)

B HE g

e BB HRRHEE

3 MEERETHE (&)

3.3 ARBEEME (E)
(@) LHEEHEE(E)

(v) EREATHEER

BWABBENARE
B8 (F=E&K)
(%8)
TEREA T 72023
FR2022F12 A
S1THE=EBRAN
BETEFEAN
BERTAER#EA
HENE(EER
Range of inputs
BARERE
As at 31 As at 31 Relationship of
December December unobservable inputs
2023 2022 to fair values
20235 R2022% FBEBARER
12A31H 12318 RABEMREER
N/A  1.45%1t02.97% The higher the expected
return rate, the higher
the fair value
TER  1.45%Z297% BHEREES -
NEEES
N/A 1.64%  The higher the expected
return rate, the higher
the fair value
TiEH 1.64% BHEREES -
NEEES
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e M HRRHE

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(i)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets not subject to amortisation

The Group tests whether goodwill and intangible
assets not subject to amortisation has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable
amount of a cash generating unit (“CGU”) is
determined based on the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations which
involved significant management’s judgement
and estimates. The calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period or a longer
period where applicable. Cash flows beyond the
periods as covered by the management approved
budget are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates. Details of the impairment assessment, the key
assumptions adopted and management’s judgment
applied in the assessment are disclosed in Notes 17
and 18.

4

B X (&5t R A&

AT B RABERGER - R
BEE ZET8rETELERE
REREE - EERETARNERAX
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() MHIFEBREREFTHHENE
KEE

AEEEBFEHRERETE
HNWELEERDXIMEMR
EETHR - REELEMD
A EEREERRAEER
HERRLEREEHEZR
SEEE  HSREEENE
R M AEE - ZEAEER
ERNEEBHENTFHAE
RHM (ER) BB BREEN
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(ii)

Capitalisation of development costs

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, the carrying
amount of the Group’s development costs
as capitalised as intangible assets amounted
to approximately RMB204,097,000 and
RMB144,398,000, respectively.

The determination of the capitalisation amounts
primarily involved management’s judgement in
assessing the technical and commercial feasibility
(covering the estimated future economic benefits
of the products under development) of each
development project and the availability of financial
and technological resources to complete the
development projects and commence production.
Technical feasibility is evaluated based on testing
results of products and commercial feasibility is
evaluated based on forecast with assumptions
on revenue to be generated, budget costs to be
incurred, gross profit margin and relevant market
analysis of the relevant products. Availability of
financial and technological resources to complete the
development projects and commence production is
evaluated based on the Group’s liquidity and financial
position and the existing manpower resources in the
Group’s R&D department.

e BB HRRHEE

4 EX{ErIRFIER (8])

(ii)

A< &R

B E 20234 ;2022412 A 31
B AEBERBEFAZERNES
EmEEMNRAED LN AA
R#204,097,0007T &k AR
144,398,000 7T °

BEEENLERIBSNER
B RHh & B IR B R I
BEATE(ERRAETREHR
B i BT AR AR M 2 ) B A )
B & ek 3R IR B IR E A A
R B 75 e T B R © BT Rl AT
YR A5 T3 B0 EE an BB LA
R BEATHENFETER
R ARBERERERSE
EEMRA - BELENRE
A~ EFEMEBBTEINE
B - STAXFEIAR L RER
PR B0 B 755 B B i B IR ) R A T
ERAKENRSE S MIMH
AR LA B AN &= [ B 35 BR P O 38
BANER °
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e M HRRHE

4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(iii)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and patents or
licenses for technologies

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
and amortisation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and patents or licenses for
technologies with reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation and amortisation charges
where useful lives are different to that of previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore changing the
depreciation and amortisation charges in future
periods.

4 EX{ErIRFIER (8])

(iii)

W% - BERRENZTEFR
REF ARG T ERAFRAR
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(iv)

Provision of expected credit loss (“ECL”) for
trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable including forward-looking information
that is available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes
3.1(b) and 23.

e BB HRRHEE

4 EX{ErIRFIER (8])

(iv)

BEZRURENEREEER
BE

AEEERBREREEAEES
FEA IR REE R o B
BRIREBEEBEBLUERER
FY N [RHE 5 A B B2 B B A5
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BEFEEBEZRARIE AR
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TEHEEEERESZEE
Bl E - BIEHEEEIR
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Fair value of restricted share granted and share-
based payment recognised under the Employee
Share Ownership Plan (“ESOP”)

The Group has adopted the ESOP for the Group’s
certain employees in 2021. The fair value of the
restricted shares granted to employees is determined
by using the discounted cash flow method to
determine the underlying equity fair value of the
Company and equity allocation based on Option
Pricing model to determine the fair value of common
shares. Significant estimates on assumptions, such
as risk-free interest rate, volatility, dividend yield and
lack of marketability discount are made based on
management’s best estimates.

The Group has to estimate the expected forfeiture
rate at the end of vesting periods (the “Forfeiture
Rate”) of the restricted shares granted in order to
determine the amount of share-based payment
expenses charged to the profit or loss for each year.
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, management
of the Company has assessed and concluded that
the expected Forfeiture Rate of the restricted shares
awarded by the Group is to be 9.8% and 7.4%,
respectively.

Current and deferred income tax

There are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current income tax expense and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. In addition,
the realisation of deferred income tax assets is
dependent on the Group’s ability to generate
sufficient taxable income in future years to utilise
income tax benefits and tax loss carry-forwards.
Deviations of future profitability from estimates
would result in adjustments to the value of future
income tax assets and liabilities, which could have a
significant effect on the income tax expenses.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Description of segments and principal activities

The Group’s business activities, for which discrete
financial information is available, are regularly reviewed and
evaluated by the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”).
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resource and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company
that make strategic decisions.

The CODM assessed the performance of the reportable
operating segments mainly based on segment revenue,
cost of sales, research and development expenses of each
reportable operating segment. Thus, segment result would
present revenue, cost of sales, research and development
expenses and gross profit for each reportable operating
segment, which is in line with the internal reporting for the
CODM'’s performance review.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:
Occluder Business

Occluder Business is primarily operated by Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy, which is engaged in the business
of research, development and sales of interventional
treatment series occluders for defective congenital heart
disease.

e BB HRRHEE

SHEH
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e M HRRHE

Heart Valve Business

Heart Valve Business is primarily operated by the
Beijing Branch of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy, which
is currently engaged in the business of research and

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

development of heart valve medical devices.

There were no separate segment assets and segment
liabilities information provided to the CODM, as CODM
does not use this information to allocate resources to or

evaluate the performance of the operating segments.

The segment information provided to the Group’s CODM
for reportable segments for the respective years is as

follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

KA
HERA

£

Research and development expenses 26 2

Segment profit/(loss)

Unallocated items

- Distribution expenses

- General and administrative
expenses

— Net reversal of impairment
losses on financial assets

— Other income and losses - net

- Finance income - net

Profit before income tax

aBAA/(BR)

ADEER

— BHFAX

- —RRTBAX

- SREEREERELFE

- B ARER - F8
- BBRA - 38

Fris AR

SWBEH (&)
vy E eSS

DEBEXEBEIER LBTENRCE
BEMBHIERDARES ZA
A B A1 350 B AR B8 B 23 W H T
R -

BMERAETEELERRERHEZD
DHMEERDBABEN AR/E
BRERREINERELEN DR
LENBNERNHEERR -
AARENEELLERRERHEN
HEF R R a0 R D EEE R
e

Year ended 31 December 2023

EF2023F12A31HLEEE
Occluder Heart Valve

Business Business Total
HERER DEBEER &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TTR
325,896 - 325,896
(37,085) - (37,085)
288,811 - 288,811
(20,506) (41,072) (61,578)
268,305 (41,072) 227,233
(50,113)
(42,835)

5,981

18,416

14,612

173,294
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEBEHEE)
Heart Valve Business (Continued) D BERE TS ()

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31AILFE
Occluder Heart Valve
Business Business Total
HERER DRRIE TS Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue A 247,670 - 247,670
Cost of sales HEKA (27,984) - (27,984)
Gross profit £7 219,686 - 219,686
Research and development expenses 26 2 (20,059) (33,814) (53,873)
Segment profit/(loss) 2B (ER) 199,627 (33,814) 165,813
Unallocated items ABEIER
- Distribution expenses — BHFX (38,663)
— General and administrative - —REITRES
expenses (53,685)
— Net provision for impairment - cREEREBBRETE
losses on financial assets (5,727)
- Other income and losses - net - Hi AR EE - F8 (69,464)
- Finance costs - net — BB — 5 (13,306)
Loss before income tax RS RASER (15,032)
Note: M5 -
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, B E20283F k202212 A31HIF
the research and development expenses capitalised as B EXMtAEREEATE A L
intangible assets and not included in the segment information PEEMHAERZSFNORARE
above amounted to approximately RMB82,007,000 and 82,007,0007t & A R#69,107,0007T °

RMB69,107,000, respectively.

No individual customer has contributed more than 10% HZE2023F K2022F12 A31H Ik
of the Group’s total revenue during the years ended 31 FE BEAAZFHAEEMNR
December 2023 and 2022. WA BRBE10%IA L o
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Analysis of revenue

Derived:
— In the PRC
— Outside the PRC

Revenue is attributed to countries based on the

customers’ locations.

6 REVENUE

5
RER
—
— A
6

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by category for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 was as follows:

Revenue from contracts with
customers recognised
at a point in time
— Revenue from sales of
medical occluders

KR — R R TR A
KAEEFPAHHEA

— BEHESREERA

SWBEH (&)
WA T

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

278,132 211,460
47,764 36,210
325,896 247,670

U A 83 8 1A LA T 5 T 7E S B 1)
B -

e A
AREBEHZE2023F &2022F12 A
31 B IEFEZERE DU A ST
N

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H831BILEE

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETTT

325,896 247,670
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REVENUE (Continued)

Revenues from external customers are derived from the
sales of medical occluders both directly to hospitals
and network of distributors. The Group has recognised
revenue-related contract liabilities as set forth in Note 31.

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised as and when the Group’s
obligations under the terms of a contract are satisfied,
which occurs when control of the promised products or
services is transferred to customers. Revenue is measured
as the amount of consideration the Group expects to
receive in exchange for transferring products or services
to a customer (the “transaction price”).

A performance obligation represents a good and service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with using the same approach as for trade receivables.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. There is normally no significant cost to obtain
contract.

e BB HRRHEE

B A (#8)

KEIBEFPHWRARE BEZ A E
e A B i) A% K 72 48 4% 3H 5 8 R 1 3
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REVENUE (Continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Sale of goods

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for
the principal revenue stream of the Group.

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers or consumed by hospitals for direct sales to
hospitals, and there is no unfulfiled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been transferred to the
customer, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either the customer
has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE
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(a) #HEFR

EHAEREARERNEFEE M
ERFNERL - MAKEEL IR
BEPUWEEHHE (BN ESE)

UTREAEETZRARRNG
AHERERAE AL -

REmMIZHIREEE (AEERR
NEEFPFRIEEMBERIHERE
Br - RBFOERR) AYEZERR
BRUWE M HRBITERE - #ER
HE - EEMCBBETER - A
REERRECBETEF  BEF
ERBHESORKE®D - B
XERM  AAKEEETERER
RAERKEESCERER - %
ERAT -
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REVENUE (Continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Sale of goods (Continued)

The products are often sold to major customers with
retrospective volume rebates based on aggregate sales
over a 12-month period. In addition, the Group has also
contracted with certain major customers for granting
them with the rights to claim for the Group’s delivery of
additional units of products (capped at a pre-determined
ratio to the customer’s purchases of the Group’s
products over a 12-month period) under certain pre-
agreed circumstances which are irrelevant to the quality
and functionality of the Group’s products (the “claims for
additional units”). Revenue from these sales is recognised
based on the price specified in the respective contracts,
net of the estimated volume rebates and the estimated
claims for additional units. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the discounts and claims,
using the expected value method, and revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur.

Revenue is recognised net of value-added taxes and
volume rebates and claims for additional units as
mentioned above (if applicable). Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

e BB HRRHEE

WA (&)
W A HER B BUR ()
(0) HEHR(E)

ZEEMBT A28 ARAE LR
HEREE REPHERMNET
TEEP o 4 AEBIFEAET
TERFPFIN BTREFEETS
TEHENBATERANEE R
ShEm(ERBEFPRV12E A HHE
NFFBEEASBEEMNBELX)
MR > MAwmASEERNEE
KIpgemnfa] ([BINEmBR]) - &%
FHEMBRARSBEARKREDN
B1% - HRMEET I ERF & A58
ShEMBREER - ERERNE
B RBEHGEERGITIMRER
W EFHREE - BIRAEERA
ETEAEXNEDMNIBR NER -

WARHRBER - Lt &R F
REINEmBREER (WER) -
WAZ B WS WS B2 R EE

HE o

FEWRIA R A an R A B (BN S
BRI SRR) R - TR
RERRRHER D HEN
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of cost of sales, distribution expenses, general
and administrative expenses and research and development

expense are as follows:

Employee benefit expense (Note 8)

Changes in inventories of finished goods

and work in progress

Raw materials and consumables used for

— products production
— research and development

Products testing, pre-clinical trial and
animals studies fees
Depreciation of

— property, plant and equipment
(Note 14)

— right-of-use assets (Note 15)

— investment properties (Note 16)

Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 18)
Marketing and consulting service fees
Professional service fees
Utilities and office expenses
Travelling expenses
Taxes and surcharges
Transportation costs
Listing expenses
Auditor’s remuneration:
— audit services
— non-audit services
Others

Total

1B BIEFIBIZ (Fi3E8)
B RAE G 7 H B

PiT R R B4 B RS

—EmEE
— 3

EmilE - BARIHSR K
YR ER
Y EETE
— W - BB &kEE
(FtzE14)
—FAEEE (ME15)
— &Y (fizE16)

‘i EESHE (ME18)

L iH R i RS &
BXRBKE
NGEE I E VNGRS
ERFEX
B K e
B
EWmRAX
A% 85 B 57 B

— ZER

— FRBURTS
Hitp

aFt

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

BEEHSHMAXZ

HEMA - LHAX ~ —MRRITH
B KRB BT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
76,480 70,451
(8,671) (8,149)
23,279 16,236
13,970 15,453
37,249 31,689
15,963 10,250
4,701 3,416
2,430 2,853
646 1,070
7,777 7,339
7,925 7,530
18,282 14,432
9,196 225
4,437 4,957
5,464 3,952
5,214 3,297
3,676 1,541
- 20,438
2,600 2,400
113 120
5,906 3,733
191,611 174,205
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB HRRHEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8 ERBAMAX

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Wages, salaries and bonuses TITE - Fe LA 56,112 49,908
Social security costs and housing  #HEREZRBMEEEF
benefits 13,155 11,240
Other employee welfares H e BEF 797 517
Share-based payment expenses LAR% 3 AERB A TR A X 30,615 24,352
100,679 86,017
Less: amounts capitalised B BN AREREENTR
as intangible assets (24,199) (15,566)
Amount charged to profit or loss BEEEHRNESEE 76,480 70,451

Representing amounts charged to: B N &EMRH S ¢

— cost of sales — PHER AN 10,856 9,217
— distribution expenses — RS 22,029 19,579
— general and administrative — —BRITBAX

expenses 23,907 21,802
- research and development — B

expenses 19,688 19,853

76,480 70,451
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 8

(@) The employees of the Group in the PRC have (a)
participated in state-managed pension scheme
operated by the PRC Government. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs as determined by local government authority to
the pension obligations to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contribution
under the scheme. No forfeited contributions were
available to the Group for reducing its contributions to
the abovementioned scheme for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group include 1 (2022: 2) director for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The emoluments
payable to the remaining 4 (2022: 3) highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2023 are

as below:

Wages, salaries and bonuses

Social security costs and housing
benefits

Share-based payments

& RFEFIBASZ (4&)

REABOLLBMEZS

BAHER -
(b) HERSHFMAL

B 22023%F12 A31H

B% - §£2023F12A

B AEBREZSH
+BIE1Z (202245 : 24)

AEERFTENEEAE2HE
TERFEFNBEREEEZ
TrtE c AREFERRIMT
BNBERENFTSERD

p= 1l

HREMNREHRES - ~AEEAR
REEFIFTEI 7 B ME—RTEE
BRZTESMRTEENE
o BlE220283F K20224 12
AB1HIEFE  AEBEWESR
W SR I8 AT R > E ) _E sl 5 2

s
A

31 H

IEFE - EREHK4L4%E (2022

F3R)REHMALSH

T

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBEFIT

TE& - Fre R 2,800 2,307
HEREZBAMNEEET

491 421

LARS (7 & E R B 5 53X 3,759 2,681

7,050 5,409
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the non-director highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
HK$1,000,000 - HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000

AR B (LB ITTET)
1,000,000/ T2
1,500,000 7T
1,500,001 8 T2
2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 /&L E
2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 &L E
3,000,000 ¢
3,000,001 8=
3,500,000 ¢
3,500,001 Tc=
4,000,000/ 7T

NET (REVERSAL)/PROVISION FOR
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL

ASSETS

Net (reversal)/provision for loss
allowances on:
— trade receivables
— other receivables

UTNBRENEBERERS
(BEE),/ BEFE
— B RE0R
— B AR

8

e BB HRRHEE

& REFIBASL (48)
(b) EBRBREHMAL ()

HEFESFTIMATOFHIR
BT -

Number of individuals
AE
Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022

2023 20224

2 —

1 1

- 2

1 —
eMEERERE (%E)

1% 0 7B 4R

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MBLELEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
(6,001) 5,676

20 51

(5,981) 5,727
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

B BHRRHE

10 OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES - NET

Investment income on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Government grants

Testing and processing service income
Commission income from related party
Rental income from investment

properties (Note 16)
Others

Other income

Fair value losses on financial assets at

FVPL

Net loss on write-off of property, plant

and equipment

Net foreign exchange losses (note)

Others

Other losses — net

Other income and losses - net

NAREEFEBEES
STAESESNEMEE
HIIEE A

BT ED

S5 K2 00 T AR AU A

RE SRS A

REREMENHES WA
(HfzE16)

EAh

H U A

NAAEESEBRE
A EIIE 2002 A B
RABERR

Mm% - BERRBEE
BB

SN I8 %3 (W)

it

Hip B8 — 388

Httlg ARG — B8

10 HttrAREIR — 28

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HILFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBETIT
10,762 10,395
12,403 4,767

- 1,019

- 746

679 530

614 42
24,458 17,499

- (4,928)

- (1)

(5,888) (82,279)
(154) 245
(6,042) (86,963)
18,416 (69,464)
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10 OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES - NET

(Continued)
Notes:

(a) The government grants are mainly subsidies received from
local authorities in consideration of encouragement of the
Group’s investments in research and development activities,
the Group’s tax contribution, as well as a one-time subsidy
for the Company’s listing on the HKEX, etc.

(b)  The net foreign exchange losses as recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2022 primarily comprise of
the exchange losses from the retranslation of the USD-
denominated redemption liabilities up to the date of
derecognition (i.e. the listing date of the Company on 8
November 2022) of approximately RMB76,377,000.

Accounting policy of government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received, and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

e BB HRRHEE

10 Hftlg A RER — 98 (&)

Wi

() BNHBEZZRENEALELE
MEEF LHIRE - AEENOTH
BERNARRIET B HH LT
—REMBEFRE - B EHERFIR
HREFHRh o

(b) AEHZE2022%12A31H ILFERHER
WEE R BIEFEEEREHERIE
ERAE (BIARAK20224 11
ASAM B ExBELE
TRHEMER & EEENINEESIE
#IANR¥76,377,0007T °

B #B Rt BR

WA A RRESSESHEAARNEE K
"HEmENHGRSE  ARARBERER
BT -

HERAFROBAEE T IGRL - I
A1 7% 55 17 B 82 EL AR B A AR HE 1T I IS
PR B NN R E P R -

BB AJE R BB (B (R BIBIE IS + IR
BREE B EHNE R A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

11

12

FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) - NET 11 MBBA (BF)- B8

Finance income:
Bank interest income

Finance costs:

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest expense on redemption
liabilities

Finance income/(costs) - net

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax charge:
— Current tax on profits for
the year
— Adjustments for the prior year
Deferred income tax credit/(debit)

Income tax expense

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBETIT
HBBEKA :
RITH B LA 14,816 5,665
MBS :
HEEENFERX (204) (288)
EREENF SR
- (18,683)
(204) (18,971)
BEBA A (BE)— B8 14,612 (13,306)

12 FRSIRBAX

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
BUEAFR SR Z i -

— F AR B IE
18,844 11,791
— ERIFEHARE 594 =
RIEFTSRIE S /() 2,324 (7,010)
PRSI 21,762 4,781
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy is qualified as a “High
and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”)” under the
relevant PRC laws and regulations on 23 October 2017
(such qualification renewed on 18 November 2020
and 12 December 2023). Accordingly, it is entitled to
a preferential income tax rate of 15% on its estimated
assessable profits for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022. Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy is subject to the
requirement for re-applying for the renewal of this HNTEs
status every three years.

According to the relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the State Administration of Taxation of
the PRC that has been effective from 2021 onwards,
enterprise engaging in research and development
activities are entitled to claim 200% of their research
and development expenses incurred as tax deductible
expenses when determining their assessable profits for
that year (the “super deduction”).

e BB HRRHEE

12 FARRFAX (18)

R2017%F10 238  {RIEHABEHEH
EEEE  EEERREEESME
HelaTEmeE] B (ZER
R2020511 A 18 H % 2023512 A
12848) - At - EFEGEEES
20234 K 2022F 12 A1 HIEFE
RETERBRAEZEZ15%MESR
HE - EBERLBEEEMBASE
—FEHBaNMETEESHE
Hy o

RIEFBEBRHEGEABEM - LB
2021 FEE EITHRBARER
REMBEINEXRNETHAH
FENERGMNBE - AEBEGH
HES MR X M200%E R A H
BiFAT ([ANETFAER])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(@) Reconciliation of income tax expense
A reconciliation of the expected income tax

calculated at the applicable tax rate and profit/(loss)
before income tax, with the actual income tax is as

12 FARRAX (18)
Fris B X AR
BERBR R EOTAM ST &P

SERAFE,(BE) BERAEH
BRI ¢

follows:

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Tax calculated at the PRC
statutory tax rate (25%)
Tax effect of:
Preferential tax rate
Expenses not deductible for
tax purpose
Super deduction for research
and development expenses
Adjustments for current tax of
the prior year

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
FriSFipiFIE  (E518) 173,294 (15,032)
LA BY)% RE 7 2 (25%)
FrERTRIE 43,323 (3,758)
AR B IEMBHE T E
BEH = (17,003) (10,374)
AR
3,629 27,128
T2 R 2 B0 ANETF0BR
(8,781) (8,215)
¥ E—FERAAFEN A
594 =
21,762 4,781




13 EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE 13

(@)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basic earnings/(losses) per share

(@)

Basic earnings/(losses) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during each year.

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners
of the Company for the years

(RMB’000)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (in
thousands)

FARRBHE AEIE
B (E1R)
(AR®T7T)

EET AR IR T 8
(AT

Basic earnings/(losses) per share (in ERXEARZF] /(E1E)

RMB per share)

(BRARKITT)

Movement in the number of fully paid ordinary shares
outstanding for the reported periods are shown in

Note 27.

Diluted earnings/(losses) per share

(b)

Diluted earnings/(losses) per share is the same as
basic earnings/(losses) per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

e BB HRRHEE

sEET (H\8)

SREXRF (FHE)

SREXAN /(FR) RE
FRARTES AT,
(B518) B LA R 397 EmAR I
FHBEE -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
151,532 (19,813)
346,750 327,556
0.44 (0.06)

BEHABTHEINNCHEE
B H A B ) B EE27 -

SREFRR (BHE)

R E 2= 20234F K 20224F12
A318 L FEIEBEE T
BEETEal ALSREER
(&) BEREARF
(E18) R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 Y%  BERBRR

Electronic
Buildings  equipment  Machinery Vehicles Others Total
S R B B§ ¢ fit
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRT  AR®Tn ARETR ARETn  AR%TRn  ARET:R
At 1 January 2022 R2020%151R
Cost B 69,716 2,141 28,083 2,33 2,462 104,736
Accumulated depreciation 2ihE (14,344) (1,341) (10,434) (1,070) (1,286) (28,475)
Net book amount FEFE 55,372 800 17,649 1,264 1,176 76,261
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2020512R31 HLEE
Opening net book amount HNEnEE 55,372 800 17,649 1,264 1176 76,261
Addtions AE 1,714 o7 19,638 - 211 21,660
Write-off ik - ) - - - 1)
Transfer upon construction completed 7 T/4E& 302 - - - (302) -
Depreciation charge nERx (1,953 (297) 2,302) (268) (122) (4,942)
Closing net book amount EXRESE 56,435 599 34,985 996 963 92978
At 31 December 2022 R2022%£12B318
Cost i 71,732 2,237 47,721 2,334 2371 126,395
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (16,207) (1,638) (12,736) (1,338) (1,408) (33,417)
Net book amount FEFE 55,435 599 34,985 996 963 92978
Year ended 31 December 2023  #F2023% 1231 ALER
Opening net book amount ENRRTE 55,435 599 34,985 996 963 92,078
Additions RE - 133 5,032 - 606 5,11
Net transfer from investment ERERENESR
properties (Notes a and 16) (Fzak16) 15,581 - - - - 15,581
Depreciation charge nERR (2,505) (205) (4,063) (228) (203) (7,384)
Closing net book amount EXBEBE 68,421 437 35,054 768 1,366 106,046
At 31 December 2023 #2023 12318
Cost A 87,313 2,310 52,753 2,334 2,077 147,147
Accumulated depreciation ZitiTE (18,892) (1,033) (16,799) (1,566) (1,611) (40,801)
Net book amount BESE 68,421 437 35,954 768 1,366 106,046
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Due to the change in the usage of a previously leased out
property to become a self-occupied property in February
2023, the Group has then transferred the property
with carrying amount of RMB15,581,000 from Group’s
investment properties to property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods and useful lives

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

e Buildings
g5
e Electronic equipment
BTRHE
e Machinery
Mz
e \ehicles
]
e Others
Hth

See Note 40.5 for the other accounting policies relevant to
property, plant and equipment.

e BRRME

14 9% - BB R (1§)

Wi

(a)

MR ERHEEYEH A ER2023
F2ANBRERYE  AEESE
ZHMERAEENREYERET
BEARK15,581,000TEREY

PrETER AR A

FERATEE A ERFHANAE
BORRE Ao BREKA (kRE
FIREE) -

25 — 40 years
25F 404F

3 years

34

5 - 10 years
5E104F

3 - 12 years
3E12%F

3 - 10 years
3E10%F

BREMEYE  BELRERM

MERTER -

E2HIMIEE40.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 V¥ - BERSW (&)
(Continued)
(c) Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment charged (c) EEmRNYME - BE K&
to profit and loss and the amounts of depreciation being BIHERERNMLTESE S
capitalised are analysed as follows: AR :

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Depreciation for the year FAFE 7,384 4,942
Less: amounts capitalised as B BERNMERERNEEN SR
intangible assets (2,683) (1,526)

Amount charged to profit or loss B8z AI& 58 (FFE7)
(Note 7) 4,701 3,416

Representing amounts charged B A RN Z BRI S ¢

to:
— cost of sales — SHER A 1,595 1,461
— distribution expenses — RESER S 73 68
— general and administrative ~ — —RRMITEH X
expenses 975 973
— research and development  — A3
expenses 2,058 914
4,701 3,416
15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15 EHERE
(a) Right-of-use assets recognised in the (a) REEEESEBXRABERMNME
consolidated balance sheets: FAEEE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT
Right-of-use-assets REEE

— Leased buildings —HERgF 3,081 4,563




15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(@)
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Right-of-use assets recognised in the (a)
consolidated balance sheets: (Continued)

Movements in right-of-use assets are as below:

At 1 January 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

®2022%F1A1H
PRA
Rt e

IRES{E

#HE2022F12A31BILFE
FYIREFE

NE

EMXZ

ERIFEFE
720225128 31H
RS

25T E

RSB E

i FE2023FE12A31HILEE
FYIRMFE

NE

ERX
ERIRERE
#2023%F12A31H
AR

25t E

IR R E

e BB HRRHEE

15 EHEHEE (])

REEEERBERABRNGE
REEE (&)

EREEENZEZOT

Leased
buildings
HEBEF
RMB’000
AR¥T T

8,452
(1,689)

6,763

6,763
653
(2,853)

4,563

9,105
(4,542)

4,563

4,563
948
(2,430)

3,081

10,053
(6,972)

3,081
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e M HRRHE

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated

balance sheets:

Lease liabilities — current
Lease liabilities — non-current

HERE - IS
HERE — FFRH

Amounts recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use

assets (Note 7)

Interest expense (Note 11)

EREEEMTERX

(BI5E7)
FERZ (FFE11)

15 {EHESE (§)

(b) REEEERBERABINA

E8E
As at 31 December
MW12H31R
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
1,341 1,791
1,099 1,544
2,440 3,335

(c) REZHEINESHEWMT :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831BILEE

2023
20234
RMB’000
AR®FT

2,430
204

2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFIT

2,853
288
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(d)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various warehouses, staff
dormitories and areas for its research and
development activities in the PRC as leasee. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
2-5 years without extension option or residual
value guarantee. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

See Note 40.21 for the other accounting policies
relevant to leases as leasee.

e BB HRRHEE

15 {FHESE (§)

(d)

FEENEEEFBREARS
=

RNEBYEAATANRFTREES
EfEAE  BIFEaMEE
SEBGAT c MEASRBEHITE
2ESFHE TEHR - AEIEHE
EESFGEBEER - HERK
FRBERIE R B EEE - B
ESEENRM GG -
EpZE T mNERZEE - 8
HEEETSAREIUER -

HERHEEEER HAKEE
RZEERREREEERE
HRE - SEHEEMNRGERN
TEP AR ZEDE © B
RARBERA B B Mk -
RetE RS R aEE#RNE
TRMANE - FREEENRE
E 2 B F R AB KRR
B HEBNBEARANE -

EBEHEAAETHEMbET
HER - 524021 »
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e M B|RME

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 January 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book value
Depreciation charge (Note 7)

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2023

Opening net book value

Net transfer to property, plant and
equipment (Note 14)

Depreciation charge (Note 7)

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

16 BEME

#2022%F1H1H
PRA

Rt s
IR R E

#HE2022F12A31HILFE
FHEREFE

WERZ (MH:E7)
FRIFERE

12022128 31H
B 7N

25 E

RSB E

BE2023F12A31HILEE
FHREFE

BREYE - BFE LR ERNFE (ME14)
WER> (7))

FXRIEEFE

#2023 12A31H
PXAN
et &

IR R {E

Buildings
BF
RMB’000
AR¥TR

45,081
(5,528)

39,553

39,553
(1,070)

38,483

45,081
(6,598)

38,483

38,483

(15,581)
(646)

22,256

27,159
(4,903)

22,256
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e BB HRRHEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16 HEYE (])

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives of 30-40
years.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair values of
the investment properties of the Group as determined
by an independent professional valuation firm amounted
to approximately RMB26,953,000 and RMB44,663,000,
respectively.

The amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment
properties are as follows:

Rental income (Note 10) AL WA (FfzE10)

Direct operating expenses from EAHSIWARNYED
properties that generated rental HELERT
income

Depreciation of investment properties for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 have all been charged to
“general and administrative expenses”.

"EMER ERE (A F B FH
0EA0FENEREBN AR EE
FIREENRFE -

MR2023F %2022 12 A31H -
BYBEFGEEARETHAEER
BEMENRAEBEIS OB ARE
26,953,000t & A R# 44,663,000
5T o

HIREMEEBRTPERNSEN
T

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®TT

679 530
(646) (1,070)
B 2 2023F K 20224 12 A 31

HIEFE  REVENFER
BEA—HRRITHRAX]IM
’3/%0
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16

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable quarterly. There are
no variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties are as follows:

Within 1 year 1FR
Between 1 and 2 years 15824
Between 2 and 3 years 2FE3F

16

REMR (&)
REME¥BEELAORETH

FESEEEE - B KEE
B 22 0 ) TR A3 -

MIEEWERHEWRNREEE N
RuR

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

573 573
146 573
- 146

719 1,292
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17 GOODWILL

Goodwill on acquisition of Shanghai
Shape Memory Alloy EOESES

Lepu Medical acquired 100% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy in October 2008 from an
independent third party. The goodwill of approximately
RMB48,282,000 as recognised represents the excess of
the purchase consideration over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired, which is attributable to the
core technology and synergy effects expected from the
Occluder Business of Shanghai Shape Memory Alloy.

For the purpose of impairment review for goodwill
and intangible assets not subject to amortisation (i.e.
capitalised development costs in Note 18 refers) which
are attributable to the CGU of Occluder Business, the
recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated terminal growth rates stated below.

Wis tEREIRa M H

e BB HRRHEE

17 &

As at 31 December
®12A31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT AREET T
48,282 48,282

BB 200810 AR — BB
F=HWE EESERIIES MR
100% BIPEARHERS - DHERHNHAR
#48,282,000 Tt E AEEHE
BEEBWREATZNFEENALE
BRI - TIERR ESFEMRLIE
BEMENZ LN REHA LE
FERELEEEME T ERELES
B 173 [F] S5 FE o

RHFEBNHEREBREELE
R E R ETE N BT EER
BEEE (M E 18R K& AL
BREX)  ReELBMMAEKSE
BORBEREEHEEE - 25
AERAEREREERENTFH
MBBRENRARSRETRR - B
BRAFHNRSREER N A
MR R EEITHS -
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e

17

B B R AR Y

GOODWILL (Continued)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are as follows:

Gross
profit margin

Ef=®

1202312 A31H
202212 A31H

As at 31 December 2023
As at 31 December 2022

84.65%-87.95%
86.18%-87.91%

The growth rate for the first 5 years and budgeted gross
profit margin were determined by the management based
on past performance and its expectation for market and
product development. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects market assessments of the time value and the
specific risks relating to the industry.

The result of the impairment testing reveals that the
estimated recoverable amount of the CGU of Occluder
Business far exceeded its carrying amount as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The directors of the Company have not identified that a
reasonable possible change in any of the key assumptions
that could cause the carrying amount of goodwill and
intangible assets not subject to amortisation (attributable
to the CGU of Occluder Business) to exceed their
recoverable amounts. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company have concluded that no provision for impairment
is required to be recognised as of the respective balance
sheet dates.

17 ™2 (48)

£ R EEEE AT A 8 B R & 40
T
Growth rate Terminal Pre-tax
of revenue  growth rate discount rate
BARRE BinARE RamRE
2.78%-4.67% 0.00% 15.49%
2.34%-5.77% 0.00% 15.42%

BEEAFHNERENBEEMNR
F %i‘@*ﬁ?ﬁiﬂ&%iﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%
RERBRNBHET - FBHTR
ROBAFTERE &H%;TH«;F?LTE
R E1T B B R R E B R 1 T 5 RT
fili o

R2023F K 2022F12 A31 8 » &
BEARNERBERTERESHR
SEEBMAGEAIKRE S ERB
HEEEE -

ARREFHABRATEHFEBER
HESEGRSELAEVUNBER
BERBEHNBLEENREAERR
ETW@iﬁmEﬂﬁﬁF“mA

MRS - Hit  ARBEFR
ﬁ BEREERBROYEAR
RRERE -
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e BB HRRHEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2022
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book value

Costs for internal development
Additions

Transfer (note)

Amortisation charge

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

R2022%181H
KA
KatEH

IRESE

BE2022F12A31ALFE
FREFE

AEIEEE

NE

LN

BHER

FERIREBE
R2022%£12A31H
5%

REHEE

BERE

18 | EE

Patents and Purchased Development
licences software costs Total
BRIk EBEMET HER% At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TRT ARETR
50,762 127 92,025 142,914
(6,297) (60) - (6,357)
44,465 67 92,025 136,557
44,465 67 92,025 136,557
- - 69,107 69,107
6,042 452 - 6,494
16,734 - (16,734) -
(7,496) (54) - (7,550)
59,745 465 144,398 204,608
73,538 579 144,398 218,515
(13,793) (114) - (13,907)
59,745 465 144,398 204,608
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 | EE ()
Patents and Purchased Development
licences software costs Total
BHRFT CHRENKRHE MBERX L
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTRE AER%WTR ARWTRE ARWTRE
Year ended 31 December 2023  #E2023F12A31 ALK
Opening net book value FNEREFE 59,745 465 144,398 204,608
Costs for internal development WS - - 82,007 82,007
Additions NE 3,000 116 - 3,116
Transfer (note) BA (M) 22,308 - (22,308) -
Amortisation charge EHER (7,916) (84) - (8,000)
Closing net book value FXEEPE 77,137 497 204,097 281,731
At 31 December 2023 "2023%12A31H
Cost XA 98,846 695 204,097 303,638
Accumulated amortisation G it (21,709) (198) - (21,907)
Net book value BEBE 77,137 497 204,097 281,731
Note: BdaE -

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Shanghai Shape
Memory Alloy obtained one (2022: one) Medical Device
Registration Certificate related to new occluder products. The
carrying amount of the related development costs as previously
capitalised were therefore transferred to patents and licences with
amortisation commenced then accordingly.

The Group’s development costs represented capitalised
development expenditures which are not subject to amortisation
during the development stage but are subject to an annual
impairment testing.

B ZE2023F 12831 HIEFE - LK
R E A M HERS I8 (2022F : —
TR ) B 3 2% A AR B A B R AR A 1T
F B ERTE AR R X
MRREEE R EEH LA B QA
i o

AEENAERAIEDEACHE
B EREZEREFTEE A
BRI —RFEREH
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Amortisation methods and periods

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs over their estimated
useful lives. (representing the remaining lives of
the registered patent period and licenses period
as approved by administrative authorities or the
period after considering the expected administrative
extension of the related licenses) from the point
at which the asset is ready for use. The Group
amortises intangible assets with definite useful lives
by using the straight-line method as follows:

Patents and licences
BRI R A
Purchased software

BAREF

See Note 40.7 for the other accounting policies
relevant to intangible assets.

Capitalised product development costs

Research and development cost comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research
and development activities (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved high end medical
instruments) or that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to such activities. Research and development
costs are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the medical
instruments so that it will be available for use or
sale;

e BB HRRHEE

18 |ELHE (])

(@)

(b)

B¥EHERHE

BEERERATE  UKE
MREFFAIHRADEERZE
EREET A A FH (BT
HERAHL A B 2 S E A B B
Ko 5 AI 3 B 2 ) R R HARR 2%
A& Z BARRART A FE TR AT 1T UL
HHHR) - AKBEERER
EFLE A AR A E A F HR &

TEBEETHENT -
3 - 10 years
3-104F
10 years

104

EREMEETEEARNSG
TR - B2 EIMIEE40.7 ©

BEXCERABREAX

MERAXBEMEEERAR
W EE (R BENS
i 8 B 28 W RO ARG MBI S A
) XAREDETZELD
BB © BR R DA T MRIFES
MBS EER BB EE

s EXEBESRWMAHRER
2 SR ERITT
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

Capitalised product development costs
(Continued)

e management intends to complete the medical
instruments and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the medical
instruments;

o it can be demonstrated how the medical
instruments will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e  adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and the ability to
use or sell the medical instruments are available;
and

e the expenditure attributable to the medical
instruments during its development phase can
be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
the criteria are charged to expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

(b)

18 |EHE (])

EXtERMEFES ()

e FTHEEFSETHKEES
T 0 {5 B Bk B S
o

=]

B

s BEENERAAHEBE
2R

s BEENERKBEIZMAS
40 fa] B 4 A BE B R R4S

AR

s BERMWEM - FBM
HiBERF - AT
ZEEEWMARE - A
B WERA L EZLE
B K

s EBEREISWMAZHEEN
FIXBEFI SERTE °

H & %FRITHFER
XRELR BRI ° ZH
FERR A B S RO T 28 B SC MR 1R
BHMERREE



Annual Report 2023
—EC=FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

Capitalised product development costs
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, part of the
eligible development costs attributable to the CGUs
of Heart Valve Business and Occluder Business are
as follows:

Occluder Business HIERETS
Heart Valve Business 1D B e 2 75

Development costs which are attributable to the CGU
of Occluder Business not subject to amortisation
are tested for impairment together with goodwill, the
result of which have been set out in Note 17.

Development costs which are attributable to the CGU
of Heart Valve Business not subject to amortisation
are tested for impairment on an annual basis at 31
December for each year, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired in accordance with International
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
The recoverable amount is determined based on fair
value less cost of disposal.

e BB HRRHEE

18 |ELHE (])

EXtERMEFEX ()

B E20234F ;2022412 A 31
BIEEE - OB R 5 75 & =t
BREBHNRESELEBMANE
DA BRI AT

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
90,125 60,263
113,972 84,135
204,097 144,398

FERNODREEREGNRS
ELEUNMER BEAE
55 - YR EEITRER A
HERCD N7 -

FERUERREEENRSE
A B AT 35 B S AR R G
WRAEBFI12A31 BETEE
BERIE « B IB R E
E)REFAIRE L IRBER © BIR
BB ERD)FE365 [ &
EREIFHEARAR - &
A SABE R &S B AEE 7E /]
U o] & 58 -
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

Capitalised product development costs
(Continued)

The management has involved an independent
qualified valuer to perform impairment assessment
to assess the fair value less cost of disposal of the
development costs which are attributable to the
CGU of Heart Valve Business as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 by using the discounted cash
flow approach. For the discounted cash flows, the
estimated revenue was based on the management’s
expected timing of the product candidates’
commercialisation, productivity and sales volume.
Management estimated the product candidates’
sales volume based on market conditions and the
state of technology development. Management
then adjusted the estimated revenue to profit
contributed from the development costs which are
attributable to the CGU of Heart Valve Business by
considering a percentage of costs and operating
expenses to the revenue (“cost component ratio”),
which was determined by reference to the current
operating margin levels of comparable companies,
with adjustments made based on management’s
industry experience as well as the research and
development plans. Finally, management estimated
the discount rate based on the uncertain success
rate of commercialisation for the applicable product
candidates.

18 |EHE (])

(b)

EXtERMEFES ()

EEEELZE—EZBIUAER
HERETRER S - BT
REEREEZHN2023F Kk
2022F12 A31 HRBE N LB
MRS IR S EE BN
F S A e EER & A AR i
TEHE - HRITBRRESRE -
EEHIR A T E R B 12 [ B fE i
EmmECNERE - EEME
ENEF c EEEREBEMSE
LR AT B AR, (R E ST
EmREE R EREER
BE BN R AR SR A
MBS (TR )
B EET WA B E R B O
MRS IR S EE BN AT
FAXERMFE BB
Th2Z 0]t A B E B R & & Fl
HEKEETE  WIREEEE
B1T LB AR 3 5t B 1T
BoRE  BEERBEIET
B 3 A 7R i 2= i 3R b A DD K
HETITIRE -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Capitalised product development costs
(Continued)

Considering the development stage and expected
market conditions, management expected that the
first commercialisation year of related heart valve
product candidates will be in 2025. Based on the
related heart valve product candidates’ life cycle and
industry practice, the management expected that the
estimated useful life of related heart valve products
is at least 10 years. The cash flow projections for
the first five years from 2026 to 2030 are based on
financial budgets prepared by management based
on market conditions. The cash flow projections
for the subsequent years from 2031 to 2035 are
extrapolated based on the forecasts using a steady
growth rate of revenue of 2%, which does not
exceed the long term industry growth forecast
for the market in which the Group operates. The
key assumptions used in the fair value less cost
of disposal calculation for the CGU of Heart Valve
Business are as follows:

e BB HRRHEE

18 |ELHE (])

(b)

EXtERMEFEX ()

B8 A 7 2 PR BR & TR B T 45 K
S BT TR 5T AR B O R R IR
EMERNEERELFEES
£2025% o EAFHRD /L TR
EMERMERBIMITEE
Bl - E IR E B F AR B8 0 B AR
EmmEE A ERATEHELR
104 - AR FH (2026F %
20304 ) MR e ME TR THE
RE R B R R 5k 0 s 2
M ISTEE - BEFE (2031
FE2035F) WRE METEA
ThEAE 2%/ 3T U A 5
EEMTBRHESL  ZER
ETNHRBAEBEEMEMS
MREITEERETEE - 5T &L
R B RSEEBMNAD
7 BB 6 A AN B {58 F 9 3
BREZROT

Growth rate of revenue

BARRE
Cost
Gross profit component Post-tax
margin 2026-2030 2031-2035 ratio  discount rate
2026 F 20315 E

EH=E 2030 2035F  RFHAEL RERRE

As at 31 December 2023 720231231 H 70%-85%  23.4%-198.9% 2% 54.3%-68.1% 17.5%
As at 31 December 2022 72022612 A31H 70%-85%  24.4%-188.4% 2% 54.3%-68.3% 17.9%
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18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

Capitalised product development costs
(Continued)

Based on the result of impairment assessment, the
recoverable amount of the CGU of the Heart Valve
Business is estimated to be exceeded its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the Heart
Valve Business would equal its carrying amount,
if each of the key assumptions were to change as
follows, with all other variables held constant, and
the management believe that the key assumptions
would not likely to change as follows:

Gross profit margin EFE

Growth rate of revenue g A3 & &
Cost component ratio B ANTE K EE
Post-tax discount rate Fi1g3rIe =

The directors of the Company have not identified
that a reasonable possible change in any of the key
assumptions that could cause the carrying amount
of CGU of the Heart Valve Business to exceed its
recoverable amount. The directors of the Company
have concluded that no provision for impairment of
the CGU of Heart Valve Business is required to be
recognised as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

18 |EHE (])

(b)

EXtERMEFES ()

BIERENGER - OEEE
¥BBeEABMN A KE S
B FH B EER20283F K&
2022412 A31 HHBRMEE -

HESRBARBRBELEUNTE
B -MmABEMEERTT
2 RALDREREXSREES
B k@meBEEERER
E{E - &R ERAERRE

RARA LT &
Changes in percentage point
#{BEDL
2023 2022
2023% 2022 F
-7.49 -5.44
-6.33 -4.52
+5.62 +4.08
+2.84 +1.79

RAFESE W ARZERATEBL
PR IR EA BARE
BB H AT Y B & B8 A9 (A B8
BRERNESEAEES - AQ
RIESERA - BEARERNR2023
FK2022F12 A31 B0
MIREGIR G EEBMARE
B -
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18

(c) Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged
to profit or loss or capitalised as follows:

Amortisation for the year FREE
Less: amounts capitalised as W BN SRS
development costs

Amount charged to profit or loss (note 7) BEzEiNBHIEL5E (KieE7)

Representing amounts charged to: BATZIBHIRH S
— cost of sales — HEKAR
- general and administrative expenses ~ — — R RITEFX
- research and development expenses  — W32

EEE (|)
(c) EFEEEMNHEHEE B=R
HERMEAT ¢
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TR AREF T
8,000 7,550
(75) (20)
7,925 7,530
7,447 6,853
77 52
401 625
7,925 7,530
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Assets as per consolidated
balance sheets
Financial assets at amortised cost
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— long-term bank deposits
— short-term bank deposits
— cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at FVPL

Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheets

19 BREHNBSHEMTR
AEEREUATERTA

As at 31 December

Financial liabilities at amortised cost A K AT EN SR EE

— trade and other payables
(excluding employee
benefits payables and other
tax payables)

— lease liabilities

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with
the financial instruments has been set out in Note 3. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each balance sheet
date is the carrying amount of each class of financial

assets as mentioned above.

MW12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
GeSEAREMTEE
SR AGTEN S MEE
— B SN EIE 32,683 30,615
— HEfib pE s IE 1,601 4,070
— RHRITIER 95,309 72,396
— RHIRIT IR 54,679 =
—RERREFEY 1,212,034 944,515
AAREBETEREEFH:A
EHETNEREE - 258,109
1,396,306 1,309,705
GeSEERRMTAER
— B 5 kEMbEMNFIE
(T"BEREEMNEERT &
H b & 49 FH 7R
28,767 21,667
—HE&aE 2,440 3,335
31,207 25,002

AEEHENESRTAEBNES
BREBRENHES - REEEARBR
RHNEAEERRAS AR RE
MEEMNKEE -
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 RIEFRBIR
The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), prior BEFTBHEE /(BF) RIEM
to any offset pursuant to net-off provisions, is as follows: BEEITEMKE ) 2T -

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Deferred income tax assets BLEMSTHEE
- to be recovered within 12 months — 1218 A AUk E 4,262 5,376
— to be recovered after 12 months — R 12{E A& Uk 9,457 10,889
13,719 16,265

Deferred income tax liabilities BLEMSHAE
- to be settled within 12 months — 12 A AEE (345) (535)
— to be settled after 12 months — 12 A&EE (117) (149)
(462) (684)
13,257 15,581
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when A Sk TE 0] o& Hl B 4T RE A B 4 B ER
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income FrTEMAEAEHEEHEAEREGEIK
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when i BERLEMER T RE—H
the deferred income tax related to the same tax authority. R - AISIEEMSHEESRA

EREEH -
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e M HRRHE

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balance

20 EBEFRFR (&)

HE2023F K%2022F12 A31H 1k
FE REMSHEERBENK
R (Rt KR —HIF e EE EE

within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: FEERHVIRSE) -
Deferred income tax assets EERBSHREE
Fair value
Allowances changes of
for Contract Tax finandial Lease
receivables liabilities losses assets liabilities Total
El SHEE
FERE  ANBE  WEFE AAEERE  HESE it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AERTL ARETR ARBTn AR%Tn ARETn ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 #2022%1R1H 1,271 1,133 5,662 - 929 9,685
Credited/(charged) to proft or loss A/ (R E) B 859 12 5,006 1281 (428) 6,680
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31A 2,130 1,745 10,658 1,231 501 16,265
As at 1 January 2023 R2023%1R1A 2,130 1,745 10,658 1,231 501 16,265
(Charged)/credited to proft or loss (MB8)/ AR (898) (278) () (1,231) (134) (2,546)
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12R31H 1,282 1,467 10,653 - 367 13,719
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEREHEs
Right-of-use
assets
FEREEE
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
As at 1 January 2022 ®2022%1A1H (1,014)
Credited to profit or loss FFAE= 330
As at 31 December 2022 720225128 31H (684)
As at 1 January 2023 202318 1H (684)
Credited to profit or loss FFAERE 222

As at 31 December 2023

#20235F12A31H

(462)
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21 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21 WRAREMERRER

As at 31 December

®W12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
Receivables due from related parties & UR B8 EE 5 2B (M 5E35(c))

(Note 35(c)) - 334
Deposits i 1,211 2,715
Staff advance BT#K 11 485
Receivables from sales on behalf of a R BKKREH 5 HER

related party FEMFRIA - 100
Others Efh 638 675

1,860 4,309
Less: provision for impairment of other & : i th & U 5k 18 ol (B B 5

receivables (259) (239)
Other receivables — net Hfb el sRI8 — FRE 1,601 4,070
Prepayment to related parties TE BB 75 538 (M #E35(c))

(Note 35(c)) 2,979 1,358
Prepayment for raw materials and R R R E AL TR 508

others 23,351 22,794
Prepayment for products testing and 2= & Bl5l M Ea IR A 5% &

clinical trial fee SN S 14,289 3,410
Prepayment for purchases of property, BEE%% - E &

plant and equipment RETE N A 533 3,156
Value-added tax recoverable A] U OB R 2,672 1,810
Others HAtb 1,360 4,705

45,184 37,233
Total prepayments and other TE S SR IR K H A e W R TR 4R R

receivables 46,785 41,303
Less: non-current portion o IEmENE S (533) (3,238)
Current portion mENE D 46,252 38,065

Note:

Other receivables due from related parties are denominated
in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

P& -

H il R UL BEESE 5 SRIE A A RMEGHE - &
B et BEEEEEDR -
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22 INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
inventories recognised in profit and loss amounted to
approximately RMB28,578,000 and RMB23,540,000,
respectively. These costs are charged to profit or loss as

follows:

Cost of inventories sold or
consumed charged to:
— cost of sales
— research and development
expenses

22 &R
As at 31 December
MW12H31R

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
=k 30,467 27,113
T2 17,679 12,880
LU am 21,277 17,405
69,423 57,398

B - AR FR

HE2023F K202246F12 A31H 1k
FE o REZPHE
ABANR¥28,578,0007T M AR
23,540,0007T ° ZEK AR Bz F

REFEDRIA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H831BILEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
BATSIEHRAE H &%
BEREBHFERAK :
— SHEK A 14,608 8,087
— MERX
13,970 15,453
28,578 23,540
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables from contracts
with customers
— third parties
— related parties (Note 35(c))

Less: allowance for impairment

The Group generally does not offer any official contractual
credit terms to its customers and will closely monitor the
settlement pattern of respective customers. For certain
individual customers with long-term relationship with the
Group and have good credit history in the past, the Group
may allow them to settle the related receivable balances
within a discretionary period ranging from 30 days to 180

days.

The aging analysis of the gross trade receivable as at 31
December 2023 and 2022, based on invoice date, are as

follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 year and 2 years
Over 2 years

23 HHEKRIA
As at 31 December
M®12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
EPAHNE S EWGRE
- = 37,532 43,540
— B8 5 (FizE35(c)) 3,114 1,039
40,646 44,579
B R B (7,963) (13,964)
32,683 30,615

BROMMT

AEBBEISRERFREEM
ERXEHEEHR @ WiEH e
BEREFRBEERN - HRBETFTEAR
CEEERHUFREBECEERER
FREREFE - A& B A8 A&
ERFEMNEEEMNS0HE180H

HAR) B AR R IR A B o

MR2023F K% 2022F12 31 HER
BEHHMNE SRR RIEBRTEN R

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT NER TS
1F R 36,317 25,944
1 =24 312 12,845
2F A E 4,017 5,790
40,646 44,579
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mEMBRRME

23

24

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables. Details of
the allowance for impairment and the movement in the
allowance balance has been set out in Note 3.1(b).

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
USD ETT
EUR BT

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Investment in wealth management  RERFLEE S HE1TH
product issued by a private fund BB E M

23 HEHEIKRIE (#)

AEEEBCBERYBHRELEN)E
SR BHE I AR EBEEEEE -
ZIDEHE S RWRAEERFES
BEHEREEG MERELBER
BRB R FIBENMIES.A(D) °

5 7 1 308 0 IR (B X T 9155
Bt -

As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBT T

34,145 39,898
6,266 4,547
235 134
40,646 44,579

24 DIARAETEHRESEH
ASHRSHERNEE

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTFIT

- 258,109
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

The carrying amount of the financial assets was a
reasonable approximation of their fair value due to the
short-term investment period and stable yield of the
underlying investments. The net realised and unrealised
fair value gains (comprising the net amounts of realised fair
value gains as investment income and unrealised fair value
losses) as recognised as “other income and losses — net”
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is RMB10,762,000
(2022: RMB5,467,000) (Note 10).

On 21 March 2023, the Group has redeemed its entire
investment in the wealth management product issued
by a private fund and the cash proceeds as received
amounted to approximately US$37.18 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB256 million).

Risk exposure and fair value measurements

Information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value has been set out in Note 3.3.

e BB HRRHEE

24 LARREMELRSEH
AERRRNEMEE (])

(i)

(ii)

REZPEIN TR

MR BRI E IR E B Rk
=EEBET eMEEMNERAEA
BENABEAEREL - HE
2023F12 A31 H IF FE R
Bl EMEARER — F5E ]
MEEFREKRERAABERK
=FE (BREAKERARN
BEERAABEKSFEMR
BERAARBEBEFE)NE
AR¥10,762,0007T (2022
F: AR¥5,467,0007T) (F
$10) °

R2023F3821H  A&EEBEE
ERHEAAAESBITHIEY
EmNEIHE  BERERS
R8N E4 A37.18E B =TT
(FEEROARB256 HETT) °

Rk O R A ABEGE

BEREEAABENTARR
RE)E R BT HIEES.3 -
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25 RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted bank balances

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted bank balances
were all denominated in RMB and represented restricted
bank deposit as a performance guarantee for testing and
processing service as provided by the Group to certain

25 ZREEFESL
As at 31 December
M®12H31R

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
SRR HIER T AR - 790

R2022F12 A31H » SBRFIEITLE
BHYUARBEE - BEIEALEE
M4 E R PR AR R & il TR
KB AR E R IR BRI T ©

customers.
26 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 26 BOTERLERAERBESF
EQUIVALENTS B
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Cash and cash equivalents: BeRREZEY
— Cash at bank and in hand — RITERRFER S 1,212,034 944,515
Cash and cash equivalents are HeRBCEEYUTY &
denominated in: sHE :
- RMB — AR% 1,090,683 552,955
- HKD — BT 48 307,628
- UusD =0 119,435 79,315
- EUR — BRIT 1,868 4,617
1,212,034 944 515
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26 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

e BRRME

26 BITERLIRREERBE®F
R (18)

As at 31 December

®W12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREET T
Short-term bank deposits: FEHASRITIF N ¢
— Short-term bank deposits with — ¥4 BAPR A 38 = {i A
initial term of over three months BIR—FH
but less than one year 5EHASRITIE K 54,679 -
Short-term bank deposits are D HASRI TR KA TR EHEEHE
denominated in:
- RMB — AR 10,157 -
- UsD — &7 44,522 -
54,679 -
Long-term bank deposits REBSRITIF HUA RO E M ETHE ¢
denominated in:
- RMB — AR 95,309 72,396
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Upon completion of the IPO on 8 November 2022, the Company
has issued 22,455,000 new shares at par value of RMB1.00 each
for the cash consideration of HKD29.15 per share. The total gross
proceeds from the IPO were approximately HKD654,563,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB601,629,000). The share
capital amount in connection with the IPO issue amounted to
approximately RMB22,455,000 and the share premium arising
from the IPO issue amounted to approximately RMB579,174,000.
The issuance costs paid mainly include share underwriting
commissions, lawyers’ fees, reporting accountant’s fee and other
related costs, which are incremental costs directly attributable
to the issuance of the new shares. These costs amounting to
RMB21,878,000 were treated as a deduction against the share
premium arising from the issuance of shares upon completion of
the IPO.

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 K&
Number of
ordinary  Nominal value Share
shares of shares capital
EERHE R EE [N
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T AR%BTR
Issued and fully paid ERTRBARE
As at 1 January 2022 #2022%1H1H 324,294,997 324,295 324,295
Issuance of ordinary shares upon EPSINGEE T
completion of the IPO (note) BITEER (PHEE) 22,455,000 22,455 22,455
As at 31 December 2022, #®2022%F12A31H »
1 January 2023 20235E1A1B R
and 31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H 346,749,997 346,750 346,750
Note: Mz :

R2022F11 ASHEME X AR
HER - AR R #1722,455,000
ISR EE A A RE1.00 AT
m ReWEESR29.158 T °
BEXAAHBEEMSHRERLRENSR
654,563,000 (HERBDAR
#¥601,629,0007T) ° EE XA
BEBRITHENBRASEOAEAR
#022,455,0007T ' B XA
ERTELENRODREBEOHAARE
579,174,000 ° B EB1TRAEE
PREBROBEHEAES  EZMER - =
REMEAMEMMERKA @ 2
Y EBTTROEEZEGNIEE
7R - AER#21,878,000 LH) A
B AR AE R B XA 3 T AR B 2%
TRt EE A WO AR 1 i (B R, ©
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28 TREASURY STOCK AND OTHER RESERVES 28 MH#FR% R Hfth Gl

Other reserves

Rttt

Capital

reserve-

share-

Treasury Share Capital based
stock premium  reserve payments Total

LN B

DRBA
EER  ROEE EARER ERNAR &3t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARBTT ARETR

(note a)

(Mzta)
As at 1 January 2022 1#2022%1R18 (671,507) 1,067,714 (486,630 22,257 593,341
Issuance of ordinary shares upon BRAREETKE

completion of the IPO (Note 27) BTERR (W27) - 579,174 - - 579,174
Share issuance costs (Note 27) R EATRR (Bizra7) - (21879 - - (21879
Derecognition of redemption liabiities B & (4% -2 (KizEb)

(Note b) 671,507 - 103,539 - 103,539
Share-based payments - deemed IR AERRAE - R

contribution from Lepu Medical BENLE (HE290)

(Note 29(a)) - - - 24,352 24,352
As at 31 December 2022 #2022 12A 318 - 1,615,010  (383,091) 46,609 1,278,528
As at 1 January 2023 1#2023%E1A18 - 1,615,010  (383,091) 46,609 1,278,528
Share-based payments - deemed R AERRMH — RIELE

contribution from Lepu Medical BENLE (HF29()

(Note 29(a) - - - 30615 30615
Impact of vested shares under the ESOP AR RIEEH G EITRERHNFE

of the Company - 17,216 - (17,216) -

As at 31 December 2023 1#2023F12A 31 - 1,632,226  (383,091) 60,008 1,309,143
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28 TREASURY STOCK AND OTHER RESERVES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Treasury stock was recorded to reflect the carrying amount
of the redemption liabilities when it was initially reclassified
from equity, and had been reversed when the Group’s
obligations in connection with those redemption liabilities
are reclassified back to equity. The redemption liabilities
and the treasury stock have been fully derecognised upon
the completion of the IPO.

(o)  The redemption liabilities were arisen from the share capital
of the Company with preferred rights as held by certain
pre-IPO investors. The Group recognised the redemption
liabilities as financial liabilities due to that all triggering
events of key preferred rights to the pre-IPO investors were
out of control of the Company and they did not meet the
definition of equity for the Company. With the completion
of the Company’s listing on the Main Board of HKEx on
8 November 2022 (the “IPO date”), the abovementioned
preferred rights granted to the pre-IPO investors
were lapsed. Accordingly, the redemption liabilities
of approximately RMB775,046,000 (after considering
the impact of the exchange losses as arisen from the
retranslation of the redemption liabilities up to the IPO date)
and the treasury stock of approximately RMB671,507,000
were derecognised and the difference of approximately
RMB103,539,000 was credited to the other reserves.

28 HE#ERRAEfGEME (&)

Wi

(a)

REFBREREREEHOE
B BEARARBREL &G
RBREE @ IR AEERZE
BRARENSETEROBARE
aRoHERE - -BEAEEN
EFREREXAREETK
BREBBRATER -

EoaERRALERAETE
RARBERREERFF MK
EEEENRE BRET
BRAHAEEMKREENTH
RELENAEBZESHE
EARQRMEGESEE - AF
ETFAARABHKRENTE
% BARAEEEERDSERE
RECHMEARE  BEAQR
R2022%F11 A8H ([HXRA
ABEEHH)EEBERSHM
FREMERK @+ ElIRTFEX
AABEMEEENELED
SR e A BOABHA
R#775,046,0007C (&5 &
BEBREEEE A AREER
HWED & EEAMNE LB
M 2%) REFRKRHARK
671,507,000 T4 (L FERR » 1M
ZREH ARE103,539,0007T
That AEAth i o
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 22 February 2021, Ningbo Jiadu Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Ningbo
Jiadu”) and Ningbo Jiacheng Enterprise Management
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Ningbo Jiacheng”)
(collectively referred to as the “Vehicles”) were
incorporated in the PRC under the Company Law of the
PRC as vehicles companies to hold the ordinary shares
of the Company for the employees under the ESOP.
Ningbo Jiadu was designated as ESOP platform of the
Group’s employees, and Ningbo Jiacheng was designated
as ESOP platform of the Lepu Medical's employees. As
the Group does not have power to govern the relevant
activities of the Vehicles nor having the repurchase or
settlement obligations to acquire any shares granted under
the ESOP, the directors of the Company consider that it is
appropriate not to consolidate the Vehicles.

In June 2021, Ningbo Jiadu (with the authorisation from
the Board of Directors of Lepu Medical) has granted
9,136,842 shares of the Company to 49 employees of the
Group (the “Grantees”) at a consideration of RMB3.48 per
share under the ESOP which are vested when Grantees
complete a contractual terms of services with the aim to
motivate the Grantees to continue serving the Group in
future. The Grantees’ interests in these granted shares are
held through their proportionate partnership interests in
Ningbo Jiadu as limited partners.

Pursuant to the limited partnership agreement of Ningbo
Jiadu, the employees with equity incentive are restricted
from selling, transferring or disposing of their respective
partnership interest for the first 12 months from the date
of the Company’s shares are listed on a recognised stock
exchange (the “listing date”). On the first trading day after
each of the first and second anniversary of the listing
date, 15% of the interest owned by each of the employees
with equity incentive will be vested and released. On the
first trading day after the third anniversary of the listing
date, the remaining 70% of the interest owned by each
of the employees with equity incentive will be vested and
released.

e BB HRRHEE

29 LR SERMMTR

MR2021F2H22H » ER=ELE
EEEBCE(ARER) [EEE
BEHREFEECEEEABLE
(BREE) ([EEE2]) (BEIA
7)) BRI A B A RE D) A B R
K - ERIBEEB BRI EIRE
EEFBEALQAILBEBRMAR - 2
BEEEETALAEBEENES
BREETE  REREEZEERE
RELREREENEBFREF
B HRASREEEREEZE AT
HAEEES - TEBLOSEERD
LB EREEESFREERLNME
Ak  ARREERAETBERE
ABRZELABHEE -

R2021F6 8 @ BREE (KL
EEESeRB)ERBEERRK
FEIA SR A RS, 48 T B ¥ B )
AEER49RES ([ERADET
9,136,842 R AN B + ZZE/RHD
REIR N EK RS B & 40185 &
5B BTENEEABRARKEE S
REB RS - FRARZER B
NANEZBAEIEABREEA

RE R ZERIZLL O & BERREE °

BREEEZENEREGEHE 8
ARBIBRGBEAREFRR BT E™
2B (T EmAM)BHE12@AR -
ZERRHEBHETIISEHE - &
BAEERESANERER -1
ETERE—RF_RAFZENG
ERXZH  SEZEREZBNE
ITAHBEREMIS%ERGTHBRE
MR EMBBE=ZRAF2ENY
AR 5H SEEZERELEBHE
TITABEARNEBRTO%ERE T ERB
NEERR o
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Considering the abovementioned shares were granted to
the Grantees for securing their continuous services to the
Group, the Group has recognised the related share-based
payment expenses during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022. The shares as granted by Ningbo Jiadu
under the approval from Lepu Medical (the parent of the
Company) are those shares as subscribed and fully paid
by Ningbo Jiadu in April 2021. Therefore, the grant of
the shares by Ningbo Jiadu to the Grantees without any
recharge to the Group has also been accounted for as
deemed contribution from shareholders in equity.

Set out below are the movement in the number of
awarded restricted shares under the ESOP:

At 1 January ®M1A1H
Granted k- dan
Vested BB
Forfeited B2

At 31 December ®M12A31H

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, management of
the Company has assessed and estimated that the
expected forfeiture rate for each of the vesting period
of the restricted shares granted to be 9.8% and 7.4%,
respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRHE

29 LI SERERYf R (18)

ZRE il B B R T AR AN
MREEEBEAANEBRE A%
BEHRNEE2023F K 20224F
12 A31 B IEFERBBURSN BE

RHNRAS EREELRE LR
B (RAAEMEAR) ER TR
M EEREENR2021F4 AR
REBEHHEORD - Al - ZEEE
ERERAR TR (EFRAKE
WE) IR ABRS AR VERR R A AL A
& o

TXHEIEREFBFTEAETERLY
ZRHIB BB RS

Number of shares

B EE
2023 2022
20234 20224
7,996,464 9,136,842
(988,064) =
- (1,140,378)
7,008,400 7,996,464

MR2023F K 2022F12 A31H » &
AREEREEFERGAERER
PR Il B 10 7R %5 55 B8 HA [ A9 TR HR DR UL
RN R A9.8%K7.4% °
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Expenses arising from share-based payment
transactions

Share-based payment expenses
Less: amounts capitalised as

e BB HRRHEE

29 LI SERERYfT R (18)

(@)

PARU A7) 45 R R RO A5 30 7 X2
B B RENEEN

intangible assets Kt
Amount charged to profit or loss BEZNRNEHE
Representing amounts charged to: fEH A NS EHIBRHEEE
— distribution expenses — RESER Y
— general and administrative — — MR RITEHRX
expenses
- research and development — HERY
expenses

Accounting for share-based payment

The fair value of awarded shares granted to
employees under the ESOP less amount paid by
employees is recognised as an employee benefits
expense over the relevant service period, being
the vesting period of the shares, and the credit is
recognised in equity in the share-based payment
reserves. The fair value of the shares is measured
at the grant date. The number of shares expected
to vest is estimated based on the non-market
vesting conditions. The estimates are revised at the
end of each reporting period and adjustments are
recognised in profit or loss and the share-based
payment reserves. Where shares are forfeited due
to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service
conditions, any expenses previously recognised in
relation to such shares are reversed in profit or loss
at the date of the forfeiture.

(b)

URGBRERNNRRZEL
HIBE 2

Year ended31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
30,615 24,352
(9,565) (3,839)
21,050 20,513
1,976 2,592
11,740 11,927
7,334 5,994
21,050 20,513

R BERN KOS EHE
3

REEEREFERTEEDN
RERD AN BEREREES
ey e R HERRBER
BHIRE (A B RS
B  RARGD RERD
FHREETERAEEER -
ZEROHAABENK LB
HIEtE - MR BRI EAE
THEEIR IETH 45 57 B (R A 4 &t o
ZEHA NS RERRET
fEek - 1HRE A RN B e AR
10 7S EEHE i) 7 B fek i 1 1SR -
i B 1 XL 1 B 80K = IR % fek
1 OR M - RSB R Bt % 5 A
IDHERERER 522 B
OB -
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
— related parties (Note 35(c))
— third parties

Other payables to related parties

(Note 35(c))
Employee benefits payable
Other taxes payable
Accrued listing expenses

Deposits received from customers

Others

B 5 e R
— BAE 75 (F4EE35(c))

A —

—gE=

H b fE 1 BB 5 5k 0B
(ftzE35(c))

FEfHE B 1&F

H At FEARFHEK

FEEt ETRIY

BEFPKEMIES

EAh

Other payables due to related parties are denominated in
RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their

short-term nature.

30 BHEREMEMNRER

As at 31 December

MW12H31R
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
3,239 800
16,208 11,461
19,447 12,261
12 163
6,852 6,681
2,445 6,461
- 5,559
65 271
9,243 3,413
38,064 34,809

H A FE A BR B 5 SRIR RIA AR B &

B \EH - TFE -

s 3
o

i
Rl

X

i
=

Sy
]

H

BAKREXK

B 5 M H AR FRIBRE AT
 EEREERRSEEARER



30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group
ranged from 30 days to 120 days. Aging analysis of the
trade payables at each balance sheet date are as follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 year and 2 years

Over 2 years

—F R
1FEE2F
DEEIB e

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RMB
EUR
uSD

AR
BATT

ETT

30

Annual Report 2023
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e BB HRRHEE

B 5B HMERRIR (&)
R R T AR EME RN T30
RE120K - REAERAER BN
B SR TERRONMT :

As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
17,858 11,992
1,381 122
208 147
19,447 12,261

BHREMENRBHNREENAT
JIEHEHE -

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®BTT ARETTT
37,829 30,892
163 50
72 3,867

38,064 34,809
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31 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities aHaE
— receipts in advance from customers — FEUW R F A
- rebates to customers (note)
— customers’ rights to claim for
additional units of products
(note)

A (FaE)

Note:

The Group has contracted with certain customers to offer them
with volume rebates if their purchases of the Group’s products
(i.e. occluders) have exceeded certain pre-determined level and
these volume rebates are to be settled by way of the delivery of
additional units of the Group’s products to these customers with
no cash alternative settlement. In addition, the Group has also
contracted with certain customers for granting them with the
rights to claim for additional units under the situation as described
in Note 6. The sale transaction prices as allocated to the Group’s
unsatisfied performance obligations in delivering additional units
of its products as settlement for the aforesaid volume rebates and
the claims of additional units have been deferred and accounted
for as contract liabilities of the Group.

Revenue recognised that was included RFEHFTFAE KB BEEHRE

in the contract liabilities balance B R A

at the beginning of the year

— R TEPHRM (M)
— BEFENEINEm

31 8¥MAR

As at As at

31 December 1 January
#®12A31H M1A1H
2023 2022 2022
2023 20224 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR®TT ARBTT

2,806 1,485 3,229
3,573 2,528 3,589
6,210 9,106 7,965
12,589 13,119 14,783

GEX

AEBEEETEPIIVAN  58F
BEAREER (MHHER) BBRERN
TAEKF - RlREEFREERT - B
ZEMERMGNRZETFLRXNAE
BB AEE  MIERSER
BETR o I AEETEETER
FIA) - R REEM AR BER TR
BINEmAER - ERXNEINE @
PEEAEERETROEBNHER
ZERA LR RFETEE - B
EmEBREELEL ARIHEAZENS
HWafsE-

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HILEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTIT
13,119 14,783
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32 BaRERH
(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax () FrSBAFE (FE) BEE
to cash generated from operations iSRS ME IR

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Profit/(loss) before income tax FTSBiAn M, (&18) 173,294 (15,032)
Adjustments for: B TESIEIEL AR
— depreciation and amortisation —HrE LY 15,702 14,869
— amortisation of deferred income — ER B fF#8 B A 8 1Y IR Uk
related to government grants N = - (482)
— net loss on write-off of property, —#fi$&%E « HE L&
plant and equipment ELENEERTEEE - 1
— net (reversal)/provision for — S EEREEE
impairment losses on (@) s
financial assets (5,981) 5,727
— share-based compensation — DARSAD /& 21 B 3 B 5~
expenses 21,050 20,513
— fair value losses on financial —UAREBEFEEHE
assets at fair value through S AEHIEENS R
profit or loss BENADEBEER - 4,928
— investment income on financial —ARAAREES SR EE
assets at fair value through S AEHIEENS R
profit or loss BEEEIA (10,762) (10,395)
— finance (income)/costs — net -8 (rA)
AN — H %8 (14,612) 13,306
— net foreign exchange losses — INFE BT iE R 5R 5,888 82,279
184,579 115,714
Change in working capital: EBECEE :
— inventories -FE (12,025) (23,996)
- prepayments and other — T FRIE K E A e U IR
receivables 2,672 (18,171)
— trade receivables — B S RWEIA 4,054 (12,027)
— trade and other payables — B 5 NE M FRIE 3,255 7,917
— contract liabilities —AREaE (530) (1,664)
— restricted cash —XREL 790 (790)

Cash generated from operations & & Fr133H & 182,795 66,983
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities from financing activities (b)
At 1 January 2022 ®2022%F181H
Cash flows BERE

New leases (Note 15) s (fIsE15)

Interest expense (Note 11)

Foreign exchange adjustments
Derecognition of redemption liabilities
Other change

At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2023

Cash flows

New leases (Note 15)
Interest expense (Note 11)

At 31 December 2023

MBS (FFE11)
ANE S
EoaERIEER
H b & F)

20225128318
#202351A1H
Bens

S (MisE15)

F B R (FFE11)

72023%12A31H

32 BeREEH (#)

METHEEED
Lease Redemption
liabilities liabilities
HEEE BE&E
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARBTRT AR%TR
6,187 679,986
(3,630) -
653 -
288 18,683
= 76,377
- (775,046)
(163) -
3,835 =
3,335 -
(2,047) -
948 -
204 -
2,440 -
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 32 Ble&REEHE ()
(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) EE*BEERH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831B8LLEE

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Derecognition of redemption BEEEERIEER
liabilities - 775,046
33 COMMITMENTS 33 &ifs
The Group’s capital commitments as of 31 December B 00234 K 2022412 A31H -
2023 and 2022 are as follows: NEBMEARFENT
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARET T

Property, plant and equipment Wz~ BB R 177 1,283
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34 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they
have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares
that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion of
ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by
the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is

also their principal place of business.

Name of entity

1

Di
E

L £

rectly owned:

BEA

Shanghai Shape

iE

Memory Alloy

BRI
AEMH

Lepu ScienTech

g?é

(Beijing) Medical
Technology

Co., Ltd.

EOR (IER)
BERR
ARAR]

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
R R 3L B R
HRERRY

The PRC,limited
liability company

hE - BREEAF

The PRC,limited
liability company

TE - AREEAR

34

PR LR

AREER2023F12 A31 HHEZEH
BRAREHIIWT - B BAEHAI
FENRANEBERAAEEEE R
BERZEE  MATEAT AR
SR AEBATEENRERE -
AR ERERITAEEES
ES iR

Paid-up Ownership interest held Principal activities/
by the Group place of operation
FRAFAHAAEEE IERBEID EXHR

As of 31 December

capital
BERF
RMB’000
ARBTT

100,000

100,000

400,000

400,000

®12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
100% 100% Manufacturing and sales

100%

100%

100%

of interventional treatment
series occluders for
defective congenital heart
disease and the research
and development of
biological valve for heart
disease/The PRC

100% BHREMEREOEEN AGE
RIS E R EMN
OB B 4 R AR
/e

- The research and
development of biological
valve for heart disease/

The PRC
- STEOERNE YRR
e/
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operation decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

The Group is controlled by the following entity:

Place of

35

Name Type incorporation

=18 wa Rl 3t B

Lepu Medical Ultimate parent entity Beijing, the PRC
LELRE S S SY/NG] RE - bR

e BB HRRHEE

ABBEX S

M- REAMEERREENS T
REZ T EEMBRELERRE
MEAZE - BRI HARSHEE
B o XE KRB Z T KRR
HHEARE -

Ownership interests in the

Company
RELFHEFRHES
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2023 2022
2023 20224
80.75% 80.75%
80.75% 80.75%
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties

The following is a summary of the significant
transactions carried out between the Group and its
related parties in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, and balances with related parties as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Names of the major related parties

FERBAHER

Xi’an Qinming Medical Instrument Co., Ltd.
(ALRABEER[FRLAF)

AXRABRSRFZARRAT]

Anhui Magete Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
(ZHE B EERERRRBERAR)

ZHABREEREREARAF]

Lepu International Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(BT BB ORI E R A A)

LEEBIRR R ORYI) BR A F]

Hefei High-tech Cardiovascular Hospital
(BIEEFOME R ER)

A BB S 370 10 E % B B

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

LepuCare (India) Vascular Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Beijing Lepu Precision Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
(tREERTBERRARRAA)

I REEREBEMRARRAR]

35 FBEAXS (i)

(@)

BARE TS &8 K ER AT 7T Y A 4R

TN SCE 2t A £ [ £ L B B 5 A
B E20234F ;2022912 A 31
BEFEEAEEREEKBE
BRETHEARS  UEH
20234 2022412 431 H &
RAE 5 RS R o

Nature of relationship

FRIRMEE
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

4% BRI B AR
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

S P L= VNG
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

S =N
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

S =N
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical
S il =YNG|
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

HEBFNEAR
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

Names of the major related parties

FERMBAHER

Jiangsu Shangzhi Medical Instrument Co., Ltd.
(I# - EBRERBWMERLQA)

L#F R BESWMAR AR

Beijing Lepu Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
(EREEDE RN BR A7)

I REEZER RN AERRAR]

Beijing Lepu Health Care Network Technology Co., Ltd
(bR EEE S PERARAF)

I RELEEZREBERDA

Shanghai Lepu Yunzhi Technology Co., Ltd.

(LB EEERERDERAR)
FERERRNMERNAERRAR]

Lepu Ruikang (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.
(HEEERALR)HKXBRAT)
LERRE (ER) MRER AT

Sichuan Xingtai Pule Medical Technology Co., Ltd
(M)l R E LR ER AR A R)

7o)l B xS B R R B R A 7

e BB HRRHEE

35 FBEAXS (1K)

() EEERS B RELRE S HWER
(&)
Nature of relationship

MEER

A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

et N
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

LERBEMBLAA
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

5 2 B8 AR BB 0
A joint venture of subsidiary of
Lepu Medical
HEBENBEARNGERE
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

SERBEMBLAA
A subsidiary of Lepu Medical

LT BEENE A
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 FBKAEXS ()
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHEBLINRS

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Sale of goods HEMm
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical — GEREE AR 7,793 5,412
Rental income e WA
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical — G ER R B\ T - 215
— A joint venture of subsidiary of — — &4 E2ERHEB /A FH)
Lepu Medical BELE 679 315
679 530
Commission income HEBA
— Subsidiary of Lepu Medical — GERENE AR - 746
Purchases of raw materials and B E R £ & RS
services
- Lepu Medical (note) — 2e e (FYsE) 18,157 27,977
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical — BB N ) 6,252 4,144
24,409 32,121
Payment of lease liabilities IRNHEEEE

- Lepu Medical —REERE 1,231 -
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Note:

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the key research and development work of certain heart
valve products were registered under the name of, and
conducted by, Lepu Medical. In May 2021, the Group
entered into a framework agreement with Lepu Medical
and entrusted Lepu Medical to development of certain
heart valve products under the Group’s instruction due
to regulatory restrictions and commercial reasons (the
“Entrusted Development Services”). For the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, the service fee paid/payable to
Lepu Medical in respect of these Entrusted Development
Services amounted to approximately RMB17,984,000 and
RMB27,977,000, respectively.

e BB HRRHEE

35 BMHAXH (&)

(b)

BSOS (R
b
HEREGAMBRRAN - ET

O PR 2 SR MY B SR 38 TEE
NEEERENZEIMIHEE
17 12021658 * BREERH
MEERE  AEEELLEERE
RN AER R B AL T B ER
BASEBMERHEZES T OME
BFER ([ZXRA%ERE]) - B#E
20234 K% 2022412 A31 H I-4F
B BRZREFZEARBRBEN
N TFLLEEENREED A
BARMEA7,984,0007T B AR
27,977,0007C °
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

35 FBEAXS (i)

(c) EEEABTTHAERR

As at 31 December

Receivables from related parties FEUXERE: 5 RIE

Trade receivables
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical

Other receivables
— A joint venture of subsidiary of
Lepu Medical

Prepayments
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical

Payables to related parties

Trade payables
— Subsidiaries of Lepu Medical

Other payables
— Lepu Medical

Lease liabilities
— Lepu Medical

All the balances with related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

MW12H31R
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBETIT
E 5 W IE
— S BN E A A 3,114 1,039
H A fE U TR IR
— 2L BB A R K
AEME - 334
FE 5108
o Sk ENG 2,979 1,358
FE £+ BRI 5 =18
Z 5N IE
=N 3,239 800
H th FEAS FRIE
— S EefE 12 163
HeEatE
— SEEEE - 997

P SRR T A0 A BRI
TR - BEREEEHR -
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)

Key management personnel compensation

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and respective department
heads. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

Wages, salaries and bonuses,
other short-term employee
benefits and share-based
payment
— Directors and supervisors
— Other key management

TE - #FeRaF -
Hip e HiE 8 RA &
VARR £ 45 ZS BB B9 5 3K

—-EXKE=E
—HMEREHEAR

The key management personnel compensation
disclosed above include amounts of approximately
RMB812,000 which were remained unpaid as
of 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB959,000) and
are included in other payables. The share-based
payments provided to key management personnel
consist of options which is equity-settled (Note 29).

e BB HRRHEE

35 FBEAXS (1K)

(d)

TEEEASHH

TEEEABBREAITMIER
TEERZHFIEE - RAEXE
EEABRBEEREEME
FEOFBA T PR

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBILEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBETIT
9,565 9,374
6,279 5,409
15,844 14,783

EXBENTEEEABH
BB 45 A = 20239F12 A31 8
MAZ N AR®ES12,0007T
(20224 : AR#959,0007T)
Wt AR EFRIEA » [E
EERASRENURMDAE
WO RO FEAREEENE
A& #E (FIE29) °
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

35 FBEAXS (i)

(e) Directors’ emoluments (e) EE=M<
The remuneration of every director and the chief B = 20234 %2022 12 A 31
executive officer for the years ended 31 December BIEFE  SFSRITEEH
2023 and 2022, were set out below: R F NSNS T
Salaries
and Share-
other based
Fees allowances Bonuses  payments Total
I1&R NG
e it el ERSER &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTT AR®TR ARRTRE ARRTT ARRTR
For the year ended EF2023F 1231 ALLEE
31 December 2023:
Executive directors BiTER
Ms. Chen Juan BBt - 1,629 - 3,125 4,754
Ms. Zhang Yuxin REMTL - 985 - 2,708 3,503
Non-executive directors FH{TES
Mr. Fu Shan A - - - - -
Mr. Znheng Guorui BBl - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Yufeng HEEfs 200 - - - 200
Mr. Liu Daozhi AEF e 211 - - - 1
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa BREBX T 200 - - - 200
611 2,514 - 5,833 8,958
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(e) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended EF2022F 12831 ALLEE
31 December 2022:

Executive directors BiTER
Ms. Chen Juan Rigx T
Ms. Zhang Yuxin REFLL
Non-executive directors FH{TEZE
Mr. Fu Shan Il
Mr. Znheng Guorui BBl A
Mr. Zheng Yufeng HEEfrs
Mr. Liu Daozhi BESRE
Ms. Chan Ka Lai Vanessa  REBX T

() Directors’ retirement benefits

e BB HRRHEE

35 FBEAXS (1K)

() E=ME (&)

Salaries
and Share-
other based
Fees  allowances Bonuses payments Total
I8R AR (R 5
e HthRAh i ERAER Ch
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETE
- 1,647 - 2,872 4519
- 1,138 - 2,490 3,628
200 - - - 200
200 - - - 200
200 - - - 200
600 2,785 - 5,362 8,747

() EBRAKER

There were no retirement benefits paid/payable to
any director during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

B 2 2023F 20224 12 A 31
BILFEE  TEEN BT
ERESHRKEF -

(9) Directors’ termination benefits () E=HEHEEF
There were no termination benefits paid/payable to #HFE2023F 2022412 A 31
any director during the years ended 31 December BIEFE  WEDH EHF
2023 and 2022. EAIEEBHERM -

(h) Consideration provided to or receivable by third (h) ARHUESHREMEE=LIRE

parties for making available directors’ Services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’ services
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

HYAE =S WEIHEE

B 2 2023F K 2022F 12 A 31
AIEFE @ WERE=FRE
S E = 5 EIE SR E
Eo
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36

37

(Continued)

(i) Information about loans, quasi-loans, controlled
corporate bodies, connected entities and other
dealings in favor of directors

No loans, quasi-loans, controlled corporate bodies,
connected entities and other dealings were entered
into between the Group and the directors in favor of
the directors, during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

() Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

CONTINGENCIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as of 31 December 2023 and 2022.

DIVIDEND

Pursuant to the resolution on 28 March 2024, the Board
has resolved to recommend for declaration and payment
of a final dividend of RMBO0.57 per share (approximately
RMB198 million in aggregate) for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil), subject to the approval by
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 23 May 2024. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in these consolidated financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation for the year ending 31
December 2024.

35 FBEAXS (i)

36

37

) BFREX EEX FEZEA
EiE  BHEERAHEGEIR
ESNXENER

B E20234F ;2022412 A 31
BIEEE  ASBEHEHEEZHE
1151%J41£Hﬁﬂ%§$%1§
;o EER ek AN B
M ,\ﬁgﬁmﬁﬁtx%o

() ESEXZ  ZHEIESHTH
ERFH

B ZE 20234 ;2022412 A 31
BIEFE @ ARARFERKE
AR N FEARRBIERS—
FRANABEBEEREERE
BEARGNEAEBEXKH
BRNEARS  THERAHX -

BREER

HE2023F K2022F12H31H -
AEEWELMEAKEEE -

BR
RIENR2024F3 A28 B HyR:%
EECERRAEREREREES

2023% 12 A31 B It FE MR B
BEERARKOSTIT(AHEHOAR
M198 B E L) (20224 « ) » Hf
AR RNBIRER IR 20245 A
23HBTHEERRBF K L4t
K& BAMEE - BERELAR
It E ARG S R P R EE AR

EERAABEE2024F12 H
31 HIEF S RBR{EEE A o
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38 FAFIBEAGEREME
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY L]
Company Balance Sheet AREERER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®TT ARBT T

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AR IRE 1,113,776 713,776
Deferred income tax assets RIEFRSTE E 10,652 11,889
Long-term bank deposits REISRITIF 74,881 72,396
Total non-current assets FRENEERE 1,199,309 798,061
Current assets BN EE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUH B A &) ZIE 38(b) 424,290 32,290
Prepayments and TEAST FRI8 B H b & IR

other receivables 3,258 6,828
Financial assets at fair value NARBEFTZAHE

through profit or loss ST AR BIEEHY

TREE - 258,109

Short-term bank deposits REHISRI TR 10,157 -
Cash and cash equivalents B FRRGEEBY 632,091 837,847
Total current assets mEEELE 1,069,796 1,135,084
Total assets SESE 2,265,105 1,933,145
EQUITY e
Share capital &7 27 346,750 346,750
Other reserves HAth 38(a) 1,718,549 1,718,549
Retained earnings/(accumulated B1F&F| /(R5tE1E)

losses) 38(a) 200,359 (142,877)

Total equity o g=g b 2,265,658 1,922,422
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Company Balance Sheet (Continued)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

afR
id bR
B 5 MEAM RN R

mENRREE

RRRE

HaRRARER

The balance sheet of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 28 March 2024 and was signed on its behalf

by:

38 EAFIBEARERERSE
B (#)
AEEEAEXR (&)
As at 31 December
m12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo AR®TRT ARETTT
3,447 10,723
3,447 10,723
3,447 10,723
2,265,105 1,933,145

RKARMEEABRREARARRES
©N2024FE3 A28 Bt E M ERET
WA TIALTRRESE

Director: Ms. Chen Juan

EF WAL

Director: Ms. Zhang Yuxin

EF  RERTL
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

Balance at 1 January 2022 $20225 18 1 ARy ER
Loss for the year FAEE
Issuance of ordinary shares upon completion BRRRREETKEET
of the IPO (Note 27) LAk (fsE27)
Share issuance costs (Note 27) BRADEATRR A (BiFsE27)
Derecognition of redemption liabilties KIFERERAE
Balance at 31 December 2022 20224128 31 A phiEER
Balance at 1 January 2023 #2023%1 B 1AM
Pralfit for the year g
Balance at 31 December 2023 #2023512A 31 AER

(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries primarily comprising
the dividends receivables from a subsidiary and other
outstanding balance form subsidiaries. The amounts due
from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

38

e BRRME

FLAFRERRRREMS
8 (1)

PiteE -
@ AAFHEE

Other reserves

(Accumulated

bl L) losses)/

Share Capital retained
premium reserve Total eamings
(BiHEH)/

EhiaR LN fit gHE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

1,087,714 - 1087714 (30,339)
. 3 - (11253
579,174 - 57974 -
01,878) - 01,878) -

= 103,539 103,639 =

1,615,010 108,539 1,718,549 (142,877)

1,615,010 103,539 1,718,549 (142,877)
- - - 343,236

1,615,010 103,539 1,718,549 200,359

(o) EEMMBARRBEEECERE—
fel B 8 2 B A B R Bt B8 2 ) E At
REREER - BB RRRIEAR
IR AR AEEEEES
R -
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39 EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the balance sheet date, the Board proposed a
declaration and payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023. Further details are disclosed in

Note 37.

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

This note provides a list of other accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
financial statements are for the Group consisting of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

40.1 Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including controlled
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries (if applicable) are shown separately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet respectively.

39 WEMEER

REEBEXRAR EETEHE
IR MREEE = 2023F12 A31 B IE4F
ERREIRE - F4 2 AR H
FE37

40 Hftrer st BREE

A BT iR R 5% i B W IS IR TR
MEMEER - BRRBREHAI  ZFR
RERMBE2INFEERER - MBHmE
Th AN B R E MY A AR R AR SR

40.1 A RA

MEBAREAREYEERE
HlEMPTE BER (2R E
) EAKREHAZERE
RS M [H i o% B R8 A] 2 Bl 3R A0
ek F A %% A O
Ao XHERENBEEEEZE
EEREINRNTEZFM
B AEEBAHZER
EVPE I o KB~ m] B 1R
BREEAKEZBEZEKS
AR - BIESIER L2 AER
LHER B AR -

NEIRR S - BHREEEQE
MRS ARER KR TYH
Mo BRI ZBEBB IS
REEHTRE  TRIRER
BRITTHIE -MEARNE
FARRCIRBEELER - A
il £R B2 7K 5% [ P BR A R —
B o

(RIENCIE SPCE: Satask: P
BtEm (AER) DRIRERR
BahkEME2EKER  #a
BHRREERBRDEET
o
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e BB HRRHEE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40 Hftv=stBREE ()

40.2 Business combinations 40.2 ESHF

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations (excluding
those involving the entities under common control),
regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises (if
applicable):

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement; or

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiaries.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

ERBURBEIERMB RS
HEAR(PRARZEHNE
BRI - TwmEh WEER
TRASHEMEE - 5L UWBH
BArREENHESR (1@
) :

s FMBREEMNANER:

s HBRWUBEBHAESR
AEEWMEIE

o AEEBITHRARED

s HAIBHELHELED
TRHEEHKEBENAR
BfE: X

o RKEBRBEM AT
ERBRAEDRA R (E
8-

R EEH5 A Bt AT URE B9 AT 385
BENAEFERENRENRSEA
BB MIFEERKE BN
A EEE (BRDEBIIME
MO o AEEIZEFBRWES
REE - RRARBEIGHER
BE(ERKBERA#REE
FEZED - EREKBER
Z AR IR R AR o

Uit R AR B R AN TR EE £ B 51 AR B
i o
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

40.2 Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the
o consideration transferred;

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

40 Hftv= st BREIE ()

40.2 ESH (E)

THI&IA
s CHEZINHE:

s WWEEBR T IEE
PR &

s REUBEEMEML
Al A% AN 4 25 10 W B 5
M AEE

B H B W B AT BRI B E R ER
NREER  EERUEET
B WS BERAKER
BRI #NEEFENARE
B EEBBEERBDTE

SEHELBAEERERE
B DERTRMBENTEE
BREFFAEZQANEE MR
REBEEHRBEPER -

WA 00 B BUETT - WE
77 RST PR A RE 00 IR AN 2
RUEE B iR BRm E R e B
HO R R BEEHTE - A
HZBEEMTEELHNKERK
BERIGMNERTHER -
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40 Hftv=stBREE ()

40.3 BY B HE

40.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

40.4 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the group entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency and also the functional
currency of the subsidiaries.

B 8 A R B A AN O ER BB
SRR - KA BERENEEZRR
BACR o MY B A RIE R G R A
NEEE W S LB AR ©

R AT RS A B
NENEER SR - HHE
BB RROREREEB
BIEAMBHRERABIRE QT
EEFE(BEBE) KD
B ARKRBZERERER
BHZENWBRARNREE
TTRERR -

40.4 sl E

()  EERZIEH

EEEEBOM B RE
FroIEB ERERES
PETERBERENE
B (g% ) rE -
HZERAMBRRAK
NREININERZEIER
UK ERRININGER
BARKEZT -
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
40.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in

profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis within “Other income and losses

- net”.

40.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment (if any). Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

reporting period in which they are incurred.

40 Hftv= st BREIE ()

40.4 SpEEBE (1F)

(i) XZRAH%

SNER B HE AR
EXMEBNEEE -
ZEXGREBELENIN
PEWeas B HE - A MR
FRERBE LASNE 5T
ENEBEERABGBMR
E A RO SN E W ek B B 1R
BENBRPHER -

PrASMNE W st R BB R
FABRmkEMEEI
mAR[HEMBARE
B-FRIARFE=E
5]

40.5 Y1¥% - BMENRE

ME - BE RERBRELKA
BRETITE R REHRE (10F)
AR - BLRABREKERM
HEEEEAENXE -

BEKRAEERZIARBED
RFZEBENERATBEFRAR
SE N Eer] ST 2R B R
BT - TEABEMNK
EEXERR—BBUNEE
(WER) - ERBIYEEARR
M ERAERE D M REEEE
MR ILFER - R E MM
RREERANEEENHREH
WERZEHNR -
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.5

40.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 40.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
are recognised in profit or loss and presented as
“Other income and losses — net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise buildings, held for
long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both and not occupied by the Group, and is
measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, the
Group chooses the cost model to measure all
of its investment properties, which are stated at
historical costs less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

An investment property’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
investment property’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised
in profit and loss.

e BB HRRHEE

40 Hftv=stBREE ()

40.5

40.6

M - BERRE (&)

WEERAESRHE MK
B¢ AlZEEMNEEERD
B O = B A Wk B & 58 (B R
40.9) °

& Wess K B 1R Th R B L BT
SREENEE P RERORE
BEE  IREEBRENEAM
EEU R P IIETE MBI A
K JEiE — FEE ] o

REMH

BREWME (BRETF)NHFEAR
ERAHS KEXFHIEER
EENKMERFRA - BHIAIE
HAKEIGERH - KEMENH
BRA (BHEEEXZKA)
FTE - MIZHERER - AKEE
BRAEAGEERBREY
X WREBELRARRATE
K RFHRERRE (1) I8k -

MR EMENREESNE MG
ARl EEE - AIRREDE
) P T 1L B By 0RK 22 L A] Wi [e
S - HERERERTBB
LB S5 IR EARE (EEE -
WK B FER o
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.7 Intangible assets

40.8

(i) Patents and licences
Patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Patents and licences which
have finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation.

(i) Purchased software
Purchased software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring the specific software into usage.
These costs are amortised using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives.
Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programs are recognised as expense
as incurred.

(i) Research and development
Capitalised product development costs are
measured as described in Note 18.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 40.2.

Goodwill is not amortised, but

it is tested for

impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

40 Hfh g

AR EE (1))

40.7 B EE

40.8

()

(i)

(i)

[}

Tt

R REF A

EBAHTBANER
REFAI R R B e Q
REEER - ZFEF
REFAIEBBROER
FH - KRR R
AR -

REA B ELF

FEAR T AT IE R A
R AE 5% 5 E B A Z B A
155 7R B BT E £ O K AR 1
BARCREE - ZFKAR
REMBEFAERFHR
NE#RAEH - B
12 Fr 19 4 R AR B A R
RELERBEARMAX °

&

EALERTEBRR
31 B A3

BB E40.2FTAAHE -
BATEE  HESFETRE
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.8

40.9

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating
segments (Note 5).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life or not available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

e BB HRRHEE

40 Hftv=stBREE ()

40.8

40.9

B (&)

BEIEERSELEUIAE
TTRERIR © %2 B IR
HRmRNELRERERA G
MIRSELBURRNSELE
fAERER - REREEAE
NEEEAZNREZEERE (A
EEDE) BRI EL R EAA
5l (ftEES5) »

FEMEERE

BERAGERERFHNE
RERNETEEDREE -
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BEHIBAREZERETERR
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EBIEAEEREEREE K
ElEENERER - B
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.10 Investments and other financial assets

()

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit
or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

40 Hftv= st BREIE ()

4010 RERHMSREE
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

40 Hftv=stBREE ()

4010 RERHMESBMEE (K)
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e M HRRHE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “Other income and gains/
(losses) — net” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

40 Hftv= st BREIE ()
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e BB HRRHEE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40 Hftv=stBREE ()

4010 RERHMESBMEE (K)

40.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(i) Measurement (Continued) (i)  FrE (4&)

Debt instruments (Continued) BETA (&)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in “Other income and losses — net” and
impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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e M HRRHE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within “Other
income and losses — net” in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB HRRHEE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in “Other income and
losses — net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit loss associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Notes 3.1(b) and 23 for further
details.
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e M HRRHE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheets where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Group or the counterparty.

40.12 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are assigned to individual items of inventory based
on weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB HRRHEE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING 40 Hh &t BREIE (#)

POLICIES (Continued)

40.13 E 3 EWFIE

40.13 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within one year
and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 23 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1(b) for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

40.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

40.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of equity
instruments are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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e M HRRHE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

40.16 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables mainly represent the
obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

40.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
income tax assets and liabilities attributable to

temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB HRRHEE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets
are not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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e M HRRHE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current income tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred income tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current income tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

40.18 Employee benefits

@

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.
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e BB HRRHEE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension, housing funds, medical insurances
and other social insurances obligations

Employees of the Group are covered by various
government-sponsored defined-contribution
pension plans in the PRC under which the
employees are entitled to a monthly pension
based on certain formulas. The relevant
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liability to these employees when they
retire. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these pension plans for the employees
which are determined at a certain percentage
of their salaries. Under these plans, the Group
has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contribution made. Contributions
to these plans are expensed as incurred and
contributions paid to the defined contribution
pension plans for a staff are not available to
reduce the Group’s future obligations to such
defined-contribution pension plans even if the
staff leaves the Group.

40.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

40.19 Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

40.20 Earnings per share

(a)  Basic earnings or losses per share

Basic earnings or losses per share is calculated
by dividing:

o The profit/loss attributable to owners of
the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares

° By the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e BB HRRHEE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.20 Earnings per share (Continued)

®)

Diluted earnings or losses per share

Diluted earnings or losses per share adjusts
the figures used in the determination of basic
earnings or losses per share to take into
account:

° The after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o The weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

40.21 Leases as leasee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments (if applicable):

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and
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e M HRRHE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

40.21 Leases as leasee (Continued)

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implied in the lease, if that rate can be
determined, or the respective incremental borrowing
rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following (if applicable):

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

40.22 Dividend distribution
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the

end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.
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Address
Mokt

Room 401, Building 41, No. 258,
Xinzhuan Road, Songjiang District,
Shanghai, PRC

HE BTN RERAK
258574118401 %

Room 301, 3/F, Building 41,

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District,

Shanghai, PRC

HE BTN RN
2585 411E3 /€301 =

Room 302, 3/F, Building 41,

No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District,

Shanghai, PRC

HE BTN RIERAK
2585 411E3[E302%

Rooms 201 and 202, Building 41,
No. 258, Xinzhuan Road,
Songjiang District,

Shanghai, PRC

HE BTN RIEEAK
258574118201 202 =
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Particulars of Investment Properties

Existing use
EpAE

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Industrial building for rental

REHENTEET

Tenure

Hi

Short-term leases
FEHIHE

Short-term leases
CHIE

Short-term leases
FEHIHE

Short-term leases
ZHIE

As of December 31, 2023
#HZE2023F12H31H

Attributable interest
of Location Use
Tenure the Group
XKML
ERFEHELRES

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

Operating Results

Revenue
Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to owners of the
Company

Financial Position

Total assets
Total liabilities
Total equity

YA

FSBRIAE
(&18)

PR X

2NN 2PN
FRFE/
(&)

MR R

BE®E
BIRAR
R

Year ended 31 December

HBZE12A31BLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023F 20224 20214 20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETRE ARETE ARETR
325,896 247,670 222,583 148,247 116,451
173,294 (15,032) 66,027 76,679 60,346
(21,762) (4,781) (7,330) (7,907) (8,437)
151,532 (19,813) 58,697 68,772 51,909

As at 31 December

M12A31H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 20224F 2021 20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE ARETT ARETRE ARETI ARETR
1,986,466 1,809,621 1,119,690 332,510 308,561
59,792 65,094 734,499 78,911 76,692
1,926,674 1,744,527 385,191 253,599 231,869
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